
y.~OLO 

~(; .",fl/\,. 

i~~~ ~ 
"Y ~~ ~ 
4-

4 
.......... '\ 

GEM~~ 

210 N. Pa rk Ave. 


Winter Park, FL 


32 789 


PO Drawer 200 


Winter Park, FL 


32790-0200 


Tel 407-7 40-8575 

Fax 407-7 40-0613 

mi @t ml nc. com 

July 14, 2000 
Via Overnight Delivery 

Ms. Blanca Bayo 
Division of Records and Reporting 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0870 

RE: Alternative Local Exchange Carrier Application for 
OD6 g'~ d.. -7/<­Frontier Communications of America, Inc. 

Dear Ms. Bayo, 

Enclosed for filing is one (1) original and six (6) copies of the Alternative 
Local Exchange Carrier Application filed on behalf of Frontier 
Communications of America, Inc. A check in the amount of $250 made 
payable to the Florida Public Service Commission is enclosed with this 
application. 

Please acknowledge receipt of this filing by returning the extra copy of this 
letter, file stamped, in the self-addressed, stamped envelope enclosed for 
that purpose. 

Questions regarding this filing may be directed to me at (407) 740-8575. 
Thank you for your cooperation and assistance. 

; /ce; IYrJ; 
Connie Wightman 
Consultant to 
Frontier Commuhicat1 ons of America 

CW/im. _~Jl~ 
Enclosure 

cc : Michael J. Nighan, Frontier Communications of America 
File: Frontier Communications of America - FL Local 
TMS: FLFOOOO 
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FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

DIVISION OF TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

BUREAU OF CERTIFICATION AND SERVICE EVALUATION 


APPLICATION FORM 


for 


AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE 

ALTERNATIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE 


WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

DOO g't.t, -;;;, ,IX 

Instructions 

This form is used for an original application for a certificate and for approval of the 
assignment or transfer of an existing certificate. In case of an assignment or 
transfer, the information provided shall be for the purchaser, assignee or transferee. 
(See appendix A.) 

Print or type all responses to each item requested in the application and 
appendices. If an item is not applicable, please explain why. 

Use a separate sheet f or each answer which will not fit the allotted space. 

Once completed, submit the original and six (6) copies of this form along with a non­
'refundable application fee of $250.00 to: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Records and Reporting 

2450 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

(850) 413-6770 

If you have and questions about completing the form, contact: 

Florida Public Service Commission 

Division of Telecommunications 


Bureau of Certification and Service Evaluation 

2450 Shumard Oak Boulevard 


Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

(850) 413-6600 

DOCUMun ~1r· E"r q - OATE 

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos . 25-24.815, 25-24.810, and 25-24.815 
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APPLICATION 


1. 	 This is an application for ..[ (check one): 

• 	 Original certificate (new company) 

o 	 Approval of transfer of existing certificate: Example, a non-certificated company 
purchases an existing company and desires to retain the original certificate 
authority. 

o 	 Approval of transfer of control: Example, a company purchases 51% of a 
certificated company. The Commission must approve the new controlling entity. 

2. 	 Name of company: 

Frontier Communications of America, Inc. 

3. 	 Name under which the applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.): 

Frontier Communications of America, Inc. 

4. 	 Official mailing address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state, zip 
code): 

Name: Frontier Communications of America, Inc. 
Street: 180 South Clinton Avenue 
P.O. Box: 

City: Rochester 

State: New York 

Zip Code: 14646 


5. 	 Florida address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state, zip code): 

Name: 

Street: 

P.O. Box: 

City: 

State: 

Zip Code: 


FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.815, 25-2a.810, and 25-24.815 



'-...../
6. 	 Structure of organiiat'ion: 

o 	 Individual o Corporation 

Foreign Corporation o Foreign Partnership 
•o 	 General Partnership o Limited Partnership 

o 	 Other. Please explain: 

7. 	 If individual, provide: 

Name: 

Title: 

Address: 

City, State, Zip: 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 

Internet Website Address: 


8. 	 If incorporated in Florida, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

(A) 	 The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number: 

9. 	 If foreign corporation, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

(A) 	 The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number: 

10. 	 If using fictitious name-d/b/a, provide proof of compliance with fictitious name statute 
(Chapter 865.09, FS) to operate in Florida: 

(A) 	 The Florida Secretary of State fictitious name registration number: 

11. 	 If a limited liability partnership. provide proof of registration to operate in Florida: 

(A) 	 The Florida Secretary of State registration Number: 

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11/95) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.815,25-241.810. and 25-24.815 




12. 	 If a partnership. PrOvide name, title and address of all ¥rtners and a copy of the 
partnership agreement. 

Name: 

Title: 

Address: 

City, State, Zip: 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 

Internet Website Address: 


13. 	 If a foreign limited partnership, provide proof of compliance with the foreign limited 
partnership statute (Chapter 620.169, FS), if applicable. 

(A) 	 The Florida registration number: 

14. 	 Provide F.E.I. Number (if applicable): 45-0427228 

15. 	 Indicate if any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders have 
previously been: 

(A) 	 adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any felony or of any 
crime, or whether such actions may result from pending proceedings. Provide 
explanation. 

No officer or director has filed for corporate bankruptcy and no officer or 
director has been adjudged incompetent or found guilty of any felony or of 
any crime. 

(8) 	 an officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida certificated telephone 
company, If yes, give name of company and relationship. If no longer associated 
with company, give reason why not. 

No. 

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11/95) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.815, 25-24.810, and 25-24.815 




16. Who will serve as li~on to the Commission with regard to tlle'following? 

(A) The application: 

Name: 

Title: 


Address: 

City, State, Zip: 

Telephone No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 

Internet Website Address: 


Connie Wightman 
President & Consultant to Frontier 
Technologies Management, Inc. 
210 Park Avenue North 
Winter Park, FL 32789 
(407) 740-8575 Fax No.: (407) 740-0613 
cWightman@tminc.com 
www.tmi@tminc.com 

(B) Official point of contact for the ongoing operations of the company: 

Name: 

Title: 


Address: 

City, State, Zip: 

Telephone No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 

Internet Website Address: 


Michael J. Nighan 
Director - Regulatory Affairs 
Frontier Communications of America, Inc. 
180 South Clinton Avenue 
Rochester, New York 14646 
(716) 777-8456 Fax No.: (716) 232-3646 
michaeLnighan@globalcrossing.com 
www.globalcrossing.com 

(C) Complaints/Inquiries from customers: 

Name: 

Title: 

Address: 

City, State, Zip: 

Telephone No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 

Internet Website Address: 


Customer Service Unit Manager 
14450 Burnsville Drive 
Burnsville, Minnesota 55306 
On Bill Fax No.: On Bill 
Not Available 
Not Available 

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.815, 25-26.810, and 25-24.815 

http:www.globalcrossing.com
mailto:michaeLnighan@globalcrossing.com
mailto:www.tmi@tminc.com
mailto:cWightman@tminc.com
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17. 	 List the states in whrc'h the applicant: 

(A) 	 has operated as an alternative local exchange company 


None. 


(8) 	 has applications pending to be certificated as an alternative local exchange 
company. 

Alabama, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, New 
York, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Wisconsin. 

(C) 	 is certificated to operate as an alternative local exchange company. 

None. 

(D) 	 has been denied authority to operate as an alternative local exchange company and 
the circumstances involved. 

None. 

(E) 	 has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of telecommunications statutes 
and the circumstances involved. 

None. 

(F) 	 has been involved in civil court proceedings with an interexchange carrier, local 
exchange company or other telecommunications entity, and the circumstances 
involved. 

None. 

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.815, 25-24.810, and 25-24.815 
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18. 	 Submit the following: 

(A) 	 Financial capabi~ 

The application should contain the applicant's audited financial statements for the 
most recent 3 years. If the applicant does not have audited financial statements. it 
shall so be stated. 

The unaudited 'financial statements should be signed by the applicant's chief 
executive officer and chief financial officer affirming that the financial statements are 
true and correct and should include: 

1. 	 The balance sheet: 

2. 	 Income statement: and 

3. 	 Statement of retained earnings. 

NOTE: 	 This documentation may include, but is not limited to, financial 
statements, a projected profit and loss statement, credit references, 
credit bureau reports, and descriptions of business relationships with 
financial institutions. 

Further, the following (which includes supporting documentation) should be 
provided: 

1. 	 Written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to 
provide the requested service in the geographic area proposed to be served. 

2. 	 Written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to 
maintain the requested service. 

3. 	 Written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to 
meet its lease or ownership obligations. 

B. 	 Managerial capability. 

Give resumes of employees/officers of the company that would indicate sufficient 
managerial experiences of each. 

C. 	 Technical capability. 

Give resumes of employees/officers of the company that would indicate sufficient 
technical experiences or indicate what company has been contracted to conduct 
technical maintenance. 

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11/95) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.815, 25-2a'.810. and 25-24.815 




**APPtrcANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT STATEt6e~n** 

1. 	 REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: I understand that all telephone companies must 
pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of .15 of one percent of gross operating 
revenue derived from intrastate business. Regardless of the gross operating revenue of a 
company, a minimum annual assessment fee of $50 is required. 

2. 	 GROSS RECEIPTS TAX: I understand that all telephone companies must pay a gross 
receipts tax of two and one-half percent on all intra and interstate business. 

3. 	 SALES TAX: I understand that a seven percent sales tax must be paid on intra and 
interstate revenues. 

4. 	 APPLICATION FEE: I understand that a non-refundable application fee of $250.00 must 
be submitted with this application. 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

/I, / V.rA n /) y., /.) ;)vi} 2o~'iJ 
Micha~1 J. Shortley, III Date 
Senior Associate General Counsel 

(716) 777-1028 (716) 546-7823 
Telephone Number Fax Number 

Address: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

A- CERTIFICATE SALE, TRANSFER, OR ASSIGNMENT STATEMENT 
8- INTRASTATE NETWORK 
C- AFFIDAVIT 

GLOSSARY 

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11/95) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.815, 25-2i.81 0, and 25-24.815 


http:25-2i.81


'---' '-' 	 . 

**APPENDIX 8** 

INTRASTATE NETWORK (if available) 

Chapter 25-24.825 (5), Florida Administrative Code, requires the company to make 
available to staff the alternative local exchange service areas only upon request. 

1. 	 POP; Addresses where located, and indicate if owned or leased. 

Location Owned or Leased 

1 ) 


2) 


3) 


4) 


2. 	 SWITCHES; Address where located, by type of switch, and indicate if owned or leased. 

Location Owned or Leased~ 
1) 

2) 

3) 

4) 

3. 	 TRANSMISSION FACILITIES: POP-to-POP facilities by type offacilities (microwave, fiber, 
copper, satellite, etc.) And indicate if owned or leased. 

Type of POP-to POP 	 Owned or Leased 
1) 

2) 


3) 


4) 


FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11/95) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.815, 25-2'.810, and 25-24.815 




-- '--' **APPENDIX C** 

AFFIDAVIT 

By my signature below, Ii, the undersigned officer, attest to the accuracy of the information 
contained in this application and attached documents and that the applicant has the technical 
expertise, managerial ability, and financial capability to provide alternative local exchange service 
in the State of Florida. I have read the foregoing and declare that to the best of my knowledge and 
belief, the information is true and correct. I attest that I have the authority to sign on behalf of my 
company and agree to comply, now and in the future, with all applicable Commission rules and 
orders. 

Further, I am aware that pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida Statutes, "Whoever 
knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to mislead a public 
servant in the performance of his official duty shall be guilty of a misdemeanor ofthe 
second degree, punishable as provided in s.775.082 and s. 775.083". 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

/', 7/lb /1 C) -; /Q JU/1 2-D OJ 

Mlcnael J. Shortley, III Date 

(716) 777-1028 (716) 546-7823 
Telephone Number Fax Number 

Address: 

180 South Clinton Avenue 
Rochester, New York 14646 

FORM PSCICMU 8 (11/95) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.815, 25-21O:J1 0, and 25-24.815 
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TECHNICAL CAPABILITY 

Frontier Communications of America, Inc. intends to provide local exchange service in 
Florida as a reseller of the incumbent local exchange company's facilities and as a facilities-based 
provider utilizing its own leased switches and local loops provided by the incumbent LECs. The 
Applicant will rely on its facilities-based underlying carriers for the operation and maintenance of 
the local exchange distribution network. The company will use only reputable underlying carriers 
to ensure that high quality serviice is provided to customers. 

Access to 911 emergency service will also be provided via the facilities of the underlying 
local exchange company. 

The Applicant's services will satiSfy the minimum standards established by the Florida 
Public Service Commission. The Company will file and maintain tariffs in the manner prescribed 
by the Commission and will meet the minimum basic local standards, including the quality of 
service and billing standards required of all LECs regulated by the Commission. 

As the foregoing illustrates, the Applicant possesses technical, managerial and financial 
support to provide local exchange service in Florida. 

The profiles of key personnel provided in Exhibit II of this application provide ample 
evidence of the company's technical capability to provide local services. 
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PART I 

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, "GCL" refers to Global Crossing Ltd. and 
the "Company,· "Global Crossing," "we," "our" and "us" refer to GCL·and its 
consolidated subsidiaries (unle~ls the context otherwise requires) • 

'l'hroughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K, references to ndol.lars" and "$" 

are to United States dollars~ 


ITEM 1. BUSINESS 

Introduction 

We are building and offering services over, the world's first int'egrated 
global fiber optic network, consisting of 101,000 announced route miles and 

.serving five continents, 27 countries and more than 200 major cities. Upon 
completion of our currently annclunced systems, our network and its 
telecommunications and Internet product offerings will be available in markets 
constituting over 80% of the wodd's international commu:D.ications traffic. 

We are included in both the S&P sao index and the Nasdaq 100 index. Our 

operations are headquartered in lIamilton, Bermuda, with executive offices in 

Los Angeles, California; ~orristown, ,New Jersey; and Rochester, New York. 


We are incorporated in Bermud.., and the address of our prinCipal executive 
offices is Wessex House, 45 Reid Street,' Hamilton HM12, Bermuda. Our telephone 
number is 441-296-8600. You may visit us at our website located at 
www.globalcrossing.com. 

Business Strategy 

Global Crossing's strategy is to be the premier provider of global Internet 

Protocol (nIP") and data services for both wholesale and retail customers. We 

are building a state-of-the-art fiber optic network that we believe to be of 

unprecedented global scope and scale to serve as the backbone for this 

strategy. We believe that our network will enable us to be the low cost 

service provider inmost of our addressable markets. 


Global Crossing offers a variety of voice, data and Internet services 

throughout most of North America and Europe. During 2000, we intend to 

aggressively rollout similar services in Asia, Mexico, Central America and 

South America. 


In Asia, these services will be offered through our Asia Global Crossing 

joint venture, with Softbank Co~). and Microsoft Corporation. Asia Global 

crossing aims to become the firllt truly pan-Asian carrier to offer worldwide 

bandwidth and data communications. As such, we believe that Asia Global 

Crossing will be uniquely positioned to take advantage of the anticipated 

explosive growth and i~creasingly favorable regulatory environment in the 

Asian telecommunications markets. 


In each of our businesses, we intend to expand significantly our qurrent 
product offerings, with an increasing focus on value-added services. Xn 
particular, our GlobalCenter subsidiary will expand its product set to become 
a single-source a-commerce service solution that will provide web-centric 
businesses with the high availability, flexibility and scalability necessary 
to compete in the rapidly expanding digital economy. 

Business Combinations ... 
Tbe Asia Global Crossing joint venture was established on November 24, 1999. 

We contributed to the joint venture our developmenc rights-in East Asia 
Crossing, an approximately 11,000 mile undersea network that will link several 
countries in eastern Asia, and our 58t interest in Pacific Crossing, an 
undersea system connecting . 
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the United States and Japan. Softbank Corp. and Microsoft corporation each 
contributed $175 million in cash to Asia Global crossing. In addition, 
Softbank and Microsoft committed to make a total of at least $200 million in 

capacity purchases ,on our network over a three-year period, expected to be 

utilized primarily on PC-l and SAC. Softbank and Microsoft have also agreed to 

use Asia Global Crossing's network in the region, subject to specified 

conditions. 


Also on November 24, 1999, 'we completed our acquisition of Racal Telecom, a 

group of ,wholly owned subsidiaries of Racal Electronics pIc, for approximately 

$1.6 billion in cash. Dacal Telecom owns one of the most extensive fiber 

telecommunications networks in the united Kingdom, consisting of approximately 

4,650 route miles of fiber and reaching more than 2,000 cities and towns. 


On September 2a, 1999, we completed the acquiSition of Frontier Corporation 

in a merger transaction valued at over $10 billion, with Frontier shareholders 

receiving 2.05 shares of our common stock for each share of Frontier common 

stock held. Frontier is one of the largest long distance telecommunications 

companies in the united States and one of the leading providers of facilities­

based integrated communications and Internet services. 


On July 2. 1999, we completed our acquiSition of the Global Marine Systems 

division of Cable & Wireless pIc for approximately $90a million in cash and 

assumed liabilities. Global Marine Systems owns the largest fleet of .cable 

laying and maintenance vessels in the world and currently services more than a 

third of the world' ,s undersea cable miles. 


Recent Developments 

On March 2, 2000, we announcedl that Leo Bindery had succeeded Robert 

Annunziata as Global Crossing's Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Hindery wi~l also 

continue to serve as Chief ExeC'llitive Officer of GlobalCenter Inc., our' 

subSidiary that provides comple:ll: web, hosting and Internet infrastructure 

services. Mr. Annunziata will cClntinue as a director of Global Crossing. In 

addition, on March 2, 2000, we also announced our intentions to create a 

tracking stock for GlobalCenter, which will continue to complement our 

worldwide operations. ' 


On February 29, 2000, we announced that we had concluded an agreement to 

provide substantial additional capacity to Deutsche Telekom AG. Total capacity 

sold to Deutsche Telekom is now 35 gigabits per second (nGbpsn) on AC-1, the 

fiber-optic system that provides a link between North America and Germany. 


On February 22, 2000, we anno~~ced a definitive agreement to acquire IXnet, 

Inc., a leading provider of specialized IP-based network services to the 

global financial services community, and its parent company, IPC 

Communications, Inc., in exchange for shares of common stock of Global 

Crossing valued at approximately $3.a biilion. under the terms of the 

definitive merger agreement, 1.~84 Global Crossing shares will be exchanged 

for each IXnet share not owned by IPC and 5.417 Global Crossing shares will be 

exchanged for each share of IPC. The aCquisition is expected to be completed 

in the second quarter of 2000 and is subject to regulatory approval and 

customary closing conditions. ­

On January 26, 2000, our Asia Global CrosllIing joint venture announced an 

agreement to create GlobalCentel~ Japan, a joint venture with Japan's Internet 

Research Institute, Inc. (nIRI"l. G10balCenter Japan will design, develop and 

construct a media distribution c:enter in Japan providing connectivity 

worldwide through the Global Crc)sslI1.9 Network. The joint venture will also 


" 	 develop and provide complex web hOsting services, e-commerce support and 
applications hosting solutions. Asia Global Crossing will own 89 percent of 
GlobalCenter Japan, with I,RI owning the remaining 11 p!rt:ent. 

On January 12, 2000, we established a joint venture, called Hutchison Global 

Crossing, with Hutchison Nhampoa Limited to pursue fixed-IIne 

telecommunications and Internet opportunities in Hong Kong. For its 50% share, 

HUtchison Nbampoa contributed to the joint venture its building-to-building 

fixed-line telecommunications network in Hong Kong and a number of Internet­

related assets. In addition, Hutchison Nhampoa has agreed that any fixed-line 

telecommunications activities it: pursues in China will be carried out by 
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the joint venture. For our sot share, we provided to Hutchison Whampoa $400 
million in Global Crossing convertible preferred stock (convertible into 
shares of Global Crossing common stock at a rate of $45 per share) and 
committed to contribute to the jOint venture international telecommunications 
capacity rights -on our network and certain media distribution center 
capabilities which together are valued at $350 million, as well as $50 million 
in cash. We intend to integrate our interest in Hutchison Global Crossing into 
Asia Global Crossing. 

Services 

General 

We provide services in three principal segmiants. OUr telecommunications 
services segment offer~ a variety of integrated telecommunications products 
and services to customers through our global fiber OPtic network. Our 
~nstallation and maintenance services segment, consisting of our Global Marine 
Systems subsidiary, installs and maintains undersea fiber optic cable systems 
to carrier customers worldwide. Pinally, our incumbent local exchange carrier 
(UILEC") services segment provides local communications services through local 
exchange service providers in 13 states, serving over one million access 
lines. 

Telecommunications Services 

Global Crossing providep a ~~iety of ,integrated telecommunications and 
Internet-based products designed to meet the customer's total communications 
needs. Global Crossing provides domestic and international voice services, 
data products, Internet,.based sE!rvices, structured bandwidth services and 
other communications' products tel primarily small to mid-size business 
customers, web-centric businessEls and other telecommunication carriers. 
Beginning in 2000, we will begirt marketing products more intensely to large 
multinational customers who haVE! bandwidth-intensive applications and 
international requirements. Such customers demand global end-to-end solutions. 
We are well positioned to address this market due to tbe international scope 
and broadband capacity of our network along with the flexibility of product 
pricing to maintain competitiveness. 

Global Crossing offers the following products and services to its customers: 

Voice: SWitched and dedicated outbound voice services for local, 

domestic, and international traffic. 

Data Transport: Point-to-point data services in a number of products 

(including private line, ATM, frame relay, X.25 and Internet access) and 

varying bandwidth sizes (from fractional T-l toOC-192). 

Virtual Private Network ("WHir) I customizable network solutions where 

our customers create a private network by using the Global Crossing 

Network without purchasing dedicated facilities. Iri addition, customers 

have flexibility to change capacity requirements between points over 

time and reconfigure their VPNs to meet changing requirements. 

International Private Line (" IPL"); Expanded services prov~din!:l retail 

customers greater flexibil:Lty at reduced cost. We currently provide 

access to New York, London. Amsterdam, Frankfurt, Paris and Tokyo, with 

access expected to be available to 16 additional cities within the next 

six months. 

Web Hosting Services: A combination of digital distribution services, 

server co-location, equipment sales, consulting services and 

professional expertise aimed at,supporting customers' mission critical 

Internet operations. This prodUct is 'easily scalable to meet customer 

needs and is marketed primarily by our GlObalCenter subsidiary. 

Advanced Voice and Data· Se:~ices: These services ~otIIbil.ne traditional 


,voice or data products with additional features., Products include 
calling Card, aoo/aaa toll free services, voice mail, audio 
conferencing, video conferlancing and broadcast fax. ­

Advanced Internet Services: Products include basic dial-up and,dedicated 
Internet access along with web-based applications such as e-mail 
hosting, unified messaging, off-site ~ta storage and backup. 
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Structured Bandwidth Services: Historically, we have sold capacity on 
our systems on an InGiefeas:l,ble Right of Use ("IRun) basis, whereby the 
customer purchased a unit elf point to point capacity for the expected 
economic life of the systetll, typically in increments of l55 megabits per 
second ("Mbps"), a unit knellilln as an STM-l. However, with the 
consummation of our acquis:i.tion of Frontier in September 1999, we have 
begun to derive a significa~nt source of revenue from service offerings 
involving leases of capacity on our systems in smaller increments and 
for periods significantly Elhorter than the expected useful life of the 
system. From time to time, we also engage in sales of "dark- fiber 
(i.e., fiber that has not been equipped with the electronic components 
necessary for telecommunications transmission). 

Payment for long-term leases of capacity or dark fiber is typically made 
in advance of activation, although in some cases a customer's payments 
are'made in installments over two to four years. For sbort~term 
bandwidth services, customers are'typically billed on a monthly hasis. 

Due to the breadth of the Global crossing Network, we are uniquely 
positioned to offer worldwide capacity to our customers. Many customers 
acknowledge that their need for large bandwidth is increasing, but they 
are often uncertain with regard to the precise routes where their 
particular growth will take place. In order to stimulate customer 
loyalty and leverage this uncertainty, we have developed the Global 
Crossing Network Offer, which allows cuStomers'who can make a multi-year 
commitment the flexibility to activate oapacity where needed, in a 
"just-in-time- manner, in l~etUX1l for volume discounted pricing. As our 
network continues to expand., we are exploring other marketing programs 
that will provide further benefits to our customers and position Global 
Crossing as the broadband, :lnfrastructure provider of cheice. 

Moreover t because our cent:~alized Global Crossing Network Center 
("GCNC") t located in The Dc,cklands, London, England, enables us to 
monitor and direct transmission on our cable systems worldwide, we 
believe that we have a strategic advantage in being able to more quickly 
activate capacity for a customer on any of our systems. 

Switched Services: We provide originating and switched terminating 
services to long distance carriers over our switched services network. 
Such services are generally off~red on a month-to-month basis, and the 
service is billed on a minutes-of-use basis. 

Internet Protocol Services: We offer IP Services to carriers, Internet 
Service ProviderS' ("lSPs") and other business customers over our global 
lP network. Such services are offered on a month-to-month basis and 
generally billed on a megabit per second (Mbps) basis. 

Installation and Maintenance Services 

We offer both installation an,d, maintenance services for undersea cable 
systems through our Global Mari:ne Systems subsidiary. Global Marine -Systems 
has the largest fleet of cable ships in the world. comprised of both 
maintenance vessels and install,ation vessels. Tbese vessels operate throughout 
the world. Since the acquisitio:n, Global Marine Systems added three ships, 
with five additional ships to e:nter service early in 2000. Global Marine 
Systems also announced an agree'ment with'Maersk to charter ships as needed. 

'Global Marine. Systems' businEiss (:cX:isists' of two components: installation and 
maintenance. 

Maintenance~ Global Marine Systems is the worldl~ market leader for 
submarine cable maintenance wi~h 3l\ of the world market by value in 
1999. 
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Global Marine Systems' mainleenance business is centered around cable 
system security. Despite op1eimum route planning and installation, cables 
are sometimes damaged on trua seabed. The maintenance cable ship must be 
able to retrieve a partiall:~ buried cable down to two thousand meters as 
well as retrieve and repair a cable from the furthest ocean depths. With 
cable in water depths of up to nine thousand meters, the cable ship is a 
specialized vessel designed to operate continuously in the extreme 
weather conditions found in the major cable routes around the world. 

Installation: Global Marin.e Systems' installation business has' a market 
share in excess of 25', making it a leading competitor in the undersea 
telecommunica.tions installation industry. 
Revenue from installation is linked to the number of submarine 
telecommunication cable systems annually installed·worldwide. Such 
systems traverse many types of seabed, including active continental 
shelves, flat deep-water abyssal plains and mountainous oceanic ridges. 
The objectiv:e when installi:~g cable is to deploy it in such a way as to 
minimize the risk of damage to the cable either from external threats or 
from natural wear. effects caused by ocean curr.ents and tides. The cable 
can either be buried into the seabed if protection is required from 
threats such as fishing and anchoring or it can simply be laid across 
the surface of the seabed. 

ILEC Services 
Global Crossing's ILEC services segment comprises one of the largest local 

exchange service providers in the United States. This segment consists of 34 
regulated telephone operat:ing subsidiaries in 13 states, serving in excess of 
one million access lines. Such services are marketed under the name Frontier 
Telephone, a Frontier Communications Company. The local exchange carriers 
provide local, toll~ access and resale services, sell, install and maintain 
customer premises equipment and provide directory services. our ILEC services 
segment: excludes local services provided by our subsidiaries authorized as 
competitive local exchange carriers (nCLECsII), which services are included in 
our telecommunications services segment. Generally speaking, ILECs tend to be 
the original provider of local exchange service in a given area and, 
accordingly, receive' a greater degree of regulation than do CLECs and other 
carriers without market power. 

We have installed advanced digital switching platforms throughout all of our 
switching network, making it one of the first in the industry to be served by 
an entirely digital network for our local exchange companies. We have achieved 
substantial cost reductions through the elimination of duplicative services 
and procedures and the consolida.tion of administrative functions. We believe 
that additional cost reductions may be obtainable from advanced switching 
platforms and outside plant delivery systems. We intend to pursue additional 
ga~s in productivity by investing in these technologies where feasible and by 
reengineering customer service processes. 

Of the approximately 1,072,000 access lines in service an December 31, 1999, 
737,000 were residential lines and 335,000 were business lines. Long distance 
network service to and from poiD.ts outside of the teiephone companies' 
operating territories is provided by interconnection with the facilities of 
interexchange carriers. 

We are pursuing several alterIl,atives to provide expanded broadband 
capabilities to our customers. ~'o dat:e, we have installed over 31;000 fiber 
miles of fiber based network fac:ilities, totaling more than 930 route miles, 
in the Rochester, New York area to provide our customers with enhanced 
capacity and to enable us to off'er new products. We provide expanded broadband 
services to select customers, iD.cluding video-distance learning arrangements 
for educational ..institutions anell access· to'· SONET based fiber rings for major 
business customers. In addition to these offerings, we plan to aggressively 
begin marketing Digital Subscril:ler Line (IIDSL") services-in 2000. 

In connection with our integra,tion strategy, we have developed a program 
knOwn as "Frontier Long Distance:," whereby our local exchcmge companies resell 
our integrated services. We beli,eve that many customers prefer the convenience 
of obtaining their long distance: service through their local tele~hQne company 
and receiving a single bill. Frclntier Long Distance is currently offered in 
the product lines of most of Glclbal Crossing's local telephone exchange 
companies. 
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The Global Crossing Network 

The fiber optic cable systems that we have completed or that are under 
development will form a state-of-the-art interconnected worldw~de high 
capacity fiber optic network, The follOWing systems are currently in service: 

Atlantic Crossing-l, referrl!Ki to as "AC-l", an undersea system 
connecting the united Stateli and Europe; 

North American Crossing; re:Eerred to as "NAC", formerly part of ' 
Frontier, a terrestrial sys11::em connecting major cities in the United 
States; 

Pan European Crossing, referred to as ·PEC" , a primarily terrestrial 
system connecting major Buropean cities to AC-l; 

Racal Telecom Network, a terrestrial network in the United Kingdom to be 
operated in conjunetion,with PEC; 

Pacific Crossing, referred to as 'IPC-l", an undersea system connecting 
the United States and Japan; 

Global Access Ltd" referred to as "GAL", a terrestrial system 
connecting a number of major cities in Japan to PC-l; 

Hutchison Global Crossing, referred to as "HOC", a terrestrial network 
in Hong Kong, connecting to BAC; and 

Mid-Atlantic Crossing, referred to as "MAC-, an undersea system 
connecting the eastern United States and the Caribbean. 

The following systems are in varying stages of development: 

Atlantic Crossing-2 (RAC-2", and together with AC-l, referred to as 
"AC") , an undersea system that will connect the United States and 
Europe; 

East Asia Crossing, referred to as "BAC", an undersea system that will 
connect several countries in Asia to PC-l; 

Pan'American Crossing, referred to as "PAC", a primarily undersea system 
that will connect the western United States, Mexico, Panama, Venezuela 
and the Caribbean; and 

South American Crossing, referred to as •SAC I. , an undersea and 
terrestrial system that will connect the major cities of South America 
to MAC, PAC and the rest of our network. 

Although many of these fiber optic cable systems are wholly-owned, some are 
being developed through j oint ventures with one or more partners. BAC and our 
58' economic interest in PC-l are being developed through our Asia Global 
Crossing joint venture, for which we are responsible for management and 
operation. In addition, we expect to construct parts of the terrestrial 
portion of SAC through joint venture arrangements, and terrestrial 
connectivity to PAC in Mexico will similarly be developed through a joint 
venture. We will be responsible for management and operation of these 
entities. Finally, we own ~ SO, interest in Hutchison Global Crossing and a 
4n interest in Global Access Lt:d.. which is constructing GAL. Management and 
operation of these two entities will be performed by or with our joint venture 
partners. 	 . 

All of our undersea systems aJ:~e equipped with state-of-the-art dense wave 
division multiplexing (1I0W:cM") ,t:ecbnology, a method of increasing the amount 

". 	 of a cable' s tr!'1nsmission capad:i,ty "through' installation of electronic 
equiplll!llt at cab"le landing stations and without requiring the undersea cable 
to be physically handled. 

The twin operations and management centers for the 'Global Crossing Network 
are the Customer Care Center, located in Bermuda, and the -SeNC, located in The 
Docklands, London, England. These two facilities provide cOmplete customer 
support--from provisioning and assistance to billing. From the GeNC, Global 
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Crossing technicians and network managers monitor and control all undersea 
cable systems. shore station e~lipment and terrestrial facilities worldwide. 
The GCNC began operations in tru! fourth quarter of 1999. 

Network Systems 

Atlantic Crossing 

AC-1, our first undersea fiber optic cable in the Atlantic region, is an 
approximately 9.000 mile, four fiber pair self-healing ring that connects the 
United States and Europe with landing stations in the United States, the ' 
United Kingdom, the Netherlands and Germany. The full ring currently offers 80 
Gbps of service capacity and is being upgraded to offer 140 Gbps. AC-1 started 
service on its united States to United Kingdom segment during May 1998, and 
the full system was completed during February 1999. 

on February 17, 2000, weannolmced that we had entered into an agreement 
with Level 3 Communications, Inc. to co-build an addi'tional high-capacity, 
fiber optic transatlantic cable. our two fiber pairs in the cable, to be 
called AC~2, will provide us with an additional 560 Gbps of capacity along 
this route. AC-2 will he integrclted with the two cables of AC-1, providing AC­
2 with self-healing capabilities. The new cable is expected to be in service 
in September 2000. In addition, Level 3 Communications, Inc. agreed to acquire 
capacity on AC-l to provide Level 3 Communications, Inc. with self-healing 
ring circuitry. 

North American Crossing 

We acquired HAC, formerly the Frontier Opt~onics Network, as a result of our 
September 1999 merger with Frontier Cozporation. The core fiber network, 
offering more than 13,000 route miles of optical fiber capacity, was completed 
in August 1999. The full network, conSisting of approximately 20,000 route 
miles, is expected to be completed by the end of March 2000. 

Pan European Crossing . 

Upon completion, PEC will consist of eight self-healing rings offering 
connectivity between AC and 41 major European metropolitan centers. Phase I of 
this system, connecting 13 cities, was completed in December 1999. The 
complete system, expected to consist of approximately 13,400 miles with 24 to 
72 fiber pairs as well as spare conduits, is anticipated to be completed by 
early 2001. 

We intend to operate the aacalL Telecom !letwork in conjunction with, PEC. 
Acquired in November 1999, the l~acal Telecom Network is one of the most 
extensive fiber telecommunicati<lns networks in the United Kingdom, consisting 
of approximately 4,500 route miles of fiber and reaching more than 2,000 
cities and towns. 

Pacific Crossing 

PC-l, our first undersea fibel~ optic cable in the Pacific region. is being 
developed as an approximately 1:1,100 mile, four fiber pair self-healing ring 
connecting California and Washiugton in the western United States with two 
landing sites in Japan. The PC-l self-healing ring is designed to operate
initially at 80 Gbps of service capacity, upgradable to a minimum of 160 Gbps. 
The first segment of PC-1 commenced service in December 1999 and the full 
system is anticipated ~o be completed in July 2000. 

Global Access Ltd. 

GAL is an approximately 1,000 mile fiber optic terrestrial system in Japan 
that, among other things, will (:onnect the PC-l cable stations with Tokyo, 

" 	 Osaka and Nagoyjl" Japan. The ffrst'phase of GAL I S development was completed in 
Decemb~r 1999" with the full system anticipated to be completed by the third 
quarter of 2000. 

Hutchison Global Crossing 

Hutchison Global Crossing ~I and operates a building-to-building fixed­
line telecommunications network in Hong Kong and a number of Internet-related 
assets. The fiber optic network as of December 1999 extended over y 4GO miles 
and is expected to be expanded during 2000. In addition, any fixed-line 
telecommunications activities that Hutchison Whampoa pursues in China will be 
carried out by the joint venture. 
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Mid-Atlantic Crossing 

MAC is an approximately 4,700 mile two fiber pair self-healing ring 
connecting New York, the CaribbEian and Florida. MAC connects to AC via its 
cable station in Brookhaven, NeTo' York, to NAC via its cable stations in 
Brookhaven and in Hollywood, Flc,rida and to SAC and PAC via its cable station 
in St. Croix, United States Vir5Jin Islands. This system is being designed to 
operate initially at 20 Gbps of service capacity, upgradable to a minimum of 
40 Gbps. MAC commenced service j,n January 2000, with the full system 
anticipated to be completed dudng 2000. 

East Asia Crossing 

EAC will be an approximately l.1,000 mile terrestrial and undersea cable 
system, Phase I of which will Unlt Japan, Taiwan, South Korea and Hong Kong, 
and Phase II of which is expectEid to further link Singapore, Malaysia and the 
Philippines. EAC is being desig:r:lated to operate initially at 80 Gbps of 
service capacity, upgradable to a minimum of 1,200 Gbps. The first segment of 
EAC"s development, linking JapaIl and Hong Kong, is expected to be completed by 
December 2000, with the full Phclse I system anticipated to be completed by 
June 2001. 

Pan American Crossing 

PAC will be an approximately Ei, 000 mile two fiber pair cable system 

connecting California, Mexico, 11anama, Venez~ela and the Caribbean. PAC will 

interconnect with PC- 1 and RAC through our ~anding station in Grover Beach, 

California, with MAC through ow~ landing station in St. Croix, United States 

Virgin Islands and with SAC thrc)ugh our landing station in Fort Amador, 

Panama. PAC is being designed tC) operate initially at 20 Gbps of service 

capacity, upgradable to a minimum of 40 Gbps. PAC is anticipated to commence 

service during 2000. 


In connection with PAC, we oml a 49% interest in Global Crossing Landing 
Mexicana, S. de R.L. de C.V., a joint venture company jointly owned with an 
affiliate of Bestel, S.A. de C.~7., that will provide approximately 2,200 miles 
of terrestrial connectivity in ~fexico and connect to the PAC system. 

South American Crossing 

SAC will be an approximately ~',900 mile undersea and 1,500 mile terrestrial 
fiber optic network directly liliking the major cities of South America through 
MAC and PAC to the United Statel', Mexico, Central America, the Caribbean, Asia 
and Europe. We plan to build SA(~ in three phases. The first two phases, 
providing Argentina and Brazil lfith connectivity to the Global Crossing 
Net~ork, are, scheduled to commellce service in the fourth quarter of 2000. The 
final phase, completing the 100l? around the continent, is scheduled for 

. completion in the- first quarter of 2001. Initial~y. SAC is expected to have a 
capacity of 40 Gbps and to be Ul?gradable to a minimum of 80 Gbps. 

The undersea portion of SAC will constitute a state-of-the-art four-fiber 
pair, self-healing ring, expect4~d to connect to landing sites at St. Croix; 
Fortaleza, Rio de Janeiro and Simtos, Brazil; Las Toninas, Argentina; 
Valparaiso, Chile; Lurin, Peru; Buenaventura, Colombia; and Fort Amador, 
Panama. Terrestrial segments ar4~ expected to connect to most major South 
American cities, including Rio de Janeiro, Sao Paulo, Buenos Aires, santiago, 
Lima, Cali and Bogota. The SAC :I:'ing is expected to be completed on its 
southern-most end by a terrestr:Lal link across the Andes between Las Toninas 
and Valparaiso. The PAC system :Erom Panama to St. Croix is expected to 
complete the ring. 

Additionaf Busi,ness Opportunit:Les' 

In addition to the core comp~lents of the Globa~ Crossing Network, we also 

intend from time. to time to mak4~ strategic investment;s and other contractual 

arrangements to better enable Uiil to expand our offerings of products and 

services. Some of these opportwlities include: 
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NextWave. We have agreed to make an equity investment in NextWave Telecom 
Inc. as part of NextWave's plan.of bankruptcy reorganization, subject to 
certain conditions relating to NextWave's retaining communications licenses 
from the Federal Communications Commission. In addition, we have entered into 
a strategic services agreement with NextWave making us the preferred provider 
of backhaul, long distance backbone, web-hosting and other communications 
services to NextWave. NextWave plans to deploy a wireless telecommunications 
network specifically designed to provide next generation wireless services, 
including Internet access. 

Telergy. We have entered into an agreement with Telergy, Inc., under which 
we have acquired 96 strands of fiber throughout the New York area on Telergy' a 
100-mile New York City network. In addition, the agreement provides us with an 
ownership position in Telergy and representation on its ,board of directors., 
GlODal Crossing and Telergy have also agreed to explore'co~build opportunities 
in the northeastern United States and to seek to utilize the Telergy network 
as needed for rechmdancy and termination of Global crossing traffic in certain 
areas. 

Africa ONE. We have been selec:ted to provide marine operations and to act as 
project manager of Africa ONE, aLn estimated $1.6 billion cable 'system 
consisting of a self-healing rir.Lg around the continent of Africa. We do not 
intend to make an,equity investment in this system. 

Principal CUstomers 

Although we have greatly expanded the number of products and services that 
we offer to our customers, our principal customers to date ha'Ve been licensed 
telecommunications providers, including poat: telephone and telegraph 
companies, Internet service providers and established and emerging 
telecommunications companies, that have purchased significant amounts of 
capacity on our systems worldwide. Significant customers in our 
telecommunications services segtl1ent include Deutsche Telekom, Met Worldcom, 
Level 3 Communications, KPN Qwest, Teleglobe, Telia, British Telecom, Viatel 
and AT&T. In addition, the largest of our web hosting customers include 
Yahool,The Motley Fool, Ziff-Davis, MP3.com and eToys. 

Principal Suppliers 

'Our principal suppliers are the companies that are constructing the various 
cable systems that comprise the Global Crossing Network. Tyco Submarine 
Systems Ltd. (~TSSL") completed construction of AC-1; is responsible for the 
design and installation of PAC; together with Alcatel, is responsihle for 
design and installation of MAC; and, together with KOkusai Denshin Denwa­
Submarine Cable Systems ("KDD-SC:S") (as a subcontractor), is responsible for 
design and installation of PC-l. Alcatel is responsible for the design and 
construction of SAC, while KDO-SCS is responsible for the design and 
construction of the first phase of, EAC. We utilize multiple suppliers for 
terrestrial systems. 

Competition 

Telecommunications Services 

The telecommunications industry is highly competitive. Many of our existing 
and potential competitors, particularly in our telecommunications services 
markets, compete with significantly greater financial. personnel, marketing 
and other resources, and have other competitive advantages. 

The telecommunications industry is in a period of rapid technological 
evolution, marked hy increasing fiher and satellite transmission capacity, new 
technologies and the intrOduction of new products and services. For instance, 
recent technological advances enablesubs1;antial increases in transmission 

" 	 capacity of bot~ new and existing fiber, which could affect capacity supply 
and de\II&Dd. Also, the introduction of new products or emergence of new 
technologies may reduce the cost or increase the supply ~~certain services 
similar to those. we provide. 
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High initial network cost and low marginal costs of carrying long distance 

traffic have led to a trend among non-facilities-based carriers to consolidate 
in order to achieve economies of scale. Such consolidation could result in 
larger, better-capitalized competitors. However, we believe that owning our 
o~ network will offer an advantage over carriers that lease network capacity. 

Increased consolidation and strategic alliances in the industry resulting 
from the Telecommunications Act .of 1996 (the "Telecom ActO) have allowed 
significant new competitors to elnter the industry, including local exchange 
carriers, previously prohibited from the inter-state market. 

In recent years, competition has increased dramatically in all areas of our 
communications services market. Our primary competitors include Qwest, AT&:T, 
Sprint and MCI Worldcomandforeign PTTs, all of whom have extensive 
experience in the long distance market. The impact of continuing consolidation 
in the industry is uncertain. In addition, pursuant to the Telecom Act, local 
exchange carriers, including Bell Atlantic, have begun to elnter the long 
distance market in their home service areas. 

As we expand our business into Internet protocol services, we are also 
competing with a wide range of companies that provide web hosting, Internet 
access and other Internet protocol products and services. Significant 
competitors include IBM, GTE, UUNet {a subsidiary of MCI WorldCom}, Digex and 
Exodus. In ~ddition, many smaller companies have entered the market for web­
based services. 

The routes addressed by our systems are currently served by several cable 
systems as well as satellites. Primary future sources of transatlantic 
competition ·for us may result from, among others, (1) TAT-14, a transatlantic 
cable system which is being developed by its consortium members, including 
British Telecom, AT&T, France Telecom and Deutsche Telekom, (2) Flag Atlantic­
1, a transatlantic system which is being developed by Flag Telecom and Global 
Telesystems Group Inc., (3) a transatlantic cable system being developed by 
Level 3 (the other half of the cable we are co-building as AC-2); and (4) 
Hibernia, a transatlantic cable system being developed by Worldwide Fiber J:nc. 

Similarly, we expect to face competition in the transpacific market from, 
among others, (1) the China-U.S. Cable Network, a transpacific system being 
developed as a ·private cable system" by fourteen large carriers, including 
aBC Communications Inc., MCl: WorldCom Inc., AT&T and Sprint, most of which 
have traditionally sponsored consortium cables and (2) the Japan-U.S. Cable 
Network, a transpacific system tieing developed by a consortium of major 
telecommunications carriers, inc:luding MCI WorldCom Inc., AT&T, Kokusai 
Denshin Denwa Co. Ltd., Nippon ']~elegraph and Telephone Corp., Cable &: Wireless 
and GTE. 

In addition, we will face ccm~etition on PEC, our tranS-European network. 
There are several carriers, including Viatel, KPN-Qwest, MCI WorldCom, Inc., a 
joint venture between Deutsche Telekom and France Telecom, British Telecom, 
Global Telesystems Group and a joint venture between Level 3 and COLT Telecom 
Group plc, whi~h are currently planning or building trans-European network 
assets. 

We also face competition for cur SAC network in South America. At least six 
other systems are planned to be completed in the region by the third quarter 
of 2001, including two consortium cables (Americas-2 and Atlantis-2~; 
Atlantica-1, a ring network being constructed by GlobeNet connecting 
Venezuela, Brazil, and (through terrestrial cables) Argentina to North 
America.; and SAm-1, a ring systl!m 1;Ieing constructed by Telefonica S.A. and 
TSSL connecting Brazil, Argentula, Chile, Peru and Colombia to the United 
States. In addition, we may faCE! competition from existing and planned 
regional systems and satellites on our MAC and PAC routes, where entrants are 
~ing for purchases from a S1lIaH .but rapidly growing customer base. 

In addition to' the systems mentioned above, several other regional and 
global systems are being developed, most notably by TSSL, which. has recently 
announced its pl~s to build a worldwide cable netwo~k, and Project Oxygen, a 
global system being evaluated by the CTR Group, Ltd. 
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In the United States, there are several facilities-based long distance fiber 

optic necworks competing with our NAC cable system, including those of AT&T, 
Sprint, MCI WorldCom, Qwest, GTE, Broadwing Communications, Level 3 
Communications and Williams Communications. 

Installation and Maintenance Services 

Although Global Marine Systems is the world's largest undersea cable 
installation and maintenance company, with approximately 25\ of the industry's 
total vessels, it faces potential competition not only from existing market 
participants but also from potential new entrants. There are currently three 
other major supply companies in the undersea cable industry: TSSL, Alcatel and 
lCDD-SCS. Pirelli also has a presence in the industry, and there are a number 
of smaller suppliers which have ,focused primarily on regional routes or non­
repeatered systems. It is unclear whether TSSL will continue to provide 
significant installation and maintenance services to others following its 
announcement that it is constructing its own worldwide cable network., 

ILEC services 

We face many competitors in th.e provision of equipment and facilities used 
in connection with our local exchange networks, as this market has become 
increasingly competitive in recent years'. The market for the provision of 
local services itself is now competitive in Rochester, New York, as a ,result 
of the Open Market Plan, and the, 'I'elecqm Act is likely to result in 
significantly greater competitic1n in other markets. The Company's telephone 
properties outside the Rocheste,x', New York, area are experiencing competition 
in limited areas. 

Long distance companies largely access their end user customers through 
interconnection with looal excha,nge companies. These long distance companies 
pay access fees to the local exc:hange companies for these serv'ices. The 
provision of access services in Rochester and elsewhere by our ILEC services 
segment is considered to be cOlllJiletitive. 

Regulation 

OUr submarine and terrestrial fiber optic cable systems and 
telecommunications services are subject to regulation at the federal, state, 
and local levels in the UnitedSttates, as well as regulation by regulatory 
agencies in the various foreign countries in which we have facilities or 
operations. 

REGULATION IN THE UN'lTED STATES: 

Federal Regulation 

The Federal Communications COlmdssion (AFCC·) regulates the interstate and 
international telecommunicatio~1 facilities and services of telecommunications 
commo~ carriers. Specifically, c:ommcn carriers must comply with the 
requirements of the Communicatic!nS Act of 1934, as amended by the .'I'elecom Act. 
Implementation o~ the Telecom Act is subject to various feder~l and state 
rulemaking and judicial procedU1'es; therefore, the effects of the 'I'elecom Act 
on us cannot be accurately predicted. 

We have obtained authority from the FCC to provide international _ 
telecommunications services as a non-dominant carrier on a facilities-based 
and resale basis. We also haye obtained cable landing licenses that permit us 
to land and operate suJomarine cable systems in'V•.S. territory. Domestically, 
our subsidiaries provide local serVices as authorized CLECs in 34 states 
(including Washington D.C.). Other subsidiaries are certificated as ILECs in 
13 states. 

'The scope of ~ur activities in the 'United States makes us subject to 
varying, and sometimes conflicting, regulation. We are treated as non-dominant 
for our interstate and international operations. F.or leal exchange services, 
some of our subsidiaries are treated as ILECs and others as CLECs. Generally 
speaking, the FCC imposes a greater degree of regulation on ILECs and other 
dominant providers and less regulation on CLECs 
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and other carriers without market power. The issues discussed below may have 
positive effects on certain of our subsidiaries and negative effects on other 
subsidiaries, and, thus, the net effect on us cannot be accurately predicted. 

The intent of the Telecom Act is to increase competition in the U.S. 
telecommunications market. To achieve this goal, the Telecom Act seeks to open 
local access markets to competition by requiring ILECs to permit 
interconnection to their networks and imposing various other obligations on 
them. 

Interconnection. In August 1996, the FCC released its First Report and Order 
on ipterconnection, which establ:Lshed rules for the implementation of the 
Telecom Act's obligations. In Ju:Ly 1997, the U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals for 
the Eighth Circuit vacated porticms of the FCC's decision. On January :3 5, 
1999, the united States Supreme c:ourt reversed, and affirmed the FCC's 
authority to promulgate rules g~~erning pricing, found that the FCC had 
authority to promulgate a "pick and choose" rule for interconnection, and 
upheld most of the FCC's rules governing access to unbundled network elements. 
The Court remanded to the FCC the issue of which network elements must be 
unbundled by ILECs. on remand, the FCC retained most of its original list of 
network elements to be unbundled, but eliminated the requirements that lLECs 
provide unbundled access to (i) local switching for customers with four or 

. more lines in the most densely populated parts of the top 50 Metropolitan 
Statistical Areas, (ii) operator services, and (iii) directory assistance. The 
rules governing the priCing, terms, and conditions of interconnection 
agreements remain unsettled, and the scope of our interconnection rights and 
obligations, both as an lLEC and a CLEC, may change in ways that are not 
foreseeable. 

Unbundling and Collocation. In March 1999, the FCC required lLECs to offer 
unbundled loops and collocation on more favorable terms than were available 
previously. The FCC order permits collocation of equipment that can be used to 
provide advanced data services, such as Digital Subscriber Line services, and 
requires ILECs to permit ftcageless" collocation by CLECs. The FCC deferred 
action on its proposal to permit ILECs to offer advanced data services through 
separate affiliates and to free those affiliates from some of the obligations
of the Telecom Act. 

Universal Service. The Telecom Act required the FCC to restructure the 
manner in which universal service fund payments are established and 
distributed, and the FCC has significantly expanded the federal universal 
service subsidy regime to include low-income consumers. We are required to 
contribute to these programs based on our interstate and international revenue 
from. end-user telecommunications services. COntribution rates change 
quarterly. Currently, the contribution rate is 5.877% of interstate and 
international end-user telecommunications revenue. We are unable to specify
the amount of any universal serv·ice contributions that we will be required to 
make in future years. 

Reciprocal compensation. Under Che Telecom Act, a local exchange carrier 
that terminates calls to customers on its network is entitled to be 
compensated by the local exchange carrier of Che originating customer. Some 
ILECs have taken the position that compensation is not owed for inbound calls 
to Internet Service Providers ("lSI's") on the grounds that this type of 
traffic is not local and, thus, not covered by the terms of eXisting 
interconnection agreements. As a result, some ILECs have threatened~o 
withhold, and in some cases have withheld, compensation to CLECsfor such 
calls. The FCC has requested comments on the rules that it should adopt to 
govern compensation for ISP-boUILd traffic. Comments have been filed by 
interested parties and a decisiclIl. is expected in the first quarter of 2000. We 
cannot accura.tely predict how tiLe FCC will rule or what impact that rule may. 
have on future interconnection lLegotiations. 

as an ILEC in.~ew York,· we cUrrentlyar~ required to pay significant 
recipr~cal compensation payments for inbound calls to ISPs. The state public 
utility commissions ("PUCa") of Pennsylvania, Illinois., anQ. Mi~esota. states 
in which we also operate ILECs, also have concluded that reciprocal 
compensation is owed for ISP-bo\uUi calls. Any reciprocal compensation payments 
in~those states are not material to our operations. We cannot predict whether 
the amounts of our reciprocal compensation payments in these or other states 
will change in the future. 

12 

Copyright 2000 EDGAR Online, file, (ver 1.0//2.003) Page 14 



'-' '-' 

GLOBAL CROSSING LTD - JO-K -Ammal Report Date Filed: 311712000 
Access Charges. Our costs top-rovide long dist.ance services and our revenue 

from providing local services are affected by ongoing substantial changes in 
the "access charge N rates imposed by ILECs on long distance carriers for 
origination and termination of long distance calls over local facilities. 

The increased pricing flexibility of "price cap ILECs" (1. e. ILECs subj ect 
to the FCC's access charge priCE! cap rules), such as our Frontier ILEC 
subsidiaries, may have an adverse impact on our interstate access costs if not 
properly implemented by ILECs and enforced by the FCC, but could also make it 
easier for. price cap ILECs to offer reduced access charge rates in ~rkets 
subject to competition. The FCC is continuing to examine further access charge 
changes, including granting further pricing flexibility to price cap ILECs. 

Tariffing and Filing RequirelllEmts. Non-dominant carriers must file tariffs 
with the FCC stating the rates, terms, and co~di~ions of their interstate and 
international services. The FCC also imposes reporting and filing requirements 
on such carriers. We must file lleriodic reports regarding our interstate and 
international circuits and the deployment of network facilities. Traffic and 
revenue reports and universal service contribution worksheets also must be 
filed. Carriers also must obtain prior approval from or give notice to the FCC 
of certain transfers of control and assignlllE!nts of operating authorizations, 
as well as certain affiliations with foreign carriers. In addition, certain 
operating and services agreements with dominant foreign carriers must be filed 
with the FCC. 

Submarine Cables. In connecticln with the construction and operation of our 
submarine cable systems, we have obtained cable landing licenses for the AC-1, 
PC-1. MAC, PAC and SAC systems. These licenses give us authority to construct 
and land our submarine cables in the United States. In each case, the license 
permits the operation of the cable on a non-common carrier basis. Each of our 
cable landing licenses is valid for a period of 25 years from its grant. We 
are subject to various FCC reporting and filing requirements as the result of 
our holding of these cable landing licenses. 

State Rl!gulation 

In addition to regulation by the FCC, the intrastate services of each of our 
local telephone service companies are regulated by the PUCs of the respective 
states in which each subsidiary operates with respect to such issues as 
prices, service quality, the is!luance of securities, and the construction of 
facilities. To provide! intrastate services, we generally must obtain a 
certificate of public convenience and necessity from the appropriate PUC and 
comply with state requirements for telecommunications utilities. The level of 
regulation imposed by state PUCfl varies. Generally, 'however, ILECs are 
regulated more heavily than competitive providers. our subsidiaries are 
certificated as ILECs in 13 stat:es: New York, Alabama, Florida, Georgia, 
Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Ohio, pennsylvania, 
and Wisconsin. Other subsidiaries provide competitive local services in 34 
states (including Washington D.C.). 

A number of states in which we have local or long distance operations are 

conducting procaedings related to the rules under which carriers may operate 

in an increasingly competitive environment. The issues that the PUCs are 

examining include unbundling of local network elements, local interconnection 

obligations, dialing parity for intra-LATA (or short-haul) toll traffic, local 

number portability, resale of local exchange service and universal service. We 

cannot predict how these proceedings will ultimately be resolved, nor when 

decisions will be issued. 


Open Market Plan. Our Frontier sUbsidiary in Rochester, New York began its 
sixth year of operations under the Open Market Plan in January 2000. The Open 
Market Plan promotes telecommunications competition in the Rochester, New York 
marketplace by providing for (i) interconnection of cClmpeting local networks 
including reciprocal cOmpensat!cln for terminating traffic, (ii) equal access 
to network datab-ases, (iii) aCCE!SS to local telephone numbers, (iv) service 
provider telephone number portability, and (v) certai~.who~esal~ discounts to 
resellers of local services. 

13 

Copyright 1000 EDGAR Online. blc. (ver 1.0112.003) Page 15 



'-"' "-' 

GLOBAL CROSSING LTD -I()"K -Annual Report Date Filed: 3/1711000 
During the operation of the Open Market Plan, we are regulated under pure 

price cap regulation rather than rate-of-return regulation. Planned rate 
reductions of $21.0 million (the "Rate stabilization Plan") are being 
implemented for Rochester area consumers, including $18.0 million of 
reductions that occurred through 1999, and an additional $l.5 million which 
commenced in January 2QOO. Rates charged for basic residential and business 
telephone service may not be increased during the seven-year period of the 
Plan. We are allowed to raise prices on certain enhanced products such as 
Caller ID and call forwarding. 

On August 25, 1999, the New York State Public Service Commission ("NYSPSC") 
solicited" comments regarding our Rochester local exchange subsidiary's 
financial condition. earnings and service quality, competition in the 
Roch,ster market, and the terms and conditions of the Open Market Plan. 
Settlement discussions in this NYSPSC proceeding have resulted in a Joint 
Proposal for Open Market Plan Continuation and Modification (the "Joint 
Proposal"). which is subject to NYSPSC review and approval. If approved, our 
Frontier lLEC subsidiary in New York will (i) remain under "price cap" 
regulation through 2002 (and possibly for an additional two years); (ii) be 
required to improve specified elements of service quality and to offer certain 
additional services; (iii) be subject to increased potential penalties related 
to service targets; and (iv) be required to lower certain residential and 
commercial service rates. The impact of the Joint Proposal, if adopted, wil~. 
not have a material adverse effect on Global Crossing as a whole. The NYSPSC 
also has issued orders on other regulatory issues that affect our New York 
Frontier subsidiaries, related to service quality, staff allocations. 
provisions, and relations with ether carriers. 

Dividend Policy. The Open Market Plan prohibits the payment of dividends by 
Frontier Telephone of Rochester, Inc. ("FTR"). to Frontier Corporation ("FRO") 
if (i) FTR' s senior debt is down.graded to "BBB" by Standard .Ii Poor's (ItS&'r.P"), 
or the equivalent rating by other rating agencies, or is placed on credit 
watch for such a downgrade, or (ii) a service quality penalty is imposed under 
the Open Market Plan. Dividend payments to FRO also require FTR's directors to 
certify that such dividends will not impairFTR's service quality or its 
ability to finance its shor~ and long-term capital needs on reasonable terms 
while maintaining an stoP debt ralting target of "A". 

In 1999, FTR achieved the required service levels, but a previously imposed 
temporary restriction on dividend payments from FTR to FRO will remain in 
place until the NYSPSC is satisfied that FTR's service levels demonstrate tha~ 
FTR has rectified the service deficiency. In addition. on June 2, 1999, 
Moody's and S&P downgraded FTR'EI senior debt ratings from A1/AA.- to Baa2/BBB,
respectively. These ratings actj.ons were a result of the announced merger 
between FRO and Global Crossing Ltd., and did not reflect any change in the 
financial condition or creditwOl:thiness of :iTR. These actions triggered an 
additional dividend restriction for FTR, which will be in effect until either 
the NYSPSC approves the payment of dividends or FTR's senior debt rating rises 
above BBB (for S&'r.P) or the equivalent for other rating agencies. On December 
22, 1999, S'&:P'downgraded FTR's senior debt rating to BB+ and, on January 18, 
2000, Duff & Phelps downgraded FTR's senior debt rating to A. Both rating 
agencies stated that their actions reflected their views that a large 
separation in ratings could not be maintained between an operating subsidiary 
and its parent. Accordingly, it remains uncertain when the restriction on 
payment of dividends from FTR to FRO will be lifted. 

Local Regulation 

OUr activities also are subjec:t to local regulation. including compliance
with franchise obligations, building codes, and local licensing requirements. 
Such regulations vary widely by jurisdiction. To construct and install . 
transmission facilities, we may need to obtain rights-of-way over public and 
p~ivately o~ed land. 

~TION'AL lU:GuLATION 

OUr construction and operation of telec01llll1Unications net~rks' and our 
provision of tefecommunications services in foreign countries require us to 
obtain a variety of permits, licenses. and authorizations-in the ordinary 
course of business. In addition to telecommunications licenses and 
authorizations, we may be required to obtain environmental, construction, 
zoning and other permits, licenses. and authorizations. The construction and 
operation of our facilities and our provision of telecommunications services 
may subject us to regulation in other countries at the national, state, 
provincial, and local levels. 
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Europe 

In connection with the constru,::tion and operation of the PEe network, we 
have obtained telecommunications licenses and authorizations in Belgium, 
France, Germany, Ireland, Italy, the Netherlands, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland 
and the united Kingdom. No telecommunications authorization is required for us 
to construct and operate facilities or provide services in Denmark. We expect 
to ,obtain additional telecommuni,cations licenses and authorizations in Europe 
in the ordinary course of business. 

OUr activities in Europe are subject to regulation by the European Union and 
national regulatory authorities. The level of regulation and the regulatory
obligations and rights that attach to us as a licensee in each country vary.
In all countries, we, as a competitive entrant, are currently considered to 
lack significant market power ("SMPH), which generally subjects us to less 
regulation than providers that are deemed to possess SMP. As we complete 
construction of the PEC network and begin providing services in Europe, we 
anticipate that the regulatory obligations imposed on us will increase. In 
addition, we may be required to address many of the nlocal competition" issues 
that we face as a competitive provider in the United States, such as 
interconnection, collocation, unbundling, reciprocal compensation, and resale. 
The laws and regulations of the Member States of the EO on these issues vary. 
Various of the Member States have opened ~r concluded public consultations 
relating to these and other "local competition" issues. We cannot predict what 
decisions will be made by the EO and the Member States in these ongoing , 
proceedings or the effects of any those decisions on our op~ations. 

Asia 

We are increasing the scope of our activities in Asia. In connection with 
the construction and operation of the GAL network in Japan, GAL has received a 
Japanese Type I telecommunications license. In addition, on February 18, 2000, 
our subsidiary, Global Crossing Japan, received a Special Type II license in 
Japan, which authorizes us to provide a variety of international 
telecommunications services in Japan. As a Japanese telecommunications 
licensee, we are subject to a range of regulatory requirements. In late 1999, 
the Japanese Ministry of Post and Communications (the "MPT-) opened a public 
consultation on simplifying the telecommunications regulatory process. We have 
submitted cqmments in that proceeding. We cannot accurately predict whether or 
when a decision will be issued, whether the MPT will simplify the regulatory 
regime, or the potential effectsl of such an action. 

On February 1, 2000, Asia Global Crossing Hong ICong Ltd. ("AGC-n") was 
advised by a Letter of Intent fI~om the Rong ICong telecommunications regulator 
that, upon the satisfaction of certain conditions, AGC-HK will be issued an 
External Fixed Telecommunications Network Services ("EFTNSH) license to land 

',the EAC cable and to provide international telecommunications facilities and 
services in Hong Kong. Our Hutchison Global Crossing ("HGC-) joint venture is 
authorized to construct and opeJ~ate local and international fixed-line 
telecommunications networks and to provide domestic and international 
telecommunications services in Hong ICong. As a result of the HGC venture and 
our EFtNS license, we are subject to regulatory oversight and supervision in 
Hong Kong. 	 . 

The status of liberalization ()f the telecommunications regulatory regimes of 
the Asian countries in which we intend to operate varies. Some countries allow 
full competition in the .telecomtD.unications sector, while others limit 
competition for most services. Most of the countries in the region have 
committed to liberalizing their telecommunications regimes and opening their, 
telecommunications markets to foreign investment as part of the World Trade 
Organization '"NTO-) Agreement on T.elecommunications. China also has committed 

.. 	 td liberalizing, .its telecommunications markets and reducing foreign ownership 
limitations if it is admitted to the WTO. We cannot be certain whether this 
liberalizing trend will continue or accurately predict~the.pace,and scope of 
liberalization. It is possible that one or more of the countries in which we 
operate will slow or halt the Hberalization of its telecommunications 
ma~kets. The effect of such an action on.us cannot be accu:ately predicted. 
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Latin America 

In Latin America, we currently are constructing the MAC, PAC and SAC 
systems. In connection with the construction of these cable systems, we have 
obtained cable landing licenses and/or telecommunications licenses in 
Argentina, Panama, and the United States. Applications have been filed in 
Mexico, Venezuela and Brazil and we expect to file applications in additional 
Latin American countries in the ordinary course of business. 

As in Asia, the status of liberalization of the telecommunications,markets 
of Latin America varies. All of the countries in which we currently plan to 
have operations are members of the WTO and have committed to liberalizing 
their telecommunications markets and lifting foreign ownership restrictions. 
Some countries now permit competition for all telecommunications facilities 
and services, while others allow competition for some facilities and services, 
but restrict competition for other services. Some countries in which we 
operate or intend to operate currently impose limits on foreign ownership of 
telecommunications carriers. We anticipate that we will be granted authority 
to land and operate our submarin,e cable systems in each of the countries in 
which they currently are expected to land. It is possible, however, that one 
or more of these countries will not grant authority to land a,submarine cable 
or will impose'conditions that make landing and operating the cable 
commercially unfeasible. 

The telecommunications regulatory regimes of many Latin American countries 
are in the process of developmeIl,t. Many issues, such as regulation of 
incumbent providers, interconnec~tion, unbuncUing of local loops, resale of 
telecommunications services, and. pricing hav~ not been addressed fully or at 
all. We cannot accurately predic~t whether or'how these issues will be resolved 
and their impact on our operatic,ns in Latin America. 

Employees 

As of December 31, 1999, we ha,d approximately 12,400 employees. We consider 
our relations with our employees: to' be good. 

Forward Looking Statements and Risk Factors 

We have included in this Annua,l Report on Form 10-K forward-looking 
statements that state our own OJ:' our management's intentions, beliefs, 
expectations or predictions for the future. Forward-looking statements are 
subject to a number of risks, aSlsumptions and uncertainties which could cause 
our actual results to differ materially from those projected in the forward­
looking statements. The discussi.ons set forth below constitute cautionary 
statements identifying important: factors with respect to such forward-looking 
statements, including risks and uncertainties, that could cause actual results 
to differ materiallY from result:s referred to in the forward-looking 
statements. There can be no asst~ance that our expectations regarding any of 
these matters will be fulfilled. 

We cannot assure you of the successful integration of newly acquired 
businesses. We 'cannot assure you that the expected benefits will be 
achieved. 

Part of our growth strategy ifI to make selective strategic acquisitions of 
businesses operated by others. J~chieving the benefits of these acquisitions 
will depend in part on the inteSJration of those businesses with our business 
in an efficient manner. We cannclt assure you that this will happen or that it 
will happen in a timely manner. Th~ consolidation of operations following 
these acquisitions will often rE~quire substantial attention from management. 
The diversion of management attEmtion and any diffi~lties encountered in the 
transition and integration prOCE~SS could have a material adverse effect on the 
revenue, levels of expenses an4 OPerating results of the combined company. We 
cannot assure you that the combinedc::ompany will realize any of the 
anticipated benefits of any acquisition. 
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It may be difficult to evaluate our business because we have a limited 
operating history. 

We were organized in March 1997 and, with the exception of our Frontier, 
Global Marine Systems and Racal Telecom subsidiaries, have a limited operating 
history. Because of this limited history and our rapid growth though 
successive acquisi~ions, it may be difficult for potential investors to 
evaluate the performance of our operations. In particular, comparisons of our 
results of operations from one period to another may.not be fully indicative 
of our current ability to conduc:t our business. 

We may encounter difficulties in completing our cable systems currently 
under development. 

Our al:lility to achieve our strategic objectives will depend in large part 
upon the successful~ timely and cost-effective completion of our cable systems 
currently under development, as well as on achieving substantial capacity 
sales on these systems once they become operational and on our other 
operational systems. The construction of these systems will be affected by a 
variety of factors, uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond 
our control, including: 

our ability to manage their construction effectively; 

our ability to obtain all construction and operating permits and 
licenses; 

third-party contractors peJ::forming their obligations on schedule; and 

our ability to enter into f:avoral:lle construction contracts with a 
limited number of supplierEI. 

These factors may significantl.y delay or prevent completion of one or more 
of our systems currently under development, which could have a material 
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

'We cannot assure you that each of these systems will be completed at the 
cost and in the time frame currently estimated by us, or even at all. Although 
we award contracts for construction of our systems to suppliers who in most 
cases are expected to be bound l:IY a fixed-price construction cost schedule and 
to provide guarantees in respect of completion dates and system design 
specifications, we cannot assure you that the actual construction costs or the 
time required to complete these systems will not exceed our current estimates. 
These circumstances could have a material adverse effect on our business, 
financial condition and results of operations. 

Our revenue growth plan depends on product and service expansion. 

We intend to grow revenue and profits by: 

introducing new services &tId products; 

developing or acquiring additional cable systems; and 

upgrading capacity on our planned systems. 

Our inability to effect these expansions of our products and services could 
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and 
results of operations. 

We face competition which may reduce demand for our products and services. 

The international telecomnrunl,c:ati\:lnsindustry is highly compet~tive. We 
compete primarily on the basis of price, availal:lility, service quality and 
relial:l~lity, customer service &tId the location of our systems and services. 
The ability of our competitors to provide comparable Jj>rod.ucts and. services at 
similar prices could have a mate!rial adverse effect on demand for our products 
and services. In addition, much of our planned growtli is predicated upon the 
gr~wth in demand for internatioI~l telecommunications cap~ity and services. 
We cannot assure you that this anticipated demand growth will occur. 

17 

Copyright 2000 EDGAR Ol/lille, Illc. (ver 1.0112.003) Page 19 



'--" "'-' 

GLOBAL CROSSING LTD -10-K -AI!Ilual Report Date Filed: 31/711000 
We are growing rapidly in a changing industry. 

Our strategy is to be the premier provider of global broadband 
telecommunication services for both wholesale and retail customers. As a 
result of this aggressive strategy-, we are experiencing rapid expansion and 
expect it to continue for the foreseeable future. This growth has increased 
our operating complexity. At the: same time, the international 
telecommunications- industry is c:hanging rapidly due to, among other things: 

the easing of regulatory constraints; 

the privatization ~f established carriers; 

the expansion of telecommunications infrastructure; 

the growth in demand for bandwidth caused by expansion of Internet and 
data transmissions; ­

the globalization of the world's economies; and 

the changing technology for wired, wireless and satellite communication. 

We cannot assure you that we will succeed in adapting to the rapid changes 
in the international telecommunications industry, 

We may have difficulty in obtaining the additional financing requi::: co 
develop our business. 

In order to further implement our aggressive growth strategy, we anticipate 
that we will require- substantial additional equity and debt financing. llIld.er 
our business plan, we and our aHiliates expect to require significant 
financing by the end of_ 2000 to build out the Global Crossing Network and 
provide additional services to C)ur customers. Obtaining additional financing 
will be subject to a number of j:actors, including, without limitation, the 
following: 

the state of operations of our company; 

our actual or anticipated l;esults of operations, financial condition and 
cash flows; 

investor sentiment towards companies with substantial international'­ operations; and 

generally prevailing market conditions. 
If additional funds are raised through the issuance of equity securities, 

the percentage ownership of our then current shareholders will be reduced, and 
the new equity securities may have rights, preferences or privileges senior to 
those of the holders of our common stock. If additional funds are raised 
through the issuance of debt securities, these securities would have some 
rights, preferences and privileges senior to those of the holders of our 
common stock, ~d the terms of this debt could impose restrictions on our 
operations and result in significant interest expense to us. In the event that 
we are unable to raise sufficient financing on satisfactory terms and 
conditions in the future, our company would be adversely affected. 

We face price declines that could adversely affect our business. 

Advances in fiber optic technology have resulted in significant per circuit 
price declines in the fiber optic cable transmission industry. 'Recent changes 
in technology caused prices for telecommunications capacity and services to go 
down even further. If there is less demand than we project or a b~gger drop in 
prices than we project, there could be a material adverse effect ()n our 
business, financial conditi()n and results of operations. We cannot assure you, 
even if our projecti()ns with respect to those factors are realized, that we 
will be able to implement our strategy or that our strategy will be successful 
in the rapidly evolving telecommunica-tions market, 

We c'bnfront several system risks that could aff~ct oJ.1%:. operations.
Each of our systems is and will be subject to the risks inherent in a large­

scale. complex fiber optic telecommunications system; The operation, 
~nistration, maintenance and repair of our systems requires the 
coordination and integration of sophisticated and highly specialized hardware 
and software technologies, and equipment located throughout the world. We 
cannot assure you that our systems will continue to function as e~~cted in a 
cost-effective manner. The failure of the hardware or software to function as 
required could render a cable system unable to perform at design 
specifications. 
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Each of our undersea systems e,ither has or is expected to have a design life 

of generally 25 years, while eac:h of our terrestrial systems either has or is 

expected to have a design life clf at least 20 years. The economic lives of 

these systems, however, are expe:cted to be shorter than their design lives, 

and we cannot assure you of the actual useful life' of any of these systems. A 

nu:mber of factors will ultimately affect the useful life of each of our 

systems, including, among other things: 


qu41ity of construction; 

unexpected damage or deterioration;. and 

technological or economic obsolescence. 

Failure of any of our systems to operate for its full design life could have 

a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of 

operations. 


our success depends on our ability to maintain, hire and successfully 
integrate key pers~el. 

our future success depends on the skills, experience and efforts of our 

officers and key technical and Illiales employees. In particular, our senior 

management bas significant expe:dence in the telecOllllllUllications and Internet 

industries, and the loss of any of them could negatively affect our ability to 

execute our business strategy. l:n addition, we cannot assure you that we will 

be able to integrate new managelilent into our: existing operations. Competition 

for these individuals is intensEl, and we may not be able to attract, motivate 

and retain highly skilled qualified personnel. We do not have Wkey person" 

life insurance policies covering any of our employees. 


We face risks associated with international operations. 

Because we will derive substantial revenue from international operations and 

intend to have substantial physical assets in several jurisdictions along our 

routes, our business is subject to risks inherent in international operations, 

including: 


political and economic conditions; 

unexpected changes in regulatory environments; 

exposure to different legal. standards; and 

difficulties in staffing al:Ld managing operations. 

We have not experienced any llIi!Lterial adverse effects with respect to our 

foreign operations arising from these factors. However, problems associated 

with these risks could arise in the future. Finally, managing operations in 

multiple jurisdictions may placEI further strain on our ability to manage our 

overall growth. 


Because many of our customers deal predominantly in foreign currencies, we 

may be exposed to exchange rate risks and our net income may suffer due to 

currency translations. 


We primarily invoice for our services in U. S. dollars; however, most of our 

customers and many of our prospective customers derive their revenue in 

currencies other than u.s. dollars. The obligations of customers with 

substantial revenue in foreign currencies may he subject to unpredictable and 

indeterminate increases in the event that such currencies devalue relative to 


.. 	 tlie U.S. dollar" Furthermore, such 'C::Ustome-rs may become subject to exchange 
contro~ regulations restricting the conversion of their revenue currencies 
into U.S. dollars. In such event, the affected customers-may not be &ble to 
pay us in U.S. d?llars. In addition, where we invoic~ for our services in 
currencies other than U. S. dollnrs, our net income may suffer due to currency 
translations in the event that fluch currencies devalue rel...tive to the U.S. 
dollar and we do not elect to enter into currency hedging arrangements in 
respect of those payment OOligal:ions. 
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our operations are subject to regulation in the United States and abroad 


and require us to obtain and maintain a number of governmental licenses and 

permits. If we fail to comply ~/ith those regulatory requirements or obtain 

and maintain those licenses and pentits, we may not be able to conduct our 

business. 


In the United States, our intrastate, interstate, and international 
telecommunications networks and services are subject to regulation at the 
federal, state, and local levels. We also have facilities and provide services 
in numerous countries in Europe, Latin America, and Asia. our operations in 
those countries are subject to regulation at the national level and, in some 
cases, at the state, provincial, and local levels. 

Our interstate and internat:Lonal operations in the United States are 
governed by the Communicaticms Act of 1934, as amended by the Telecom 

, Act. There are several ongoing proceedings at the FCC and in the federal 
courts regarding the implemlmtation of various aspects of the Telecom 
Act. The outcomes of these l~roceedings may affect.the manner in which we 
are permitted to provide ~~ services in the united States and may have 
a material adverse effect on our operations. 

The intrastate activities of our local telephone service companies are 
reguIated by the states in which they do business. A number of states in 
which we operate are conducting proceedings related to the provision of 
services in a competitive telecommunications environment. These 
proceedings may affect the manner in which we are pentitted to provide 
our services in one or more states and may have a material adverse 
effect on our operations. 

our operations outside the United States are governed by the laws of the 
countries in which we operate. The regulation of telecommunications 
networks and services outside the United States varies widely. In some 
countries, the range of services that we are legally permitted to 
provide may be limited. In other countries, existing telecommunications 
legislation is in the process of development, is unclear or 
inconsistent, or is applied in an unequal or discriminatory fashion. Our 
inability or failure to comply with the telecommunications laws and 
regulations of one or more of the countries in which we operate could 
result in the temporary or permanent suspension of operations in one or 
more countries. We also may be prohibited from entering certain . 
countries at all or from providing all of our services in one or more 
countries. In addition, many of the countries in which we operate are 
conducting proceedings that will affect the implementation of their 
telecommunications legislation. We cannot, De certain of the outcome of 
these proceedings. These proceedings may affect the manner in which we 
are permitted to provide our services in these countries and may have a 
material adverse effect en our operations. 

In the ordinary course of 'const'ructing our networks and providing our 
services we are required to obtain and maintain a variety Of', 
telecommunications and other licenses and authorizations in the 
countries in which we operate. We also must comply with a variety' of 
regulatory obligations. OUr failure to obtain or maintain necessary 
licenses and authorizatiOlUI, or to comply with the obligations imposed 
upon license-holders in onEt or more countries, may result in sanctions, 
including the revocation of: authority to provide services in one or more 
countries. 

We depend on third parties for many functions. If the services of those 

third parties are not available to us, we may not be able to conduct our 

business. 


We depend and will continue to d~Pend upon third parties tOl 

cgnstruct some of our systems and provide equipment and maintenance; 

provide access to a number of origination and. termii1a!;:ion points of our 

systems in various jurisdic:tions; 

construct and operate land:lng stations in a numl:ier of those 

jurisdictions; 

acquire rights of way;

provide terrestrial capacity to our customers through contractual 

arrangements; and 

act as joint venture participants with regard to some of our current and 

pot~ntial future systems. 
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We cannot assure you that third Parties' will perform their contractual 
obligations or that they will not be subject to political or economic events 
which may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition 
and results of operations. If they fail to perform their obligations, we may 
not be allle to conduct our busirn~ss. If any of our joint venture participants 
experiences a change in strategic: direction such that their strategy regarding 
'our mutual joint venture diverges from our own, we. may not be able to realize 
the benefits. anticipated to be derived from the joint venture. 

We have substantial leverage which may limit our allility to comply with the 

terms of our indebtedness aad may restrict our ability to operate. 


OUr significant indebtedness could adversely affect us by leaving us with 

insufficient cash to fund operations and impairing our alli1ity to obtain 

additional financing. The amount of our debt could have important consequences 

for Our future, including, among other things: 


cash from operations may be insufficient to meet the principal and 

interest on our indebtedness as it becomes due; 


payments of principal and interest on borrowings may leave us with 

insufficient cash resources for our operations; and 


restrictive debt covenants may impair our allility to obtain additional 

financing. 


We have incurred a high level of debt. As Qf December 31, '1999, we and our 

consolidated subsidiaries had a total of $8,051 million of total liabilities, 

including apprOXimately $5,056 million in senior indebtedness, of which $1,295 

million was secured. As of such date, Global Crossing Ltd. additionally had 

outstanding cumulative convertible preferred stock with a face value of $1,650 

million. Our subsidiary, Global Crossing Holdings, also has mandatorily

redeemable preferred stock outstanding with a face value of $500 million. In 

addition, our Pacific Crossing joint venture entered into an $850 million non­

recourse credit facility, under which it had incurred $750 million of 

indebtedness as of December 31, 1999. 


OUr ability to repay our debt depends upon a number of factors, many of 

which are beyond our control. In. addition, we rely on dividends, loan 

repayments and other intercompan,y cash flows from our subsidiaries to repay 

our obligations, Our operating subsidiaries have entered into a senior secured 

corporate credit facility. Accordingly, the payment of dividends from these 

operating subsidiaries and the making and repayments of loans and advances are 

subject to statutory, contractua.l and other restrictions. 


In addition, if we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow to meet our 

debt service requirements, we may have to renegotiate the terms of our long­

term debt.-We cannot assure you that we would be able to renegotiate

successfully those terms or reUnarice our indebtedness when required or that 

satisfactory terms of any refinancing would be available. If we were not able 

to refinance our indebtedness or obtain new financing under these 

circumstances, we would have to consider other options, such as; 


sales of some assets; 

sales of equity; 

negotiations with our lenders ,to restructure applicable indebtedness; or 

other opt ions available to us under applicable law. 

Our principal shareholders may be able to influence materially the outcome 

'of sharebolde~, votes. . '. ". , 


As of March 3, 2000, Pacific Capital Group had an 1l_9i%.bene;icial 

ownership interest in us. We ha"1re entered into various transactions with 

Pacific Capital Group and its affiliates and assumed 'the on-going development 

of-some of our systems from an affiliate.of Pacific Capital Group. Mr. Gary 

Winnick, chairman of our board of directors, controls Pacific Capital Group 

and its subS!idiaries. In additil:>n, several of our either officers and directors 

are affiliated with Pacific Capital Group. Furthermore, as of Mareh'3, 2000, 

canadian Imperial 
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Bank of 'Commerce had a 9.69% beneficial ownership-interest in us. Canadian 

Imperial Bank of Commerce and its affiliates have acted as underwriter, lender 

or initial purchaser in several of our financial transactions in connection 

with the development and construction of our systems. Several members of our 

board of directors are employees of an affiliate of Canadian Imperial Bank of 

Commerce. 


As, of March 3, 2000, Pacific Capital Group and Canadian Imperial Bank of 

Commerce collectively beneficially owned 21.67% of the outstanding shares of 

our common stock. Accordingly, i'acific Capital Group and Canadian Imperial 

Bank of Commerce may be able to influence materially the outcome of matters 

submitted to a vote of our share~lders. including the election of directors. 


Officers and directors own a substantial portion of us and may have 
conflicts of interest. 

Our executive officers and directors have substantial equity interests in 

us. As of March 3, 2000, ,all our directors and executive officers as a group 

collectively beneficially owned 24.72\ of our outstanding common stock, 

including shares beneficially owned by Pacific Capital'Group and certain 

shares beneficially owned by Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce. Some of these 

individUals have also received amounts from us due to advisory services fees 

paid to Pacific capital Group and its affiliates. 


Some of our directors and executive officers also serve as officers and 

directors of other companies. Ac~itionally, some of our officers and directors 

are active investors in the telElcommunications industry. Service as one of our 

directors or officers and as a director or officer of another company could 

create conflicts of interest wNln the director or officer is faced with 

decisions that could have diffel~ent implications for us and the other company • 

A conflict of interest could also exist with respect to allocation of time and 

attention of persons who are our directors or officers and directors,and 

officers of another company. The pursuit of these other business interests 

could distract these officers from pursuing opportunities on oUr behalf. These 

conflicts of interest could have a material adverse effect on our business, 

financial condition and results of operations. 


We cannot predict our future tax liabilities. 

We believe that a significant portion of the income derived from our 

undersea systems will not be subject to tax by any of (1) Bermuda, which 

currently does not have a corporate income tax, or (2) some other countries in 

which we conduct activities or :In which our customers are located. However, we 

base this belief upon: 


the anticipated nature' and conduct of our business, which may change;
and 

our understanding of our position under the tax laws of the various 
countries in which we have assets or conduct activities, which position 
is subject to review and possible challenge by taxing authorities and to 
possible changes in law, which may have retroactive effect. 

We cannot predict the amount of tax to which we may become subj ect and 

cannot be certain that any of these factors would not ~ve a material adverse 

effect on pur business. financial condition and results of ~erations. 


OUr shareholders may ~e subject to Foreign Personal Holding Company, Passive 
Foreign Investment Compa:ay, Controlled Foreign Corporation and Personal 
Holding Company rules. . 

We believe that neither we nor any of oUr non.-united States subsidiaries are 

a foreign personal holding company,and do not expect that either we or any of 


" 	 our affiliates will become a forei9n~ers6nal holding company. However, we 
cannot assure you in this regard. If one of our shareholders is a. united 
States·person and we or one of our non-united States subsi~iari~s are 
classified as a foreign personal holding company, then that shareholder would 
be required to pay tax on its pro rata share of our or our relevant non-United 
States subsidiary's undistributed foreign personal holding... income . We intend 
to manage our affairs so as to attempt to avoid or minimize having income 
imputed to united States pe~sons under these rules, to the extent this 
management of our affairs would be consistent with our business ge&ls,
although we cannot assure you in this regard. 
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We believe that we are not a passive foreign investment company and do not 

expect to become a passive foreign investment company in tbe future. However, 

we cannot assure you in this regard. In addition, our expectations are based, 

in part, on interpretations of existing law that we believe are reasonable, 

but which have not been approved by any taxing authority. If we were a passive 

foreign investment company, then any of our shareholders that is a United 

States person could be liable to pay tax at the then prevailing rates on 

ordinary income plus an interest charge upon some distributions by us or when 

that shareholder sold our capital stock at a gain. 


Furthermore, additional tax considerations would apply if we or any of our 

affiliates were a controlled foreign corporation or a personal holding 

company. 


ITEM 2. PROPERTllilS 

OUr principal offices are located in leased premises in Hamilton, Bermuda, 

with corporate offices under lease in Beverly Hills, california; Morristown, 

New Jersey; and Rochester, New ,\!'ork. We also own or lease sales, 

administrative and support offices worldwide. In addition, our 

telecommunication services segment owns undersea cables crossing the Atlantic 

Ocean (AC-1 and AC-2); Pacific Ocean (58\ economic interest in PC·1); Eastern 

United States and Caribbean (MAC); South America (SACl; eastern Asi'a (EAC); 

and Western united States, Mexico, Central • South America and Caribbean 

(PAC); and primarily terrestrial cable systems connecting various cities 

within the United States (~C), Europe (PECl, Japan (GAL) and Hong Kong (HGC). 

Our telecommunications services segment also.owns or leases numerous cable 

landing stations throughout the world related to these undersea and 

terrestrial cable systems. Globa,lCenter media distribution centers incorporate 

web hosting infrastructure and a,re connected to the Company's int.ernational 

fiber optic network. Medi'a distz:'ibution .centers are currently operational ,in 

leased premises in Sunnyvale and: Anaheim, california; London, England; South 

Melbourne, Australia; Herndon, Virginia; and New lork, New York. 


OUr installation and maintenaIl,ce services segment owns, leases and operates 

a fleet of vessels and submersible/remotely operated vehicles used in the 

planning, installation and maintenance of undersea fiber optic cable systems. 


OUr ILEC services segment owns telephone properties which include: 

connecting lines between customers' premises and the central offices; central 

office switching equipment; buildings and land; and customer premise 

equipment. The connecting lines, including aerial and underground cable, 

conduit, poles, wires and microwave equipment, are located on public streets 

and highways or on privately owned land. We have permission to use these lands 

pursuant to local governmental consent or lease, permit, franchise, easement 

or other agreement. 


We believe that substantia~ly all of our existing propert~es are in good 

condition and are suitable for the conduct of our business. A security 

interest in some of these properties, in particular some of our undersea 

cables, has been granted to lenders providing financing for those systems 

under non-recourse facilities or to Global Crossing'generally under our 

corporate credit facility. 


ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

On June 25, 1999, Fronti~r Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Global 

crossing Ltd., was served with a summons and complaint in a lawsuit commenced 

in the New York State SUpreme Court, Monroe County by a Frontier shareholder 

alleging that Frontier and its Board of Directors had breached their fiduciary 

duties to shareholders by endorsing a definitive merger agreement with the 

Company without having adequately c.onsidered an alternative merger proposal 


" 	 made by Qwest Communications Int:ernat'ional~ Inc. The lawsuit was framed as a 
purported class action brought on behalf of all shareholders of Frontier and 
sought unstated compensatory damages and injunctive re-lief. compelling 
Frontier's board. to evaluate FrC:lntier' s suitability a,s a merger partner, to 
enhance Frontier's value as a merger candidate, to engage in discussions with 
Qwest about possible business combinations, to act indepenaently to protect
the interests of Frontier shareholders, and to ensure that no conflicts of 
interest exist which would prevent maximizing value to shareholders. In July
1999, 
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three additional lawsuits were commenced against Frontier in the New York 
State Supreme Court on behalf of a nUmber of individual shareholders seeking 
essentially identical relief. All four lawsuits were consolidated into a 
single proceeding pending in Rochester, New York. In February 2000, all four 
lawsuits were voluntarily withdrawn. 

On July 12, 1999 Frontier was served with a summons and complaint in a 
lawsuit commenced in New York State Supreme Court, New York County by a 
Frontier shareholder alleging that Frontier and its board breached their 
fiduciary duties by failing to Q,btain the highest possible acquisition price 
for Frontier in the definitive mlerger agreement with Global Crossing. The 
action has been framed as a pUIp,orted class action and seeks compensatory 
damages and injunctive relief. 'I'he claims against Frontier were originally 
asserted in the same action as similar but separate claims against US WEST, 
Inc. However, the claims against. Frontier have been severed from the US WEST 
claims. Global Crossing believes; the asserted claims are without merit and is 
defending itself vigorously. 

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 

Not applicable. 
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PART II 

ITEM 5. 	MARXET FOR 'l'HB REGISTRAl~T I S COMMON STOCK AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER 
MATTERS 

Price Range of Common Stock 

Our common stock began to trade on both the Nasdaq National Market {IINNM,i 1 
and the Bermuda Stock Exchange I~der the symbol ~GBLX~ following our Initial 
Public Offering ("IPon) of c~~n stock on August 14, 1998 at a per share 
price of $9.50. The table below sets forth, on a per share basis for the 
periods indicated, the high and low closing sales prices for the common stock 
as reported by the NNM. 

Price Range 

1999, 1998 

High Low High Low 

First Quarter ••.. " ••••••••••••••••••••••.•••••• $56.75 $19.25 $ $ 
Second Quarter ••••••••••.••••••.••••••..••••••••• $64.25 $39.05 $ $ 
Third Quarter (from August 14, 1998) .•••••••••• $41.88 $20.25 $12.75 $8.00 
Fourth Quarter••••••• '••..• ~ ••••••••••.•••••••.•. $55.75 $24.81 $23.50 $8.63 

The closing sale price of the common stock as reported by the NNM on March 
3, 2000 was $56 '/16. As of March 3, 2000, there were 29,665 holders of record 
of our common stock. 

Dividend Policy: Restriction on Payment of Dividends 

The Company does not anticipate paying cash dividends on our common stock in 
the foreseeable future. The terms of certain of our debt instruments also 
place limitations on our ability to pay dividends. Future dividends, if my, 
will be at the discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend upon, 
among other things, our operations, capital requirements and surplus; general
financial condition, contractual restrictions and such other factors as the 
Board of Directors may deem relevant. 

Recent Sales of unregistered Securities 

In 1.999, the Company iseued tlle following equity securities that were not 
registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended: 

(a) 2,600,000 shares of ,% CUmulative Convertible Preferred Stock at a 

liquidation preference of $250.00 per share were issued on December 15', 

1999 by GCL for net proceeds of approximately $630 million and sold to 

Salomon Smith Barney, Merrill Lynch & Co., Goldman, Sachs & Co., Chase 

Securities Inc., Morgan Stanley Dean Witter, CIBC World Markets, Donald, 

Lufkin Q Jenrette and Credit Suisee First Boston as initial purchasers.

Each share of preferred stock is convertible into 4.6948 shares of GCL 

common stock, based on a conversion price of $53.25 per share; and 


(b) 10,000,000 shares Clf 6 31tH, CUmulativj! Convertible Preferred Stock at a 
liquidation preference of $10Il. ad per share were issued on November 5, 1999 
by GCL for net proceeds of apl~roximately $.969 million and sold to Merrill 
Lynch, Co., Goldman, Sachs & Co. and salomon Smith Barney as initial 
purchasere. Bach share of preferred stock is convertible into 2.2222 shares 
'of GCL common. ~tock! based on a convers:l:on price of $45. 00 per share. 

Each-series of GCL preferred stock issued during· 1999 was resold only to 
institutional inyestors that are "qualified instituti.onal buyers" within the 
meaning of Rule 144A under the Securitiee Act of 1933, as amended (the 
"Securities Act R ) , and was issued in reliance upon an exemption from the 
registration provisions of the Securities Act set forth in Section 4(2) 
thereof relative to transactions by an issuer not involving any public
offering ,or the rules ad regulal:ions thereunder. 
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IT~~ 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

Global Crossing selected historical financial information 

The table below shows selected historical financial information for Global 
Crossing. This information has been prepared using the consolidated financial 
statements of Global Crossing as of the dates indicated and for each of the 
years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 and for the period from March 19, 1997 
(Date of Inception) to December 31, 1997. 

In reading the following selected historical financial information, please 
note the following: 

The statement of operations data for the year ended December 31, 1999 
includes the results of Global Marine Systems for the period from JUly 
2. 1999, date of acquisition, through December 31, 1999; the results of 
Frontie.r for the period from September 30, 1999, date of acquisition, 
through December 31, 19~91 and the results of Racal Telecom for the 
period from November 24, 1999, date of acquisition, through December 31, 
1999. The Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 3l, 1999 includes 
amounts related to Global Marine Systems, Frontier and Racal Telecom. 

During the year ended December 31, 1999, Global crossing recorded a $15 
million expense, net of tax henefit, due to the adoption of Statement of 
Position 98-5, ,-Reporting on the Cost of Start-Up Activities·. See the 
·~lative effect of change in accounting principles· item in the 
Statement of Operatio~ Data. 

During the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, Global Crossing 
recognized $5l million and $39 million, respectively, of stock-related 
expense relating to stock options and rights to purchase stock issued 
during that period which entitle the holders to purchase common stock. 
See the "Stock-related expense" item in the Statement of Operations
Data. 

On December 15, 1999, GCL issued 2,600,000 shares of 7\ cumulative 
convertible preferred stock at a liquidation preference of $250.00 for 
net proceeds of $630 million. Each share of preferred stock is 
convertible into 4.6948 shares of common stock based on a conversion' 
price of $53.25. Dividends on the preferred stock are cumulative from 
the date of issue and will be payable on February 1, May 1, August 1 and 
November 1 of each year, beginning on February 1, 2000, at the .annual 
rate of 7\. 

On November 24,.1999, we cClmpleted our acquisition of Racal Telecom, a 
group of wholly owned subsi,diaries of Racal Electronics plc, for 
approximately $1.6 billion in cash. Racal Telecom owns one of the most 
extensive fiber telecommunication.s networks in the United Kingdom,
consisting of approximately 4,650 route miles of fiber and reaching more 
~han 2,000 cities and towns. 

on November 12, 1999, Global Crossing Holdings Ltd. ("GCH"), a wholly­
owned subsidiary of GCL, issued two series of senior unsecured notes 
(nNew Senior Notes"). The 9 1/8t senior notes are due November 15,2006 
with a face value of $900 million and the 9 1/2' senior notes are due 
November 15, 2009 with a face value of $1,100 million. The New-Senior 
Notes are guaranteed by GCL. Interest will be paid on the notes on May 
15 and November 15 of each year, beginning on May 15. 2000. 

on November 5, 1999, GCL issued 10,000,000 shares of 6 3/at cumulative 
convertible preferred stock at a liquidation preference of $lOO.OO for 
net proceeds of approximately $969 million. Each share of preferred 
stock is convertib.le into 2 •.2222. shar.es of common stock, based on a 
conversion, price of $45.00 .. Dividends' on the preferred stock are 
c\j.mulative from the date· oj: issue and will be payable on February 1, May 
l, August 1 and November 1 of each year, beginnin9 en. February 1, 2000, 
at the annu~l rate of 6 3/11\. 
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On September 28, 1999, we completed the acquisition of Frontier' 
Corporation in a merger transaction valued at over $10 billion, with 
Fro~tier shareholders receiving 2.05 shares of our common stock for each 
share of Frontier common stock held. Frontier is one of the largest long 
distance telecommunications companies in the United States and one of 
the leading providers of facilities-based integrated communications and 
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Internet services. 

On July 2. 1999, we completed our acquisition of the Global Marine 
Systems division of Cable & Wireless PIc for approximately $908 million 
in cash and assumed liabilities. Global Marine Systems owns the largest 
fleet of cable laying and maintenance vessels in the world and currently 
services more tban a third of the world's undersea cable miles. 

On May 16, 1999, Global Crossing entered into a definitive agreement to 
merge with U S WEST, Inc. On July 18, 1999, Global crossing and·U S WEST 
agreed to terminate their merger agreement, and U S WEST agreed to merge 
with Qwest Communications International Inc. As a result, U S WEST paid 
Global Crossing a termination fee of $140 million in cash and returned 
2,231,076 shares of Global crossing common stock purchased in a related 
tender offer, and Qwest oommitted to purchase capacity on the Global 
crossing network at established market unit prices for delivery OVer the 
next four years and committed to make purchase price payments to Global 
Crossing for this capacity of $140 million over the nest two years. 
During the year ended December 31, 1999, Global crossing recognized $210 
million, net of merger related expenses, of other income in connection 
with the termination of the U. S WEST merger agreement. 

The "Termination of advisory services agreement" item in the Statements 
of Operations Data includes a charge for the termination of the advisory 
services agreement as of JUne 30, 1998. Global Crossing acquired the 
rights from those .ntitledto fees payable under the advisory services 
agreement in consideration from the issuance of common stock having an 
aggregate value of $135 million and the.cancellation of approximately $3 
million owed to Global cros,sing under a -related advance agreement. As a 
result of this transaction, Global crossing recorded a non-recurring 
charge in the approximate amount of $138 million during the year ended 
December 31, 1998. In addition, Global Crossing recognized as an expense 
.approximately $2 million of advisory fees incurred prior to termination 
of the contract. 

Global crossing granted waI~ants to pacific Capital Group, Inc., a 
shareholder, and some of its affiliates for the Pacific Crossing, Mid­
Atlantic crossing and Pan American Crossing systems and related rights. 
The $275 million value of the common stock was originally allocated to 
"Construction in progress fl in the amount of $112 million and. as 
-Investment in and advances to/from affiliates n in the amount of $163 
million. See the "property and equipment" item in the Balance Sheet 
Data. The -Investment in arid advance to/from affiliates" item in the 
Balance Sheet Date include!1 $163 million as of December 31, 1999 and 
1998, respectively, represE~nting the value o.f the wan'ants described in 
the bullet point immediatel.y above applicable to the Pacific crossing 
system. . 

Adjusted BBITDA is defined as operating income (loss), plus goodwill 
amortization, depreciation and amortization, non-cash cost of capacity
sold, stock related expenses, incremental cash deferred revenue and 
amounts relating to the termination of the advisory services agreement. 
This definition is consistE!nt with financial covenants contained in the 
Company's major financial agreements. This information should not be 
considered as an alternative to any measure of performance as 
promulgated under GAAP. The Company I s calculation of adj usted EBITDA may 

,be different from the calculation used by other companies and, 

therefore, comparability ~~y be limited. 
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The selected consolidated financial data as of December 31, 1999, 1998 and 

1997, for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 and for the period from 
March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 1997, respectively, are 
derived from our audited consolidated financial statements and should be read 
in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes 
included in this Annual Report on Form lO-K. 

Period from 
March 19, 1997 

Year Ended Year Ended (Date of Inception) 
December 31, 1999 December 3l, 199B to December 31, 1997 

(In thousands, except share and per share information) 

Statement of Operations 
Data: 

Revenue •..•••..•••••••' •• 

Expenses: 
Cost of sales .••..•.••• 
Operations, 
administration and 
maintenance ••••...••.• 

Sales and marketing ...• 
Network development •••• 
General and 
administrative •••••••• 

Stock related expense • 
Depreciation and ' 
amortization•.••...•.• 

Goodwill and 
intangibles 
amortization •••••.•... 

Termination of advisory 
services agreement ••. 

Operating loss ..••..•••. 
Equity in income (loss) 
of affiliates•••••.•... 

Minority interest .. ; ...• 
Other income (expense): 
Interest income •••••••• 
Interest expense .•..••• 
Other income, net •.•••• 

Provision for income 
taxes •..•••.•.••••.•••• 

Loss before 
extraordinary item and 
cumulative 'effect of 
change in accounting 
principle •••.••.••.•••• 

Extraordinary loss on 
retirement of debt .•••. 

Loss before cumulative 
effect of change in 
accounting principle ••. 

CUmulative effect of 
change in acco~ting 
'princ~ple, net of 
income tax benefit of 
$l~400 ••••••••• : ..•.•.. 

Net: loss ...••.•••••••••• 
Preferred stock 
dividends •..•••••••••.• 

Redemption of preferred 
stock ••••••.•••....•••. 

Net loss applicable to 
common shareholders .•.• 

$ l,664,824 

850,483 

133,202 
149, ll9 

26,153 

2l0,107 
5l,306 

124,294 

l27,62l 

1,672,285 

. (7,46l) 

15,708 
(l,338) 

67,407 
(l39,077) 
l80,765 

(l26,539) 

(lO,535) 

(45,681) 

(56,~16) 

(14,7l0) 

(70,926) 

(66,642) 

$ (137,568)_:II'._=_.__ =-= 

$ 4019, B66 $ 

l78,492 

18,056 
26,l94 
10,962 

26,303 
39,374 

541 

l39,669 

439,591 

(l9,725) 

(2,508) 

29,986 
(42, 8.80') 

(33,067) 

(68,l94) 

(l9,709) 

(87,903) 

(87,90J.j. 

(l2,6Sl) 

(34,140) 

$ (134,724) $ 

l,366 
7B 

1,61B 

39" 

3,lOl 

(3,lOl) 

2,94l 

(l60) 

(160) 

(160) 

(l2,690) 

(12,850) 
ZII ........=-=-__ .:;;;a;:lUI=a===._..:=t 
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Net Loss Per Common 
Share: 

Loss applicable to 
common shareholders 
before extraordinary 
item and cumulative 
effect of change in 
accounting principle 

Basic and diluted....... 


Extraordinary item 
Basic and diluted••••.•• 

Cumulative effect of 
change in accounting 
principle 

Basic and diluted••••••• 

Net loss applicable to 
common shareholders 

Basic and diluted••••••• 

Shares used in computing 
basic and diluted loss 
per share •••..•••.•••.• 

Operating Data: 
Cash from operating 
activities ••••••••••••• 

Cash used for investing 
activities .....•••••••• 

Cash from financing 
activ.ities ••..••••••••• 

Adjusted EBITDA •.••.••. 

$ (0.15)
••••==:l1li ••__ 

$ (0.09) 
~---.-...-. 
$ (0.03) 
---.---=-_. 

$ (0.27)
:lua••___•••_ 

502,400,851..••••...-­
$ 506,084 

(4,009,977) 

4,330,799 
$ 708,181 

28 

$ (0.32)
••~.::s=-•••_. 

$ (0.06) 
=--_.----=-­

$ 
a;:a=-_.=-•••__ 

$ (0.38)--_...._.. ­
358,735,340_._a=-______ 

$ 208,727 

(430,697) 

1,027,110 
$ 364,948 

$ (o.o·n..=_.•••••• 
$••••-.• -.=-­

$ 
._••:a•••••• 

$ (0.04) 
____=-a •••__ 

325,773,934 
----_..... . 
$ 5,121 

(428,743) 

425,075 
$ 343,233 
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December 31, 

1999 1999 1997 

(In thousands) 

Balance sheet data: 

Current assets including cash and cash 

equivalents and restricted cash and cash 

equivalents ••.•.••..• ~ •..••.•.•••.•••••.•.• $ 2,946,533 $ 976,615 $ 27,744 


Long term restricted cash and cash 

equivalents ••••••••••....••..•.••.•••••..• ~ 1.38,118 367,600 


Long term accounts receivable ..•.....••••.•. 52,052 43,315 

Capacity a~ilable for sale ......••..••••... 574,849 

Property and equipment, net .....••...••..•. 6,026,053 433,707 518,519 

Other assets ••.•..•.•.•••..••.•.. '.•.•••••..•• 661,44.2 65,757 25,934 

Investment in and advances tal from 

affiliates, net .•..••••.. '...•.•••••••••..•• 323,960 177,334 


Goodwill and intangibles, net .•..•••.••••.•. 9,557,422 


, Total assets •• ~ • • . . • . • • . . • • • . • • • . • • . • • • • • • • $19,705,580 $2,639,177 $572,197-­
••___.....::1. _._....... __;a_•••• 


Current liabilities ••.••....•.•.•••••••••••• $ 1,852,593 $ 256,265 $ 90,817 

Long term debt •••••••••••.••.•..•••••••••••• 5,018,544 1,060,093 312,325' 

Deferred revenue •.••••.••..•.•.•.••••••••••. 383,287 25,325 

Deferred credits and other•..•.•.••.•••••.•. - 796,606 34,174 3,009
--_ .......... __ .... 
 ------_ ... 
Total Liabilities •••••••...•.•.•..•..•••..•. 8,051,030 1,381,857 406,151 

Minority interest ••••.••...•..•...••.•.•••••• 351,338 

Mandatorily redeemable and cumuliltive 

convertible preferred stock ........••.•.•• 2,084,697 4.83,000 91,925 


Shareholders' equity

Common stock •....•••••••...•.•...•.•••••••• 7,992 4,328 3,258 

Treasury stock•••.••••••.•••.•.•••••••••••• (209,415) (209,415) 

Other shareholders' equity••••.••••••••..•• 9,578,927 1,067,470 71,023 

Accumulated deficit •••••..••••.••••••••.••• (158,989) (98,063) (1601
-_ .. _------- -_ ... - ....... __ ... ­

Total shareholders' equity .•.•••••..••••..•• 9,218,515 774,320 74,121 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity •• $19,705,580 $2,639,177 $574,197 
_=-••=-_••• :1:11 .•....••.. 

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 


Accounting Matters 


During the third and fourth quarters of 1999, changes in the business 

activities of the Company, together with a newly effective accounting 

standard, caused the Company to modify certain of its practices regarding 

recognition of revenue and costs related to sales of capacity. None of the 

accounting practices described b~low affect the cash flows of the Company. 


As a result of Financial Accow~ting Standards Board· (FABBI Interpretation 

No. 43, "Real Estate Sales, an il~terpretation of FASB Statement No. 66 a (FIN 

43), which became effective July 1, 1999, revenue from terrestrial circuits 

sold after that date has been; aCI::ounted for as operating leases and amortized 

over the terms of the related ca~tracts. Previously, these sales had been 

recognized as current revenue upon activation of the circuits. This-deferral 

in revenue recognition bas no impact on cash flow. 


With the consummation of the Fro~tier acquisition on September 28, 1999, 

service offerings became a significant source of revenue. consequently, the 

Company initiated service contract accounting for its subsea systems during 

the fourth quarter, because the Company, since that date, no longer holds 

subsea capacity exclusively for sale. As a result, since the beginning of the 


.. 	 fdurth quarter, ..invest~ts in both'subsea "and terrestrial systems have :been 
deprec~ated over their remaining economic lives, and revenue related to 
service contracts have been recognized over the terms ef-the contracts. 
Revenue and cost~ related to the sale of subsea cir~its have been recognized 
upon activation if the criteria of sales-type lease accounting have been 
satisfied with respect to those circuits. 

During the fourth quarter, the Company's global network service capabilities 

were significantly expanded by the activation of several previousry'announced 

systems, and:b¥ the integration of other networks obtained through acquisition 

and joint venture agreements. With this network expansion, the Company :began 

offering its 
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customers flexible bandwidth products to multiple destinations, which makes 
the historical practice of fixed, point-to-point routing of traffic and 
restoration capacity both impractical and inefficient. To ensure the required 
network flexibility, the Company is modifying its standard capacity purchase 
agreement forms and its network management in a manner that will preclude the 
use of sales-type lease accounting. 

Because of these contract changes, and the network management required to 
meet customer demands for flexible bandwidth, multiple destinations, and 
system performance, the' Company anticipates that most of the contracts for 
subsea circuits entered into after January 1, 2000 will be part of a service 
offering, and therefore will not meet the criteria of Sales-type lease 
,accounting and will he accounted for as operating leases. Consequently, 
revenue related to those circuits will be deferred and amortized over the 
appropriate term of the contract. In certain circumStances, should a contract 
meet all of the requirements of sales-type lease accounting, revenue will he 
recognized without deferral upon payment and activation. 

The Company notes that accounting practice and authoritative guidance 
regarding the applicability of sales-type lease accounting to the sale of 
capacity is still evolving. Based on the accounting practices described above, 
the Company believes tha~ additional changes, if any, in accounting practice 
or authoritative guidance affecting sales of capacity would have little or no 
impact on its results of operations. 

Results of Operations for the Years Ended pecember 31, 1999 and December 31, 
1998 

HISTORICAL 

In 1999, the Company completecl its merger with Frontier and its acquisitions 
of Global Marine Systems and Rac:al Telecom. Results for 1999 include 
operations of Global Marine Syst,ems from July 2, 1999, Frontier from October 
1, 1999 and Racal Telecom from Nrovember 24, 1999. Due to these transactions, 
the comparability of the Company's results of operations for the years ended 
December 31, 1999 and 1998 is Hmited. 

Revenue. Revenue for 1999 incl'eased 296!1r to $1,665 million as coiupared to 
$420 million for 1998. The incrElase in revenue is attributable to the Frontier 
merger and the acquisitions of G~lobal Marine Systems and Racal Telecom, as 
well as growth from our existinsr business. 

Cost of sales. Cost of sales during 1999 was $850 million (51% of revenue) 
compared to $178 million (43% of: revenue) in 1998. This increase is primarily 
attributable to the Frontier mel~er and the Global Marine Systems and Racal 
Telecom acquisitions. Lower mar5rins are partially d\,l.e to lower prices of 
capacity sold to customers and wholesale cost of capacity purchased from 
unconsolidated joint ventures (C!AI. and PC-U, the Company's profit on which is 
included in equity in income of affiliates. 

Non-cash cost of undersea cap2Lcity sold was $292 million and $141 million 

during the years ended, December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. For 1998 and 

the first nine months of the yeillr ended December 31, 1999, the Company 

calculated costa of undersea callacity sold for AC~l hased on the ratio of the 

period's actual revenue to total expected future revenues given a minimum 

projected sales capacity of 102~\ circuits (512 circuits in 1998) times the 

construction cost of the system. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 1999, the 

Company began to depreciate its undersea capacity and calculate cost of sales 

based on the estimated net book value of the circuit at the time of' sale. 


Operations, administration and ~int~an.ce ("OA&M"). OA&M for the year ended 
December 3l~' 19~9 was $133 million' (at of 'revenue), compared to $18 million 
(4% o~_revenue) for the year ended December 31, 199a. The increase is 
primarily the result of costs incurred in connection wita ;he development of 
the Global Network Operations Center, expansion of the Global Crossing Network 
and the expenses· of acquired companies. . 

Sales and marketing. Sales an4 marketing costs for the year ended December 
31, 1999 were $149 million .(9% of revenue), compared to $26 million (6% of 
revenue) for the year ended December 31, 199a. The increase is primarily 
attributable to additions in headcount, occupancy costs, plus marketing costs, 
commissions paid and other promotional expenses to support the Company's rapid 
growth and the expenses of acquired companies. 
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Network development. Network d,!velopment costs for the year ended December 
31, 1999 were $2& million (2t of revenue), compared to $11 million (3t of 
revenue) for the year ended Decelriber 31, 1998. The increase is primarily 
attributable to the additional salaries, employee benefits, travel and 
professional fees associated with the construction of the Global crossing 
Network. 

General and administrative. General and administrative expenses for the year 
ended December 31, 1999 were $210 million (13t of revenue), compared to $26 
million (&t of revenue) for the year ended December 31, 1998. Such charges are 
comprised principally of salaries, employee benefits and recruiting fees 
reflecting the company's staffing for multiple systems, travel, professional
fees, insurance costs and occupancy costs. The increase "in general and 
administrative expenses is primarily attributable to the Frontier merger and 
the acquisitions of Global Marine Systems and Racal Telecom. 

Stock related expense. Stock related expenses for the year ended December 
31, 1999 were $51 million (3t of revenue), which increased by $12 million from 
$39 million (9t of revenue) for the year ended December 31, 1998. The increase 
1s due to the addition of employees granted in-the-money options. 

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization for the year 
ended December 31, 1999 was $124 million (at as a percentage of revenue), 
compared to $. S4 million for the year ended' December 31, 199a. 'l'his increase 
was driven by charges from the newly acquired companies and depreciation of 
subsea systems as of OCtober 1, 1999., 

Goodwill amortization. Goodwill amortization for the year ended December 31, 
1999 of $128 million (at of revenue) resulted from the Company's merger with 
Frontier and acquisitions of Global Marine Systems and Racal Telecom during 
the year ended December 31, 1999. There was no goodwill amortization for the 
year ended December 31, 1998. 

Operating loss. 'l'he Company incurred an operating loss for the year ended 
December 31, 1999 of $7 million, compared to a loss of $20 million (5' of 
'revenue) for the year ended December 31, 199a. 

Interest income and Interest expense. Interest income for the year ended 
December 31, 1999 was $&7 million, compared to $30 million for the year ended 
December 31, 1998. The increase is due to earnings on investments of funds 
from financings and operations for the year ended December 31 1999. Interest 
expense for the year ended Decelnber 31, 1999 was $139 million, compared to $43 
million for the year, ended Decenwer 31, 1998, due to the merger with Frontier 
and the acquisitions of Global l'<larine Systems and Racal Telecom and increases 
in debt outstanding to BUpport c:apital spending. 

Other income, net. Other income. net for the year ended December 31, 1999 
resulted primarily from a $210 million payment by US West, Inc. in connection 
with the termination of its merger agreement with the Company, less related 
expenses. 

Provision for income taxes. The income tax provision of $127 million and $33 
million for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively, provide 
for taxes on profits earned from telecommunications services, installation and 
maintenance services, ILEC services and other income where subsidiaries of the 
Company bave a presence in taxable jurisdictions. 

Extraordinary loss from retirement of debt. Extraordinary loss from 
retirement of debt of $4& million for the year ended December 31, 1999 
compared to $20 million for ebe year ended DecenWer 31, 1998. During 1999, we 
recognized an extraordinary loss of,$1~ m:i,llion in connection with the 

" 	 p~epayment of e~isting debt in 'connection with the issuance of our $3 billion 
Senior.secured Credit Facility llOd an additional $31 million for the early
extinguishment of $2 billion, ill principal value', unde£' the Senior Secured 
Credit Facility., During 1998, M! recognized an extraqrdinary loss of $20 
million in connection with the l,epurchase of GTH's outstanding senior notes 
("8TH Senior Notes"), comprisi~~ a premium of $10 million...and a write-off of 
$10 million of unamortized defel~red financing costs. 
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CUmulative effect of change in accounting principle. The Company adppted 

Statement of Position 98-5 (Sap 98-5), "Reporting on the Cost of Start-Up 
Activities," issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, 
during the' year ended December 31, 1999. SOP 98-5 requires that certain start­
up expenditures previously capitalized during system development must now !:le 
expensed. The Company incurred a one-time charge during the first quarter of 
$15 million, net of tax benefit, that represents start-up costs incurred and 
capitalized during previous periods. 

Net loss. During the year ended December 31, 1999, the Company reported a 
net loss of $71 million compared to a net loss of $88 million for the prior, 
year. . 

Net loss applicable to common shareholders. During the years ended December 
31, 1999 and 1998, the Company reported a net loss applicable to common 
shareholders of $138 million and $135 million, respectively. 

Adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA of $708 million in 1999 increased 94' from 
$365 million for the year ended December 31, 1998. The increase is primarily 
due totbe inclusion of Frontier, Global Marine Systems and Racal as well as 
growth from our existing businesses for the year ended December 31, 1999. 
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PRO FORMA 

This section of Management's D:iscussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations focuses on pro forma information for the periods 
covered giving effect to the acquisitions from the beginning of each period. 
The Company's management believes that the pro forma results provide the most 
meaningful comparability among periods presented, since historical results 
reflect full-company operations only after the close of the Frontier merger 
and the acquisitions of Racal Telecom and Global Marine Systems. However, the 
pro forma data are not necessarily indicative of the results that would have 
been achieved had such transactions actually occurred at the beginning of each 
period, nor are they necessarily indicative of the Company's future results. 

The following reflects the pro forma results of operations for the years 

ended December ll, ~999 and ~99a. 


For the year ended 
December 3l, 

1.999 1998 

.<In thousands) 

REVENUE: 
Telecommunications services .•••..•..••..•••••.•..•.. $3,071,553 $2,59l,066 
Installation and maintenance services ••••••••.•..•.•• 334,l53 322,Ol7 
Incumbent local exchange carrier services.: .••••..••• 729,23l 70l,.935 
Corporate and other•••••••.•.•.••••••••.•••••••••.••• 4,960 28,503 _... _.. ------ .. --- ...... ---­

4,l39,897 3,643,521 

EXPENSES: 
Operating, selling, general and administrative .....•• 3,.433,024 2,807,671 
Stock related expense •••••...••••••••••••••••..•.••.• 51,306 39,374 
Depreciation and amortization .••••••••••...•..•.•...• 363,427 262,847 
Goodwill amortization••••••.• ~ ••••••••••..•••.•.••••• 506',928 506,928 
Termination of Advisory Services Agreement .•.•••••••. l39,66'9 

4,354,685 3,756,48.9 

OPERATING LOSS ...•••.••••••••...•••••••••••••••.•...... (2l4,788) (112,968) 

EQUITY IN LOSS OF AFFILJ:A'l'ES •...•••••••••••.•••••••..•• (747) (2l, l80) 

M:INORITY INTE.REST...................................... . (1,338) 

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE): 


Interest income•..•.••••••••••••••••....•.•.••••••.•. 76,528 42,877 
Interest expense •.•..••.•••••••••••••••••.••••••••••• (345,956) (283,984) 
Other income, net .••'••••••••••...••..••••••••..•..••• l78,93l 23,64l 

--------_ ... - ... -------­
LOSS BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES, EXTRAORDINARY 

ITEM AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE III ACCO'tlNTING 
PRINCIPLE•.•...••••••••••.••.••••••••...••..•.•••••.•. (307,370) (35l,6l4) 
Provision for income taxes .••••••••••••...•.•••••.••. (l55,l74) (l23,268)--_ .. _...._-- ----_ ...... --­

LOSS BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEM AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF 
CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE .••.••••••••••••.•..•••• (462,544) (474,882) 
Preferred stock dividends ••••••.•••.••••.•••....•••. (92, l7l) (38, l8l) 

LOSS APPLICABLE. TO COMMON SHAREl!or..DERS BEFORE 
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM AND CDMULA'l'!VE EFFECT ·OF CHANGE IN 
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE .••••••..••••..••.•••••••••••••••. $ (554,715) $ (5l3,063) 

____•••:a__ ___•••••a _ 

" Adjusted EBITDA•., ••••.••••••• ~ : ••• ~.: ... : .. ~ ............ . $l,l50,644 $l,07l,969 

_:.alD__:._a_ .._-_.__.­
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Pro forma revenue--TelecommunicatiOns services. Pro forma revenue for the 

telecommunications services segrrlent for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 
1998 resulted from sales of the following products: 

For the year ended 
December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In thousands, except 
minutes) , 

PRODUCT REVENUE: 
Switched Voice •.• '..•••..••.•••••.•••••..•••....•..... $ 1,386,124 $ 1,416,088 
CLEC (Local and LD) •••••••••••••• ~•••••••••••••••••••• 223,021 153.109 

Total Business Voice Products..•..•...•••••••••.•.• 1,609,145 1.,569,197 

Data. •••..•..••••••••••••.••••.••••••••••••••.•••••••• 1,274,689 782,087 

Consumer long diatance. • . • • • . . . . . • • • • • • • • • . . . • • • • • • • • 187,719 239,782 


---_._----- -----------' 
TOTAL PRODUCT REVENUE.......... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3,071;553 $ 2,591.,066" 
...a._._.__ . ____..._a_ 
MINUTES •••.••••••••••••••••.••••••••••.•.••••••••••••.. 20,472,178 14,481,697 

_.•._------ .._-----.-. 
In North America, data products continued to grow at triple digit ra.tes-~ 

data product revenue (primarily private line) ~rom telecommunication carrier 
customers grew 588\ ,for the full year. Prame relay revenue, sales from 
dedicated internet and web hosting revenue increased 304\, 159\ and 187\. 
respectively, aver the prior year. Competitive Local Exchange Carrier (CLEC) 
revenue increased 46\ year-on-year. ­

Revenue from telecommunicatio~. commercial customers increased to $1.27 
billion for the year ended Dece~~r 31, 1999 from $1.26 billion for the year 
ended December 31, 1998. Revenue, f'rom telecommunication consumer customers 
fell to $188 million for the yea% ended December 31, 1999 from $240 million 
for the year,ended December 31., 1998. Revenue from telecommunication carrier 
customers experienced a 48\ increase in revenue year-on-year, from $1.09 
billion t.o $1.61 billion, driven by strong growth in international city to 
city circuit activations and an 87\ increase in wholesale minutes sold on a 
year-an-year basis. 

Pro forma revenue--Installation and maintenance services. Pro forma revenue 
increased by 4\ year-on-year, despite delays in the installation of TAT-14 and 
U.S.-Japan cables, which had been scheduled for installation during the fourth 
quarter of 1999. Global Marine Systems added tb%ee ships to their fleet during 
the year to service the Company I s growth in subsea cable installations. 
Revenue from maintenance increased from $117 million to $139 million, while 
revenue from installation decrea.sed from $205 million to $195 million. 

Pro forma revenue--ILEC services. The following table provides supplemental 
pro forma detail for the ILEC segment: 

December 
31, 

1999 1998 

. (In
thousands) 

ACCESS LINES: 
Commercial •••••••••••••••••••••• , •••••••••••••••••••••••.••••••••• 335 327 
Consumer .••••••.•••••••••.•••.•••.••••.•••••••.•••••••••••••••.••• 737 718 

TOTAL ACCESS LIllES.................................................. 1 , 072 1, 045
---_. ----­
The iLEC segment continued to exceed service metrics required by the New 

York State Public Service Commission. Revenue increased by. 4\ yea%-on-year. 
Market deployment of the consumer ADSL product, Lightning Link, was initiated 
in selected markets in the fourth quarter. . 

Operating, selling, general and administrative. Operating, selling, general 
and administrative expenses of $3,433 million for the year ended December 31, 
1999 increased by 22\ from $2,808 million for the year ended December 31, 
1998. This change resulted from costs of new systems being activated, cost of 
sales re~ating to increased revenues, occupancy costs, marketing costs, 
commissions paid and overall Company growth and staffing for multiple systems. 
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Non~cash cost of undersea capacity,sold, included in operating, selling, 

general and administrative expenses, was $292 million and $141 million during 

the years ended December 31, 1~99 and 1998, respectively. For 1998 and the 

first nine months of 1999, the Company calculated costs of undersea capacity 

sold based on the ra~io of the period's actual revenue to total expected 

future revenues given a minimum projected sales capacity ,multiplied by the 

,construction cost of the system. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 1999, the 

Company hegan to depreciate the undersea capacity and calculate cost,of sales 

based on the estimated net book value of the circuit at the time of sale. 


Stock related expense. Stock related expense of $51 million for the year 

ended December 31, 1999, increased 30t from $39 million for the year ended 

December 31, 1998, as a result of additional stock options issued below fair 

market value. 


Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization of $363 million 

for the year ended December 31, 1999 increased 38' from $263 million for the 

year ended December 31, 1998. ~~s increase was primarily due to the 

depreciation of subsea and terrelstrial systems during 1999. 


Operating loss. The Company ulcurred an operating loss for the year ended 

December 31, 1999 of $215 millicln compared to a loss of $113 million for the 

year ended December 31, 1998. 


Equity in loss of affiliates. Equity in loss of affiliates of $0.7 million 

for the year ended December 31, 1999 compared to a loss of $21 million for the 

year ended December 31, 1998. The decrease in, the net loss is primarily due to 

sales of capacity on certain segments of PC-1 which became available for sale 

in 1999. 


Interest income and Interest expense. Interest income of $77 million for the 

year ended December 31, 1999 compared to $43 million for the year ended 

December 31, 1998, due to earnulga on investments of additional funds from 

financings and operations during the year ended December 31, 1999. I~terest 

expense of $346 million for the year ended December, 31, 1999 compared to 

interest expense of $284 million for the year ended December 31, 1998, due to 

the merger with Frontier and the acquisition of Global Marine Systems and 

Racal Telecom and increases in debt outstanding to support capital spendizlg. 


Other income, net. Other income of $179 million for the year ended December 

31, 199~ compared to $24 millial for the year ended December 31, 1998. The 

increase is primarily a result e)f the receipt of a $210 million payment by US 

West, Inc. in connection with tlle, termination of its merger agreement with the 

~ompany, less related expenses. 


Provision for income taxes. The inc,olllll!l tax provision of $155 million and 

$123 million for the years ende<i December 31, 1999 and 1996, respectively, 

provides for taxes on profits .a.rned from telecommunications services, 

installation and maintenance, ILEC Services and other income where 

subsidiaries of the Company have'a presence in taxable j urisdictiona. 


Preferred stock dividends. Preferred stock dividends of $92 million for the 

year ended December 31, 1999 compared to $38 million in 1998. The increase was 

attributable to payment of dividends on $1.5 billion of preferred shares 

issued during the year ended December 31" 1999. 


Adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBI'l'DA, of $1,151 million for the years ended 

December 31, 1999 increased 7' from $1,072 in 1998. The increase was primarily 

due to increased capacity sales and other data products, partially off-set by 

the Company's increased spending to augment its sales force, add network and 

web hosting, capacity,add to its .flee.t of ,installation and maintenance 


., 	 vessels, activat.e new fiber opt.ic systems,' and consummate and integrate its 
acquisitions. 
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Historical Results of Operations for the Year Ended Dece~er 31, 1998 and the 
Period from March 19, 1997 (Dati! of Inceptionl to December 31, 1997 

Revenue. During the year ended December 31. 1998, the company executed firm 
commitments to sell capacity on our systems plus the sale of dark fiber on PEC 
totaling $911 million. Of this '!mount, the Company recognized revenue of $418 
million on sales of capacity relating to AC-1 for the year ended December 31, 
1998, in addition to revenue frl~ operations and maintenance services of $6 
million. 

Cost of sales. For the year ended December 31, 1998, the Company recognized 
$179 million in cost of capacity sold, resulting in a gross margin on capacity 
sales of 57t. Cost of capacity sold for the year ended December 31, 1998 also 
includes $38 million relating to terrestrial capacity sold which the Company
had purchased from third parties. The Company calculated undersea cost of 
capacity sold for AC-1 based on the ratio of the period's actual revenue to 
total expected revenue, assumin!; minimum projected sales cap,acity of 512 
circuits. multiplied by the construction cost of the system. This calculation 
of cost of sales matches costs with the relative value of each sale. There 
were no sales or related costs recognized during the period from March 19, 
1997 (Date of Inception) to December 31. 1997, as the Company was in our, 
development stage. 

Operations. administration and maintenance (1I0A&M"). The Company incurred 
OA&M costs of $18 million dUl:'in!:7 the year ended December 31. 1998. The company 
entered into an agreement with ~rSSL relating to operations, administration and 
maintenance of AC-1, which limits our total OA&M expense for the system. The 
Company anticipates that our OA&M costs will be largely recovered through
charges to oUl:' customers under the terms of ·CPAs. There were no OA&M costs 
during the period from March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 
1997, as the Company was in its development stage. 

Sales and marketing. During the year ended December 31, 1998, the Company 
incurred sales and marketing e~~enses 'of $25 million, including selling 
cotlllllissions of $20 million incu:r:red on capacity sales recognized during this 
period. During the period from I~rch 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 
31, 1997, the Company incurred sales and marketing costs of approximately $1 
million. The increase from 1997 was due to-additions in personnel and 
occupancy costs, plus marketing, commissions paid and other promotional 
expenses to support our ra,pid growth. 

Network development. The Company incurred network development costs du:r:ing 
the year ende-d December 31, 19919 of $11 million relating to the development of 
systems. During the period from March 19. 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 
31, 1997, these costs were $0.1 million. The increase from 1997 was due to . 
additional personnel, and costs to explore new projects. 

General and administrative. General and administrative expenses totaled $26 
million during the year ended December 31. 1998 and were comprised principally 
of salaries, employee benefits and recruiting fees for staffing of multiple 
systems. travel, insurance costs and rent expenses. plus depreciation and 
amortization. Du:r:ing the period from March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to 
December 31, 1997, we incurred ~:Jeneral and administrative costs of $2 million. 

Termination Of Advisory Services Agreement with PCGTelecom Services LLC. In 
connection with the development and construction of AC-1, the Compaay entered 
into an Advisory Services Agreement with PCG Telecom Services LLC, an 
affiliate, providing for the payment by us of an advisory fee of 2' of the 
gross revenue of ACL over a 25 yea~ term. OUr Board of Directors also approved 
similar advisory fees and authorized us to enter into similar agreements with 
respect to other cable systems under development by us. The Company has 
acquired the rights of the perS(lnS entitled to the fees payable under these 
agreements in consideration for thE!. issuance to such persons of shares of our 

'. 	 common stock, wh.ich had at the1:ime of issuance an aggregate value of $135 
millio~, and the cancellation of approximately $3 million owed to us under a 
related advance agreement. In addition, the Company reecsnized approximately 
$2 million of adyisory fees incurred prior to terminqtion of the contract.·· 
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Stock related expense. Through December 31, 1998, the Company recorded as a 

charge to paid-in capital $94 million of unearned compensation relating to 
awards under our stock incentive plan plus the grant of certain economic 
rights and options to purchase common stock granted to a senior executive. The 
unear~ed compensation is being recognized as an expense over the vesting 
period of these options and econ.omic rights. 

For the year ended December 3l, 1998, the Company recognized as an expense 
$3l million of stock related compensation relating to our stock incentive plan 
and $6 million for the vested economic rights to purchase common stock and $2 
million in respect of shares of common stock issued during the year. The 
remaining $57 million of unearned compensation will be recognized as follows: 
$28 million in 1999, $21 million in 2000 and $8 million in 2001. Our stock 
incentive plan commenced in Jan~ary 1998, and therefore no issuances were made 
during the period from March 19, 1997 (Date of Inceptionl to December 3l, 
1997. 

Equity in loss of ~ffiliates. During 1998, the Company entered into joint 
venture agreements to construct and operate PC-l and GAL. PC-l is owned and 
operated by PCL. The Company has an economic interest in PCL represented by a 
50% direct voting interest and, through one of the joint venture partners, a 
further 8' economic non-voting interest. The Company has a 49' interest in 
Global Access Ltd., which operates GAL. Our equitY,in the loss of PC-l for the 
year ended December 3l, 1998 was $3 million. 

Interest income. The Company reported interest income of $30 million during 
the year ended December 3l, 1998 and $3 million during the period from March 
19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 3l, 1997. Such interest income 
represents earnings on cash rabed from fil:l.ailcing, the IPO, the issuance of 
the GCH Preferred Stock, operati.ons and CPA deposits. 

Interest expense. During the year ended December 3l, 1998, the Company 
incurred $93 million in interest costs, including the amortization of finance 
costs and deht discount. Of this amount, the Company capitalized to 
construction in progress interest of $50 million and expensed $43 million. 
During the period from March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 

'l997, the Company incurred interest expense of $lO million, Which was 

capitalized to construction Ln progress. 


Provision for income taxes. Tl:Le income tax provision of $33 million for the 
year ended December 3l, 1998 prclvides for taxes on profits earned from 
capacity sales and OA&M revenue where our subsidiaries have a presence in 
taxable jurisdictions. During tl:Le period from March 19, 1997 (Date of 
Inception) to December 3l, 1997, the Company incurred operating losses, which 
relat,e to non-taxable jurisdict:l.ons and therefore cannot be applied against 
future taxable earnings. Accordingly, no tax provision or deferred tax benefit 
was recorded as of December 3l, 1997. 

Ex.traordinary item. During May 1998, the Company recognized an extraordinary 
loss of $20 million in connection with the repurchase of GTH's outstanding 
senior notes (ftGTS Senior Notes"), comprising a premium of '$lO million and a 
write-off of $lO million of unamortized deferred financing costs. 

Net loss. The Company incurred a net loss of $88 million for the year ended 
December 3l, 1998, compared to iL net loss of $0.2 million in the period from 
March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 3l. 1991. The net loss for the 
year ended December 3l, 1998 reflects an extraordinary loss on retirement of 
the GTH Senior Notes of $20 million and a non-recurring charge of $l40 million 
relating to the termination of the ,Advisory Services Agreement. Our net income 
hefore these items was $72 million. 

Preferred stock dividends. During the ·year ended December 3l, 1998, the 

Company recorded preferred stod. dividends of approximately $l3 million• 


. , 	 Preferred stock. p,ividends for tiLe period from March 19, 1997 (Date of 
Inception) to December 3l, 1997 were $l3 million. Of the $l3 million recorded 
in 1998, $4 million relates to t:he GCIi Preferred Stock-issued during December 
1998. 

Redemption o'f preferred stock" The redemption of GTH' s ~tstanding preferred 
stock ("GTH Preferred StockM ) occurred in June 1958 and resulted in a $34 
million charge against equity. This amount was comprised 
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of a $15 million redemption premium and a write-off of $18 million of 
unamortized discount and issuance costs. The redemption premium and write-off 
of unamortized discount and issuance costs are treated as a deduction to 
arrive at net loss applicable to common shareholders in the consolidated 
statements of operations. 

Net loss applicable to common shareholders. During the year ended December 
31, 1998, the Company reported a net loss applicable to common shareholders of 
$135 million. This loss reflects preferred stock dividends of $13 million and 
the redemption cost of GTH Preferred Stock of $34 million. During the period 
from March 19. 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 1991, the Company 
incurred a net loss applicable to common shareholders of $13 million after GTH 
Preferred Stock dividends of $13 mi,llion. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

On December lS, 1999, Global C~ossing issued $650 million aggregate 
liquidation preference of n cuolulative convertible preferred stock. The 
preferred stock is convertible :I.nto common stock of Global Crossing based upon " 
a conversion price of $53.25 per share. 

on November 24, 1999, the Company entered into a GaP 675 million 
(approximately $1,091 million as of December '31, 1999) credit facility to 
finance the acquisition of Racal Telecom. As of December 31, 1999, the Company 
had an outstanding balance of $646 million under the Racal Term Loan A. 

On November 12, 1999, Global crossing Holdings Ltd. issued $1.1 billion in 
aggregate principal amount of its 9 1/2% Senior Notes Due 2009, and $0.9 
billion in aggregate principal amount of its-9 1/8% Senior Notes Due 2006. The 
proceeds were partially used to pay down the term loans under the Company's 
Corporate Credit Facility. 

On November 5, 1999, Glcibal crossing issued $1.0 billion aggregate 
liquidation preference of 6 3/8% cumulative convertible preferred stock. The 
preferred stock is convertible into common stock of Global Crossing based upon 
a conversion price of $45.00 per share. 

on July 2, 1999, Global Crossing entered into a $3 billion senior secured 
corporate credit facility with a group of several lenders and The Chase 
Manhattan Bank as administrativEI agent. The initial proceeds under the 
facility,were used to refinance outstanding balances under the AC-l and MAC 
project finance facilities, to l:efinance balances under a vendor financing 
arrangement with Lucent, to refinance debt used for the purchase of the Global 
Marine business from Cable and llireless and for general corporate purposes. As 
of December 31, 1999, the ComparlY had a remaining available balance of $308 
million under the senior secure(l corporate credit facility. In connection with 
the issuance of the Senior NoteEl Due 2006 and the Senior Notes Due 2009, a 
portion of the proceeds were USE!d to pay down the term loans under the 
Corporate Credit Facility. 

Global crossing initially financed the approximately $908 million Global 
Marine Systems acquisition, which was completed in July 1999, with 
approximately $600 million in committed bank financing and the remainder with 
cash on hand. This initial indebtedness was refinanced through borrowings 
under Global crossing's senior secured corporate credit facility. 

~ter giving effect to the financings listed above, as of December 31, 1999, 
the Company had $1,865 million of both restricted and unrestricted cash and 
cash equivalents. As of December 31, 1999, the Company had $8,051 million of 
total liabilities, including $5,056 million in senior indebtedness, of which 
$l,295 million was secured. As of such date, Global Crossing Ltd. additionally 
had outstanding cumulative convertible preferred stock with a face value of 
$l.650 million. Our subsidiary~ Glqbalcrossing Holdings, also has mandatorily 

" 	 redeemable prehrred stock outstanding with a face value of $500 million. In 
additiqn, our unconsolidated Pacific Crossing joint venture entered into an 
$850 million non-recourse credit facility, under which-ic had incurred $750 
million of indeb~edness as of December 31, 1999. 

Slobal Crossing estimates the remaining total cost of d~eloping and 

deploying the announced systems on the Global CrOSSing Network. to be 

approximately $5 billion, L'tcluding costs of potential future upgrades .and 
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the amounts capitalized wieh respect eo warrants issued in exchange for the 
rights td conseruct MAC and PAC. Financing to complete the Global Crossing 
Network is expected to be obtained from common stock, preferred stock, bank 
financing or through other corporate financing. Some of this financing is 
expected to be incurred by wholly-owned subsidiaries or joint venture 
companies, as well as by GCL. 

The Company has extended limited amounts of financing to customers in 
connection with certain capacity' sales. ~he financing terms provide for 
installment payments of up to fClur years. The Company believes that its 
extension of financing to its customers will not have a material effect on the 
company's liquidity. 

cash provided by operating activities was $506 million and $209 million for 
the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. The balances 
principally represent cash received from capacity sales, and interest income 
received, less sales and marketing, network development, general and 
administrative and interest expenses paid. 

cash used in investing activities was $4,010 million and $431 million for 
the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, respect,ively, 'and represents cash 
paid for construction in progress, acquisitions (net of cash acquired), 
purchases of property, plant and equipment and cash investments in affiliates. 

cash provided by financing act:ivities was $.4,331 million for the year ended 
December 31, 1999 and primarily represents borrowings under the senior secured 
corporate facility, issuance of senior notes and proceeds from the issuance of 
preferred stock, partially offsElt. by repayments of horrowings under long term 
debt. cash provided by financing 'activities was $1,027 million for the year 
ended December 31, 1998 and primarily relates to proceeds from borrowings 
under the AC-1 and MAC'Credit Facilities, proceeds from the issuance of GCH 
Senior Notes, the GCH Preferred Stock and our IPO, less amounts paid for 
finance and organization costs, the issuance of common preferred stock, the 
repayment of long term debt, the redemption of the G~B Preferred Stock, the 
retirement of the GTH Senior Notes and the increase in amounts held in 
restricted cash and cash equivalents. 

Global Crossing has a substantial amount of indebtedness. Based upon the 
current level of operations, management believes that the Company's cash flows 
fr~ operations, together with available borrowings under its credit facility, 
and its continued ability to raise capital, will be adequate to meet the 
Company's anticipated requirements for working capital, capital expenditures, 
acquisitions and other discretic)nary investments, interest payments and 
scheduled principal payments fOl~ the foreseeable future. There can be no 
assurance, however, that the C~npany's business will continue to generate cash 
flow at or above current levels or that currently anticipated improvements 
will be achieved. If the Company is unable to generate sufficient cash flow 
and raise capital to service the Companyis debt, the Company may be required 
to reduce capital expenditures, refinance all or a portion of its existing 
debt or obtain additional financing. 

Inflation 

Management does not believe that its business is impacted by inflation to a 
significantly different extent than the general economy. 

Year 2000 Compliance 

Prior to December 31, 1999, the Company took all actions that it believed to 
be necessary to insure that its business operations would be Year 2000 ("Y2K") 
compliant. In particular, the Company established a Y2K compliance task forc~, 
reviewed the status of the Company's systems, submitted informa~ion requests 
to third party service provide~s, ~eceived assurances rega~ding Y2K compliance 

" 	 from its major ~,?pplie:rs and developed ccm:tingency plans to address any 
potential Y2K compliance failure. ~he Company expended approximately $40 
million on a pro forma basis through DecemQer 31, 1999-OQ ~ts Y~K readiness 
efforts, principally relating to remediation efforts made in the businesses 
operated by Frontier Corporation. . 
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The Company did not experience a~l significant malfunctions or errors in its 

operating or business systems when the date changed from 1999 to 2000. Based 
on operations since JanuarY 1, 2000, the Company does not expect any 
significant impact to its ongoing business as a result of the Y2K issue. In 
addition, the Company is not aware of any significant Y2K issues or problems 
that may have arisen for its Significant customers and suppliers. 

Euro Conversion 

On JanuarY 1, 1999, a single currency called the Euro was introduced in 
Europe. Eleven of the fifteen member countries of the European union agreed to 
adopt the Euro as their common legal currency on that date. Fixed conversion . 
rates between these countries' e(ltisting currencies (legacy cUrrencies) and the 
Euro were established as of that date. The legacy currencies are scheduled to 
remain legal tender in these pa:r:'ticipating countries between January 1, 1999 
and JanuarY l, 2002 (not later than JUly 1, 2002). During this transition 
period, pilrties may settle trans:actions using either the Euro or a 
participating country's legacy currency. 

Transition to the Euro creates: a number of issues for the Company. Business 
issues that must be addressed Ullclude product pricing policies and ensuring 
the continuity of business and f:inancial contracts. Finance and accounting 
issues include the conversion of: bank accounts and other treasurY and cash 
management activities. The Compa~y has not yet set conversion dates for 
certain of its accounting systen~, statutory reporting and tax books, but will 
do so during 2000. The financial, institutions with which the Company has 
relationships have transitioned to the Euro successfully and are issuing 
statements in dual currencies. 

The Company continues to addreiss these transition issues and does not expect 
the transition to the Euro to ha.ve a material effect on the results of 
operations or financial conditic~ of the Company. The Company does not expect 
the cost of system modificationEI to be material and the Company will continue 
to evaluate the impact of the E~~ conversion. 
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A:SOUT .MAlUCET RISK 
Interest Rate Risk 

The table below provides information about OUr market sensitive financial 
instruments and constitutes a ftforward-looking statement." OUr major market 
risk exposure is changing interest rates. OUr policy is to manage inter,est 
rates through use of a combination of fixed and floating rate debt. Interes.t 
rate swaps may be used to adjust interest rate exposures when appropriate, 
based upon market conditions, and the Company does not engage in such 
transactions for speculative purposes, 

hi.: value 

. lIXpllCtll<l matur!ty date. lOOO lOOl. 200l l003 l004 Thereafte.: TOtal .1l/31/1'99 12/11/199. 

U,Il thollaur:!a) 
llliIII'1' 

, l./lt Senior Hete. au. 
200t.................. . $1.100,000 $l,l.OO,OOO $l..016.'17 '¥lIA 

Avexage inte~e.t 
nt••--fixed•••••••••• ,.It 

, l./lt Senior NOt•• due 

2006 .................. . too,OGO 900,000 IU,ll.l HIli. 

A".."age int.".et 
'rat••··fixed........ .. t.U 

, 5/8t Benio.: Not•• due 
l008 ••••••••••••••••••• BOO, GOO 100,000 791,OOG $134,000 
Average int• .: ••t 

.:eee.·_" fixed. •••••••••• 9.st 
Senior lIec:urll<l D.evolvi.ag 

C:r:1I<lit: reeUity••••• ~ •• $648,597 64B,U7 641,517 111/1. 
Ave.:ag. tne.r••t 

ht••­ -wriable ••••••• (1) 

Rllcal 'tIIm Lam A ••••••• " ,000 549.l.30 646,l.30 G46,130 NIl. 
Ave.:aga tne.re.t 
.:at••--variable•••.•.• 121 

Medium-Ta= Noe••• 
7.51t-'.3t. due 2000 to 
2004 .................. . ,71,500 $40,000 l.07,500 219,000 2U,892 11111. 
Average int.J:e.~ 

rae••·-Uxed•••••••••• B.n 7.5t 9.3t 9.0t 
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7 lIn Senior N'oc.e due 
~004 .................. . 300,000 300.000 lal.;t~o N/A 
Av.rag. int.r••t 
ratee- -fixed.•••• '" ••• 7.3t 

It Dealer Rema..xetable 
Securities (OIlS I due 
20U •••'............... .. 200,000 200,000 187,182 II/A 
Ave..ag. iot.....t 

ratea··fixed.... •••• •• • (31 

Other................... $5,496 $49,'U • 3,,&11 $36,336 14,158 $ 130,509 2'2,028 2H,'26 II/A 
Average int_t 
~t..-';fixed......... .. (4) 

IlDlVA'1'IVliI~ 

Int.ereat :ate 8W.lI.p 

fl....ting for fixed. 
Clmtract notional 
UIOWIt................ .. alOO, 000 • 200,000 $ 206.602 II/A 
Fixed. rate paid by 

ccnmtexpe:cty •••••••••• 7.n .' 
Floating rate paid by 

GCL................. .. (5) 

(1) 	 The interest rate is US dollar LIBOR + 2.25~ which was 8.4~ as of December 
31, 1999. 

(2) 	 The interest rate is British pound LrBOR + 2.5' which was 8.4% as of 
December 31, 1999. 

(3) 	 The interest rate is fixed at 6.0\ until October 2003. At that time, the 
remarketing dealer (J.P. Morgan) has the 'option to remarket the notes at 
prevailing interest rates or tender the notes for redemption. 

(4) 	 Includes $58,557 of fixed rat:e debt with interest rates ranging from 2.0~ 
to 9.0%. $48,460 of floating rate debt with an interest rate of British 
pound LIBOR + 2.5%, which wafl 8. n as of December 31, 1999. 

(5) 	 The interest rate is US doll'lr LIBOR + 1.26l1s, which is set in arrears. 

Foreign Currency Risk 
For those subsidiaries using tlle u.s. dollar as their functioncll currency, 

translation adjustments are recorded in the accompanying condensed 
consolidated statements of operations. None of the Company's translation 
adjustments were material as of and for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 
1998. 

For those subsidiaries not using the U.S. Dollar as their functional 
currency, assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates in effect at 
the balance sheet date and income and expense accounts at average exchange 
rates during the period. Resulting translation adjustments are recorded 
directly to a separate component of shareholders' equity. As of and for the 
year ended December 31, 1999, the Company incurred a foreign currency
translation adjustment of $21 million. For the year ended December 31, 1998, 
the translation adjustments were immaterial. ' 

Foreign currency forward transactions arE: used by the Company to hedge 
exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. The Euro was the 
principal currency hedged by the Company. Changes, in the value of forward 
foreign exchange contracts, which are designated as hedges of foreign currency 
denominated assets and liabilities, are classified in the same manner as 
changes in the underlying assets and liabilities. 
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 

See the index included on page F-l, Index to Consolidated Financial 
Statements and Schedule. . 

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEME~TS WITH· ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND 
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 


None. 


42 

Copyright 2000 EDGAR Online. file. (ver 1.0112.003) Page 45 



-- -' 

GLOBAL CROSSING LTD -IO-K -Annual Report Date Filed: 3117/1000 

PART III 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT 

The following table s~ts forth the names, ages anq positions of the 
directors and executive officers of GCL. The Bye-laws of GCL provide for a 
Board of Directors consisting of up to 20 members divided into three classes 
with terms of tll.J:;ee years each. }~t the 1999 Annual General Meeting of 
Shareholders, Messrs. Brown, Casey, Conway, McDonald and Porter were-elected 
Class A Directors with a term expiring in 2000; Messrs. Annunziata, Cook, 
Bippeau, Kent, Lee, Raben and Scanlon were elected Class B Directora with a 
term expiring in 2001; and Messrs. Bloom, Clayton, Kehler, McCorkindale, Steed 
and Winnick were elected Class C Directors with a term expiring in 2002. Mr. 
Bindery was appointed a Class A Director by the Board effective February 9, 
2000. Mr. Fok was appointed a Class A Director by the Board effective February 
28, 2000. 

Name 

Gary Winnick .•...••..•.•..•••.• 
Lodwrick M. Cook•.•....•....•.. 
Leo J. Bindery, Jr•••....•...• 

Thomas J. Casey•.•..•...•.•...• 
David L. Lee .•••.•••..•.•.••••• 

Joseph P. Clayton ..........•.•• 


Jack M. Scanlon.....•.•.•.••..• 

Abbott L. Brown..•...•.......•• 
Barry Porter ••...•.••..•..•.••. 
Dan J. Cohrs .••..••.•.....•..•. 

John L. Comparin•••.......•...• 
James C. Gorton••.•..••..••..•• 

John A. Scarpat i ...•.••••.•••.. 
Robert B. Sheh.......... , ..... . 

Edward Mull igan..•••...•....••• 

William B.. Carter••..•.......•• 


S. Wallace Dawson, Jr••••••••• 
Robert Annunziata .•.••••.•••..• 
Jay R. Bloom..•...•.•..• ·...•... 
William E. Conway, Jr•....••.• 
Eric Hippeau ..••..••.•••.•..••. 
Dean C. Kehler•..••........•.•• 
Geoffrey J.W. Kent ••.•......... 
Canning Fok Kin-nins ....•..•••• 
Douglas B. McCorkindale ....•..• 
James F. McDonald .•.•••••..•..• 
Bruce Raben.•••.•.•.••••••••.•• 
Michael R. Steed............... . 

Age Position 

52 ~irman of the Board and Director 
71 Co-Chairman' of the Board and Director 
52 Chief Executive Officer and Director; 

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, 
GlobalCenter Inc. 

48 Vice Chairman of the Board and Director 
50 President, Chief Operating Officer and 

Director 
SO Director: President, Global Crossing 

North America 
58 Director; Vice Chairman of the Board, 

Asia Glohal Crossing 
56 Senior Vice President and Director 
42 Senior Vice President and Director 
47 Senior Vice president and Chief 

Financial Officer 
47 Senior Vice President, Buman Resources 
38 Senior Vice president and General 

Counsel 
48 Chief Administrative Officer 
60 Executive Vice President, Construction 

and Operations
44 Senior Vice President, Network 

Operations
55 President, Global Crossing Development 

CO.i Chief Executive Officer, Global 
Marine Systems 


S4 President, Atlantic crossing 

52 Director 

44 Director 

SO Director 

48 Director 

43 Director 

57 Director 

48 Director 

60 Director 

60 Director 

46 Director 

SO Director 
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Gary Winnick--Mr. Winnick, founder of GCL. has been Chairman of the. Board 

of GeL since March 1997. Mr. Winnick is the founder and has been the Chairman 
and Chief E."(ecutive Officer of Pacific Capital Group, Inc. (1/ PCG"). a leading 
merchant bank specializing in telecommunicati.ons, media and technology, which 
has a substantial equity investmEmt in GCL, since 1985. 

Lodw:rick M. Cook--Mr. Cook hall been Co-Chairman of the Board of GCL since 
September 1997 and Vice Chairman and Managing Director of PCG since 1997. He 
became Chairman of Global Marine Systems. a wholly-owned subsidiary of GeL, in 
1999. Prior to joining PCG, Mr. Cook spent 39 years at Atlantic Richfield Co., 
last serving as Chairman of the Board of Directors from 19B5 to 1995, when he 
became Chairman Emeritus. Mr.Cook is also a member of the Board of Directors 
of Castle Ii. Cooke, Inc., Litex, :rnc. and 9llNotify.com. 

Leo J. Hindery, Jr.-.-In February 2000, Mr. Hindery was named CEO of GeL. 
Mr. Bindery has been a GeL Director since February 2000 and Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer of GeL I s Globa:LCenter Inc. subsidiary since December 1999. 
Prior thereto, he had been President and Chief Executive Officer of AT&T's 
Broadband and Internet Services ciivision since March 1999. From March 1997 
until March 1999, Mr. Hindery wali Presi4ent of Tele-COIIIIIUnications. Inc., a 
cable television and programming company. Prior thereto. he was Managing
General Partner of InterMedia Partners, a cable television operation that he 
founded in 1988. 

Thomas J. Casey--Mr. Casey has been Vice Chairman and a Director since 
December 1998. after having been appointed Managing Director of GeL in 
September 1998. Prior ,to joining GCL. Mr. Casey was co-head of Merrill Lynch & 
Co.'s Global Communications Investment Banking Group for· three years. From 
1990 to 1995, Mr. Casey was a partner and co:head of the telecommunications 
and media group of the law firm 'of Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher and Flom. Mr. 
Casey also serves as president of PCG. 

David L. Lee--Mr. Lee has been President and Chief Operating Officer and a 
Director of GCL since March 1997. He has also been a managing director of PCG 
since 1989. 

Joseph P. Clayton--Mr. Clayton has been a Director of GCL since September 
1999. He has also served as President. Global crossing North America since 
that time. Mr. Clayton was Vice-Chairman of GCL from September 1999 to March 
2000. Prior to the Merger with Global Crossing. Mr. Clayton was Chief 
Executive Officer of Frontier since August 1997 having served as Frontier's 
President and Chief Operating Officer from June 1997 to August 1997. Prior 
thereto. he was Executive Vice President, Marketing and Sales--Americas and 
Asia, Thomson Consumer Electronics, a worldwide leader in the consumer 
electronics· industry. 

Jack M. Scanlon--Mr. Scanlon has been a Director since April 1998 and Vice­

Chairman of Asia Global Crossing since 1999. Mr. Scanlon was Chief Executive 

Officer of GCL from Apr:!,l 1998 to March 1999 and Vice Chairman of GCL from 

March 1999 to March 2000. Prior to joining GeL. Mr. Scanlon was President and 

General· Manager of the Cellular Networks and Space Sector of Motorola Inc. and 

had been affiliated with Motorola Inc. since 1990. 


Abbott L. Brown--Mr. Brown halS been a senior Vice President and a Director 

of GCL since 1997. He had been 3. managing director and Chief Financial Officer 

of PCG from 1994 to 1998. From 1990 through 1994, Mr. Brown was Exeautive Vice 

President, Chief Financial O~ficer and a member of the board of directors of 

Sony Pictures Entertainment, Inc •• a subsidiary of Sony Corporation. 


Barry Porter--Mr. Porter has been a Senior Vice President and a director of 

GCL since 1997. He has also beetL a managing director of PCG since 1.993. Prior 

thereto. Mr. Porter had been a Senior Managing Director in the investment 

b~ing department of Bear, Ste,arns. Ii. C:o. '. Inc. 


Dan _J. Cohrs-:'Mr. Cohrs has heen Senior Vice President and Chief. Financial 

Officer of GeL since May 1998. l~rom 1993 to 1998, Mr. eohrs was· affiliated 

with GTE Corpora~ion, rising to the position of Vice ,resident and Chief 

Planning and Development Officel~. in 1997. 


John L. Comparin--Mr. Comparin has been Senior Vice President, Human 

Resources of GeL since AuguSt 1999. Prior thereto. Mr. Coraparin had been 

Senior Vice President--Human Resources of ALLTEL Corporation, an tnformation 

technology company that provides wireline and wireless communications and 

information services. 
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James C. Gorton··Mr. Gorton has been Senior Vice President and General 

Counsel of GCL since July 1998, and also served as Secretary of GCL from 

August 1998 through September 1999. From 1994 to 1998, Mr. Gorton was a 

partner in the New York law firm. of Simpson Thacher & Bartlett. 


John A. Scarpati··Mr. Scarpati was appointed Chief Administrative Officer 
of GCL in December 1999. He previously se~d as Vice President and Chief 
Financial Officer at AT&T Business Services Group from 1998 to 1999. Prior 
thereto, Mr. Scarpati served since 1984 in various executive officer. positions 
for the Teleport Communications Group, including Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer. 

Robert B. Sheh--Mr. Sheh has been Executive Vice President, Construction 
and Operations since February 1999. From 1992 to 1998, Mr. Sheh served as 
President and Chief Executive Officer of International Technology Corporation, 
an environmental management services firm, and as Chairman and Chief Executive 
of Air & Water Technologies, an environmental management services firm. From 
1989 to 1992 Mr. Sheh served as President of The Ralph M. Parsons Company, a 
worldwide engineering and construction company. Mr. Sheh held positions of 
increasing responsibility at Par·sons over a period of 20 years. 

Edward Mulligan--Mr. Mulligan, joined Global Crossing Ltd. in November 1999 
as Senior Vice President for Eng'ineering and Operations. In July 1973, Mr. 
Mulligan began his car~er with 1\,T&'1'. In 1990 he joined Teleport Communications 
Group (ft'1'CG" l . and rose within the organization to head the Product Lines-of­
Business. In 1998 he rejoined A'I'&T when 'l'CG was acquired by AT&T. 

William B. Carter--Mr. Carter' has served ~s President of Global Crossing 
Development Co., a subsidiary of' GCL since September 1997. Since July 1999, he 
has served as CEO of the Global Marine Systems subsidiary of GeL. Prior to 
joining GCL, he was president aI'lld chief executive officer of AT&T Submarine 
Systems, Inc., overseeing the re,search and development, planning, 
negotiations, engineering, imple,mentation, and integration of their 
international cable and satellit:e facilities. Mr. Carter previously served as 
dire'ctor of international networ:k operations for AT&T. 

S. Wallace Dawson, Jr.--Mr. Ilawson joined GCL in September 1997 and was 
appointed Chief Executive Office,r, Atlantic Crossing Ltd. in August 1998. He 
joined Sell Laboratories in 19651 and subsequently became associated with AT&T 
Long Lines, where he was responflible for AT&T Packet Switched Services and 
Data Networking Services. At AT&.T Submarine Systems, Inc., he had overall 
delivery responsibility for implementation of all submarine cable projects. 

Robert AIlnunziata--Mr. Annun~:iata, a Director of GCL since March 1999, was 
Chief Executive Officer of GCL 1:rom February 1999 through March 2000. From 
September 1998 to February 1999, Mr. Annunziata was President of AT&T's 
business services group, responflible for the AT&T global network. Prior 
thereto, Mr. Annunziata 'was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the 
Teleport Communications Group, cl competitive local exchange carrier, from 1983 
to 1998. 

Jay R. Bloom-·Mr. Bloom, a Dlrector of GCL since March 1997, is a managing 
director of CIBC World Markets Corp. and co-head of its Leveraged Finance 
Group. In addition, Mr. Bloom iEI a member of CIBC's U.S. Management Committee; 
co-head of CIBC World Markets H.:ILgh Yield Merchant Banking Funds; and a 
managing director of Caravelle 1ldvisors, L.L.C., the investment advisor to 
Caravelle Investment Fund, L.L.G., an entity that owns shares of Global 
Crossing common stock. Mr. Bloo~~ is also a managing director and member of 
Trimaran Fund II, L.L.C., TrimaJ~an .Fund Management, L.L.C., and Trimaran 
Investments II, L.L.C. Prior to joining CIBC World Markets in 1995, Mr. Bloo~ 
was a founder and managing dire<:tor of The Argosy Group L. P. Mr. Bloom also 
serves as a director of CISC W9J~ldMarkets Corp., Heating Oil Partners, L.P., 

" 	 Cdnsolidated Ady.isers Liniited,l:'.L:C:··iArgosy Heating Partners., Inc., Dominos, 
Inc., :tASIS Healthcare corporatJlon and Morris Material Handling, Inc •. 

William E. Conway, Jr.-·Mr. <:onway, a Director of GCL since August 1998, 
has been a managlng director of The Carlyle Group, a 'private global investment 
firm, aince 1987. Prior thereto" Mr. Conway had been Senio;;' Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer of MCI Communications Corporation. Mr. Conway also 
.serves as director of Nextel Cornnrunications, Inc. 
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Eric Hippeau--Mr. Hippeau, a Director of GCL since September 1999, is 

Chairman and Chief EXecutive Of,Eicer of Ziff·Davis Inc., a publicly-listed 
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company whose majority shareholder is Softbank, Corp. Ziff-Davis Inc. is a 
leading integrated media and marketing company focused on computing and 
internet-related technology. Mr. Hippeau bas held this position since December 
1993, prior to which he held other senior executive positions within ziff ­
Davis. He is also a director of Ziff-Davis Inc., Yahool, Inc., and Starwood 
Hotels and Resorts Worldwide, Inc. 

Dean C. Kehler--Mr. Kehler, a Director of GCL since March 1997, is a 

managing director of ClSC World 14arkets Corp. and co-head of its Leveraged 

Finance Group. In addition, Mr. l{ehler is a member of ClBC's U.S. Management 

Committee; co-head of CIBC World Markets High Yield Merchant Banking Funds: 

and a managing director of Caravelle Advisors, L.L.C., the investment advisor 

to Caravelle Investment Fund, L.L.C., an entity that owns shares of Global 

Crossing common stock. Mr. lCehle:1:' is also a managing diJ;'ector and membeJ;' of 

Trimaran Fund II, L.L.C., Trimaran Fund Management, L.L:C., and Trimaran 

Investments II, L.L.C. Prior to joining CIBC World Markets in 1995, Mr. Kehler 

was a founder and managing director of The Argosy Group L.P. Mr. Kehler also 

serves as a director of CIBC World Markets Corp., Booth Creek Group, Inc. and 

Heating Oil Partners, L.P. 


Geoffrey J.W. Kent--Mr. Kent, a Director of GCL since August 1998, is 

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Abercrombie & Kent group of 

companies in the travel-related services industry, and has been associated 

with these companies since 1967. 


Canning Fok Xin-ning--Mr. Fok has been a Director of GCL since February 

2000. He has served as Group Managing Director of Hutchison Whampoa Limited 

(IIHutchisOl;l") since August 1993. Hutchison, part of the Li Xa-shing group of 

companies, is a large multi-national conglomerate based in Hong Kong. In. 

January 2000, Hutchison formed a joint venture with GCL to pursue fixed-line 

teleco~ications and internet opportunities in the Hong Kong Special 

Administrative Region, China. Mr. Fok is the Chairman of ~utchison 

Telecommunications (Australia) Limited and Partner Communications Company Ltd. 

and Deputy Chairman of Cbeung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited and 

Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited. He is also a director of Cheung KOng 

(Holdings) Limited and VoiceStream Wireless Corporation. 

Douglas H. Mccorkindale--Mr. McCorkindale, a Director of GCL since 

September 1999, is Vice Chai~ and President of Gannett Co., Inc., a 

nationwide diversified communications company, and has held that position 

since September 1997. Prior thereto, he was Gannett's Vice Chairman and Chief 

Financial and Administrative Officer.· Mr. McCorkindale is also a director of 

Gannett and Continental Airlines and a director or trustee of a number of 

investment companies in the family of Prudential Mutual F-unds. 


James F. McDonald--Mr. McDonald, a Director of GCL since September 1999, 

has been President and Chief Executive Officer of Scientific-Atlanta, Inc., a 

leading supplier of broadband communications systems, satellite-based video, 

voice and data communications ne;tworks and world-wide customer service and 

support, since 1993. He is also a director of Scientific-Atlanta and 

Burlington Resources, Inc. 


Bruce Raben--Mr. Raben, a Director of GCL since March 1997, is a managing 

director of CIBC Oppenheimer. P:t'ior to joining CIBC Oppenheimer in January 

1996, Mr. Raben was a founder, a~aging director and co-head of the Corporate 

Finance Department of Jefferies & Co., Inc. since 1990. Mr. Raben also serves 

as a director of Optical Security, Inc., Bvercom, Inc., Terex Corporation and 

Equity Marketing, Inc. 


Michael R. Steed--Mr. Steed, a Director of GCL since March 1997, has been a 

managing director of PCG since Ilecember 1999. Prior thereto, Mr. Steed had 

been Senior Vice President of Investments for the Union Labor Life Insurance 

Company, ULLlCO Inc. ("ULLICO"t a.n4. its family of companies and President of 


.. 	 T:tust Fund Advis.ors, OLLICO' s investment managemeIlt subsidiary, since 1992. 
Mr. Steed also serves as a director of Value America and VR-l. 

SECTION 16 (al B~ICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIlIliCE 

~der the federal securities laws, our directors, execuGive officers and 10% 

shareholders are required within a prescribed period of time to report to the 

Securities and a~change Commission transactions and holdings in 
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Global Crossing's common stock. Based solely on a review of the copies of such 
forms received by us and on written representations from certain reporting 
persons that no annual corrective filings were required for those persons, we 
believe that during fiscal year :L999 all these filing requirements were timely 
satisfied, with the exception of one Form 4 relating to a single transaction 
in Global Crossing common stock which was filed late by Lodwrick Cook. 

ITEM ll. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

Compensation Committee Report 

compensation Philosophy 

Global Crossing's compensation philosophy is to relate the compensation of 
Global Crossing's executive officers to measures of comPany performance that 
contribute to increased value for Global Crossing's shareholders. 

To assure that compensation policies are appropriately aligned with the 
value Global Crossing creates for shareholders, Global Crossing's compensation 
philosophy for executive officers takes into account the following goals: 

enhancing shareholder value; 

representing a competitiVe and performance-oriented environment that 
motivates executive officers to achieve a high level of individual, 
business unit and corporate results in the business environment in which 
they operate; 

relating incentive-based compensation to the performance of each 
executive officer, as measured by financial and strategic performance 
goals; and 

enabling Global Crossing to attract and retain top quality management. 

The compensation Committee of the board of directors, which we will refer to 
as the "Committee," periodically reviews the components of compensation for 
Global Crossing's executive officers on the basis of this philosophy and 
periodically evaluates the competitiveness of its executive officer 
compensation program relative to comparable companies. Nben the Committee 
determines that executive officer compensation adjustments or bonus awards are 
necessary or appropriate, it makes such modifications as it deems appropriate. 
However, the board of directors has sole authority to modify the compensation 
of the Chairman, the Co-Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer ("CEO"), 
although the Committee makes recommendations to the board in this regard. 

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 limits the deductibility 
of certain annual compensation payments in excess of $1 million to a company's 
executive officers. It is the objective of the Compensation Committee to 
administer compensation plans in compliance with the provisions of Section 
162(m) where feasible and where consistent with Global crossing's compensation
philosophy as stated above. In that connection, at the 2000 Annual General 
Meeting of Shareholders, the Com.pany intends to recommend the adoption of an 
annual bonus plan meeting the requirements of Section 162(~). The Company 
already has in place a stock incentive plan pursuant to which stock-based 
incentives may be awarded in compliance with Section 162(m) . 

Executive Compensation Components 

The major components of compensation for executive officers, including the 
CEO, are base salary, annual bonuses and stock option grants. Each component 
of the total executive officer compensation package emphasizes a different 
aspect of Global Crossing's compensation philosopb¥. 

Base Salary.• Base salarieS" fO~'executive officers are initially set upon . 
.h1ring by the Committee (or, in the case of the Chai~, the Co­
Chairman and the CEO, by tll.e board of directors Uf)0fl the Committee I s 
recommendat.ion) based on re:cruiting requirements! (i.e., market demand), 
competitive pay practices, individual experience and breadth of 
knowledge, internal equity considerations and other objective and 
sul:Jj ective factors. Increas:es to base salary are also determined by the 
Conunittee or the board of directors, as applicable. Increases are 
determined primarily on an evaluation of competitive 
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data, the individual's perf'::lrmance and contribution to Global Crossing, 
and Global crossing's overall perfo:rmance. Base salaries are 
periodically reviewed by the Compensation committee., 

Target Annual Bonuses. Global crossing relies to a large degree on 
annual bonus compensation to attract, retain and reward executives of 
outstanding abilities and to motivate them to perform to the full extent 
of their abilities. Target bonuses for executive officers, including the 
CEO, are determined on the basis of competitive bonus levels, level of 
responsibility, ability to influence results on a corporate or business 
unit level and, on occasion, subjective factors. Target'annua1 bonuses 
for the Chairman, the Co-Chirlrman and the CEO are determined by the 
board of directors upon rec':JIll1IIendation by the compensation Committee. 
Target annual bonuses for o't:her executive officers, are determined by the 
Committee. 

Stock Option Grants: The only current long-term incentive opportunity 
for executive officers, including the CEO, is the award of stock option 
grants under the 1998 Global crossing Ltd. Stock Incentive Plan. In 
contrast to bonuses that are paid for prior year accomplishments, stock 
option grants represent incentives tied to future stock appreciation. 
They are intended to provide executive officers with a direct incentive 
to enhance shareholder value. Options generally vest over a three-year 
period with a maximum. term of ten years. Option grants are awarded at 
the discretion of the Cqmmittee primarily based on an evaluation of 
competitive data and the anticipated contribution that the executive 
officer will make to Globa~ crossing. 

The COl!lJTli ttee conducts annuall:i" a full review of the performance of Global 
Crossing and its executive officlers in assessing compensation levels. The 
Committee considers various qualitative and quantitative indicators of both 
Global crossing and the individu.a1 performance of its executive officers. This 
review evaluates Global crossing's perfo:rmance both on a short- and long~term 
basis. The Committee may consider such quantitative measures as Total 

. Shareholder Return (-TSR"), Return on Shareholder'S Equity ("ROSB"), Return on 
Capital Employed ("ROCS-), revenue growth, and growth in Adjusted EBITDA and 
other measures of profitability. The Committee may also consider qualitative 
measures such as leadership, experience, strategic direction and overall 
contribution to Global Crossing. 

In addition, the Committee evaluates compensation in light of the 
compensation practices of other companies in the telecommunications industry 
and peer group companies as may be determined by the Committee. These . 
companies are used as a reference standard for establishing levels of base 
salary, bonus and stock options. For 1999, executive off~cer compensation was 
targeted at the 75th percentile relative to peer group companies in the 
telecom in~ustry. 

2000 Bxecutive compensation Review 

Based on the factors set forth above, the Committee approved (or, in the 
case of the Chairman, Co-Chairman and CEO, recommended that the board of 
directors approve) salary increases and 1999 bonus awards for all executive 
officers. In addition, the Committee approved approximately 11,000,000 
additional stock options grants to executive officers during 1999. 

Robert Annunziata was appointed CEO in February 1999. Jack Scanlon held the 
pOSition of CEO from the beginning of 1999 through February 1999. In 
determining salary increases and 1999 bonus awards for Messrs. Annunziata and 
Scanlon, the Committee reviewed the performance of Global Crossing against its 
goals. During 1999, annual revenue increased from $420 million to $1.7 billion 
as a result of internal growth and acquisitions completed during the year. 
Global Crossing's market capit~lization grew from $10 billion to $43 billion 

.. 	 or 330". In' addition, Mr. Annunziat'awas a;: key member of the team that 
comple~ed the successful merger with Frontier corporation, and the 
acquisitions of Racal Telecom and Global Marine Systems.- . 

THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE 
James F. MCDona1d,-Chairman 
Gaoffrey J. W. Kent 
Douglas McCorkindale 
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Summary Compensation Table 

The table below sets forth information concerning compensation paid to 
certain executive officers during the last fiscal year. 

Annual Cempenaacion 	 Lcll!!' 1'erm CCllpenaatian 

Ot:her aeatl'ietad Securities 
lImlUal Steck underlying LTIP All Other 

'IliaI' Salary Banual:1l CClllpllnaat.iQQ(~) 1\>tud(.. ) Opc1ona/SAAJI Payouts Ccimpenucion(l) 

Gary Winnick•••••••••••• 19" $169, US, 785, 000 • 94, 0" 

~ 

Robel:t AlllUmlliata••••••• US!! 464,'" 11,000,000 .7,500,000 
_ Chiee 

~tive o~eicer 

Jack M. ScanlQQ· •••••••• 1'" 622,500 504, 000 $ 5,000 

Vice Cha1:man. JIlI1& 1998 .50.000 nG,OOO $2ll,569 3, &00, 000 

G1ab&1 crossing 
Th<mI&s J. Casey......... 1'" 925,000 625,000 1,600,000 

ViCII Chai~ 1". 2U."7 53l,1l3 2,000,000 

.JoIm A. Scarpati........ 1999 3&.217 2,000,000 1,000,000 222,222 

ClLiIl! Administrative 
Otficer 

'IIi11illlll B. CartR....... 19" 6:12,500 39!I,OOO 5,000 

. l'nIaident, Global 1'" SOO,OOO 1,0511,000 3,000,000 , 5.000 

Cra••ill!!' DevelClplllClAt 1"7 11200,000' 7511,000 

Co'1 ChillI! _"",t:ivlI 
Officer, G1abal Marinll 

aystems 

* 	Mr. Annunziata became Chief Executive Officer in February 1999 and Mr. 
SCaIllon ~esigned the position in February 1999. Mr. Scanlon is still one of 
the four most highly compensated officers of Global Crossing other. thaIl the 
CEO. 	 . 

(l) 	The amounts in this column represent annual bonuses, except that Mr. 
Annunziata's amount reflects a $10,000,000 signing bonus and a $1,000,000 
annual bonus1 and Mr. Scarpati's amount ~eflects a $2,000,000 signing 
bonus. 

(2) 	Mr. Winnick ~eceived imputed income for the personal use of corporate 
ai~craft in. 1999. . 

(3) 	Messrs. SCaIllon and carter received matching company cont~ibutions on 
their 401(k} plan deferrals. Mr. Scarpati is to receive an $8,000,000 
bonus upon the completion of 3 years of se~ice, of which 1/36th was 
acc~ed in 1999. . 

Certain Compensation Arrangements 

The 1998 Global Crossing Ltd. Stock Incentive Plan (the "1998 Plan") 
p~ovides that, unless otherwise provided in the specific award agreement, upon 
a "change in control." certain a.wards granted unde~ the 1998 Plan may, in the 
sole discretion of the Compensation Committee, be deemed to vest immediately. 
~he award agreements generally p~ovide for accelerated vesting upon a change 
in cont~ol. A -change in control- is defined under the 1998 Plan in_general as 
the occu~ence of any of the following: (1) any person or entity, other than 
certain of our affiliates, becomes the "beneficial owner, II as defined under 
Rule l3d-3 promUlgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, of 
securities of Global crossing rep~esenting 30t or mo~e of the combined voting 
power of our then outstaIlding securities; (2) during any period of 24 months( 
individuals who at the beginning of such period constituted the board of 
direct~s and any new di~ecto~. (other than any di~ectors who meet certain 

.. 	 exceptions irpec;l..fied in the 1998Plari)· whOse election was approved in advance 
by a vQte of at l.east two-thirds of the directors then still in· office cease 
for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the ~o~rd; 13) our 
shareholders approve any transaction pursuant to which Global Crossing is 
merged or consolldated with any other company, othe~'than a me~er or 
co~solidation which would result in our shareholders immediately prior thereto 
continuing to own more than 65' of the combined voting power of the voting
securities of the su~iving entity outstaIlding after such transaction; or (4) 
our shareholders approve a plan of complete liquidation of Glchal4:~ossing or 
an agreement for the sale or di!lposition by Global Crossing of all or 
substantially all of our assets, other than the liquidation of Global Cros'sing 
into a wholly owned suhsidia~l' 
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In January 2000, the board of directors authorized Global Crossing to enter 
into change in control agreements with our executive officers and certain of 
our other key executives. These agreements provide for certain benefits upon 
actual or constructive termination of employment in the event of a -Change in 
Control n (as defined below). With respect to the executive officers named in 
the Summary Compensation Table above, if, within 24 months of the month in 
which a Change in Control OCCurEI, his employment is terminated by us (other 
than for cause or by reason of death or disability), or he terminates 
employment for "good reason" (generally, an unfavorable change in employment 
status, compensation or benefits or a required relocation), he shall be 
entitled to receive (i) a lump sum payment equal to three times the sum of his 
annuaf base salary plus guideline bonus opportunity (reduced by any cash 
severance benefit otherwise paid to the executive under any applicable 
severance plan or other severance .arrangement), Iii) a prorated annual target
bonus for the year in which the Change in Control ocCurs, (iii) continuation 
of his life and health insurance coverages for three years and (iv} payment of 
any excise taxes due in respect of the foregoing benefits and of any other 
payments made to the executive as a result of the Change in Control. The term 
of each of these agreements will continue through December 31, 2001, after. 
which it will be automatically extended for additional one-year terms subject 
to termination by either party on one year's prior notice. There is an 
automatic. 24-month extension following any Change in Control. A Change in 
Control generally is deemed to occur if: (1) any person or entity, other than 
certain of our affiliates, becomes the "beneficial owner" of securities of 
Global Crossing representing 20~t or more of the combined voting power of our 
then outstanding securities; (2:! during any period of 24 months, individuals 
who at the beginning of such pedod constituted the board of .directors ~d any 
new director (other than any dil=ectors who meet certain exceptions specified 
in the change in control agree~!nt) whose election was approved in advance by 
a vote of at least two-thirds oj: the directors then still in office cease for 
any reason to constitute at lealst a majority of the board; (3) any transaction 
is consummated pursuant to whicb Global Crossing is merged or consolidated 
with any other company, other than a merger or consolidation which would 
result in our shareholders "immediate:).y prior thereto continuing to own more 
than 65% of the combined voting power of the voting securities of the 
surviving entity outstanding afl:er such transaction; or (4) Global Crossing is 
completely liquidated or we sen or dispose of all or substantially all of our 
assets, other than the liquidation of Global Crossing into a wholly owned 
subsidiary. 

In December 1999, we entered into an employment agreement with Leo J. 
Bindery, Jr. providing for Mr. Bindery' s employment as Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer of our GlobalCenter subsidiary for an initial term of three 
years. The employment agreement provided for a base annual salary of not less 
than $500,000 and a guaranteed ~onus of not less than $500,000. Mr. Bindery 
also received stock options to purchase 500,000 shares of Global Crossing 
commen stock at an exercise price of $45 per share. These stock options vest 
34!- on Mr. Bindery's first date of employment and the balance in 22' ~ 
increments on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of such date. 
Pursuant· to the employment agreement, Mr. Hindery is also entitled to receive 
stock options covering 5.5' of the common stock of our GlobalCenter subsidiary 
or of a tracking stock designed to reflect the performance of the GlObalCenter 
business. Such GlobalCenter stock options will have an aggregate exercise 
price of $110 million and will '"est 3U immediately and the balance in 22' 
increments on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of Mr. 
Bindery's employment start date. In March 2000, Mr. Bindery's compensation 
arrangements were changed to reflect his new responsibilities as CEO of Global 
Crossing Ltd. At that time, Mr. Bindery's annual baae salary was increased to 
$995,000 and he received an additiOnal 2,000,000 Global CrOSSing Ltd. stock 
options at an exercise price of $54.375 per share, such options to vest 
ratably over three years. Upon a "change in control" or upon the actual or 
constructive discharge of Mr. ~ind~ry. without ·cause" (as defined in Mr. 
Bindery'S agree~nt), all of his Options will immediately vest in full, and 
Mr. Higdery will be entitled to receive a lump sum payment equal to the sum of 
his annual base salary and bonus through the end of the te~ of. the agreement. 

In February 19-99, we entered into an employment agreement with Robert 
Annunziata providing for Mr. Annunziata's employment as Chief Executive 
Officer of Global Crossing for an initial term of three years. The employment 
agreement provided for a base annual salary of not less than $500,000 and a 
target annual bonus of not less than $500,000. In addition, Mr. Annunziata was 
provided a $10 million signing bonus, subject to partial repayment in certain 
circumstances, as well as a $5 million fully recourse loan facility to be used 
to purchase 
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shares of Global Crossing common stock to the extent Mr. Annunziata used a 
like amount of his own funds for such purpose. Mr. Annunziata did not elect to 
make use of this loan facility. !'Ir. Annunziata also received stock options to 
purchase 4,000,000 (after giving effect to the March 9, 1999 stock split) 
shares of Global Crossing common stock at a split-adjusted exercise price of 
$19.81 per share. These stock opl:ions were to vest in 2St increments starting 
on February 19, 1999 and on Feb~Jary 22 of each of the first three years of 
Mr. Annunziata's employment. Und.ar the employment agreement, Mr. Annunziata 
was given the right, for a period of six months following the initial term of 
the agreement, to require the Company to purchase from him any shares of the 
Company's common stock held by him as a result of the exercise of the 
4,000,000 stock options at a purchase price equal to $49.625 per share. 
Pursuant to the employment agreement, Mr. Annunziata also received stock 
options to purchase an aggregate of 500,000 (post-split~ shares of Global 
Crossing common. stock, at a split-adjusted exercise price of $24.81 per share, 
all of which became vested on Mr. Annunziata's first day of employment. Upon 
Mr. Annunziata'S resignation as CEO on March 2, 2000, all of Mr. Annunziata's 
then unvested stock options gran'ced under the agreement became immediately 
vested and Mr. Annunziata became entitled to receive a lump sum payment equal 
to two times his then annual base salary and bonus. 

Global crossing entered into an employment agreement, dated as of April 1, 
1998, with Jack Scanlon, providing for Mr. Scanlon's employment as Global 
Crossing's Chief Executive Officer for an initial term of two years. The 
employment agreement provided for a base annual salary of not less than 
$600,000 and a guaranteed bonus of not less than $400,000. In addition, Mr. 
Scanlon was issued options to purchase a total of 3,600,000 (after adjusting 
for subsequent stock splits) shares of Global crossing common stock at a 
split-adjusted exercise price of $0.835 per share. These options vest in 25% 
increments on Mr. Scanlon's first day of employment and on each of the first 
three anniversaries of that date. Upon a "change in control" of Global 
Crossing, as defined in the 1958 Plan, all of these options will immediately 
vest, and Mr. Scanlon will be entitled to terminate the agreement and receive 
a lump sum payment equal to two times his then annual base salary and bonus. 
Mr. Scanlon will also be entitled to such lump sum payment if he is actually 
or constructively discharged without "cause" (as. defined in the agreement) • 
Mr. Scanlon voluntarily resigned as Chief Executive Officer of Global Crossing 
in February 1.995 to become Vice Chairman of Global Crossing. His employment 
agreement was. extended for one additional year at that time but otherwise was 
left substantially unchanged. 

In September l598, Mr. Thomas Casey was hired by Pacific Capital Group as 
its President. At such time, it was also agreed among Pacific capital Group, 
Global Crossing and Mr. Casey that, in addition to Mr. casey's role as 
President of Pacific Capital Group, Mr. casey would also serve as Managing 
Director of Global Crossing. In connection with such employmerit, Mr. Casey 
received economic rights to 2,000,000 shares of the Global Crossing common 
stock at an effective price of $2.00 per share. Such rights vest in 33' 
in<:rements on the first day of MIX'. Casey's employment and on each of the first 
and second anniversaries of the first day of Mr. Casey's employment. In 
connection with Mr. casey's dual employment, Global Crossing and Pacific 
Capital Group established an arrangement whereby each entity would be 
responsible for a portion of Mr. Casey's salary and long-te:r1ll compensation 
based upon the relative amount of time spent by Mr. Casey on matters 
pertaining to such entity. Initially, 80t of Mr. casey's salary and long-term 
compensation was allocated to Global crossing and 20' of such amounts was 
allocated to Pacific capital Group, subject to adjustment and re-allocation on 
an annual basis. On March l8, 1999, in recognition of the time spent by Mr. 
Casey on Global Crossing matters to such date and his expected ongoing 
responsibilities with Global crCISSing, the Global crossing board of directors 
elected to assume Mr. Casey's en~loyment agreement. including the full amount 
of Mr. Casey' s salary and long-t:erm compensation, with Mr. casey serving full 
time in his role with Global Crclssing as Managing Director and Vice Chairman 

" of the board of directors. . . . .. '. . 
In D~cember lif99 , Global crossling entered into an employmElnt agreement with 

John A. Scarpati providing for I'lr. Scarpati's employmelat_ a~ Chi~f 
Administrative Officer of Global. Crossing for an initial term of three years. 
The employment agreement providE!s for a base salary cif not less than $500,000 
ana a target annual bonus of 1.00t of his ,base annual sala~. In addition, Mr. 
Scarpati was provided a $2 million signing bonus, subject to partial repayment
in certain circumstances, as well as the right to an $8 million payment in the 
event he remains employed by Global Crossing for three years or is actually or 
constructively discharged without ncause" (as defined in the agreement!. In 
connection with his employment, Mr. Scarpati received stock options to 
purchase 
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1,000,000 shares of Global Cross.ing common stock at an exercise price of $53 
per share. These stock options v'est in 2511s increments on the date Mr. Scarpati 
commenced employment with the CClmpany and on each of the first three 
anniversaries thereof. Upon a "change in control" (as defined in the 1998 
Plan) or upon the actual or constructive discharge of Mr. Scarpati wiahout 
"cause" (as defined in the agreement), these options will immediately vest in 
full, and Mr. Scarpati will be entitled to terminate the agreement and receive 
a lump sum payment equal to the sum of his then annual base salary' and bonus. 

compensation of Outside Directors 

Each director who is not an employee of Global crossing receives cash 
compensation of $2,500 for each meeting of the board of'directors attended and 
$1,500 for each attended meeting of a committee of the board of which he or 
she is a member. In addition, each non-employee chairman of a board committee 
also receives an annual retaineI~ of $5,000. During 1999, each non-employee 
di~ector commencing service on the board received options to purchase 120,000 
shares of Global Crossing common stock at an exercise price equal to the fair 
market value of Global Crossing common stock on the date of grant. Each such 
option,has a term of 10 years, became exercisable immediately with respect to 
the first 30,000 shares, and will become exercisable with respect to the 
remaining 90,000 shares in two equal installments on each of the first and 
second anni:versaries 6f the date of grant, in each case so long as such 
director continues to be a director of Global Crossing on such date. 
Commencing in 2000, the board of directors adjusted the level of initial stock 
option grants such that new non-employee directors now receive 40,000 option 
shares (subject to adjustment in the event of a stock split) on the date on 
which, they commence board servic:e. 

Option Grants in Last Fiscal Yeclr 

The table below sets forth in1:ormation concerning options granted to certain 
executive officers during the lclst fiscal year. 
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GLOBAL CROSSING LTD - 10-K -AlIlIllal ,Report Date Filed: 311712000 
Aggregated Option Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and Fiscal Year-End Option 
Values 

The table below sets forth information concerning exercises of stock options 
by certain executive officers during the last fiscal year and the fiscal year-" 
end value of such executive officers' un~~ercised options. 

, Rumber o~, Securities 
Underlying Unexercised Value o~ unexercised 

Opcions In-The-Money Options (2) 

Shares Ac~ired Value 
lIame on Bxercise Realized!l) Bxercisable unexerclsable BXercisa~le Cbexercisable 

Gary Willlliclt ••••••.••••• 1,200,000 600,000 $5B,99B,000 $ 29,499,000 
Chairman 

Robert Annunziata ••••••• Bl,576 $: 2,243,340 1,500,000 6,000,000 42,7Bl,OOO 105,561,000 
Former Chie~ Executive 
O~Ucer 

Jack M. Scanlan ••••••••• 345,6BO 12,525,410 1,334,560 1,800,000 65,613,642 BB,497,OOO 

Vice Chairman, Asia 
Gl~al Crossing 

~omas J. casey•••.••••• 1,006,666 1,926,666 33,699,968 42,799,968 

Vice Chairman 
John A. Scazpati •••••••• 33:3 ,334 666,666 
Ch1e~ Administrative 
O~Uc:er 

william B. Carter••••••• 174,144 4,860,345 1,706,096 1,000,000 83,BBO,2io 49,165,000 

President, Global 
crossing Development 
CO., Chie~ BXecutive 
O~~ice Glo~al Marine 

(l) Amounts indicated are based upon the difference between the exercise price 
" and the closing market price on the exercise date. 
(2) 	Amounts indicated are based upon the difference between the exercise price 

and the closing market priCE! per share of" the common stock of $50.00 on 
December 3l, 1999. 

Compensation Committee Interlock:s and Insider PartiCipation 

The Compensation Committee of the Global Crossing board of directors 
consists of Messrs. McDonald, Kent and McCorkindale, none of whom had any 
relationships with Global Crossing requiring disclosure under Securities and 
Exchange Commission rules. However, prior to November· 4, 1999, the 
Compensation Committee consisted of Lodwrick M. Cook, Michael R. Steed and Jay 
R. Levine (an employee of an affiliate of Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce), 
who were involved in certain tramsactions described in Item l3 below. 
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Comparison of CUmulative Total Returns 

The graph below compares the c:umulative total shareholder return on Global 
Crossing common stock for the period from August 14, 1998, the initial date of 
trading of Global Crossing common stock, to December 31, 1999 with the 
cumulative total return of the Standard _ Poor's 500 Stock Index and the 
NASDAQ Telecom Index over the same period. The graph assumes $100 invested on 
August 14, 1998 in Global Crossing common stock and $100 invested on such date 
in each of the Standard & Poor'el sao Stock Index and the NASDAQ Telecom Index, 
with dividends reinvested. In the proxy statement provided to shareholders in 
connection with our 1999 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, we used a 
peer group of fiber optic cable providers comprised of Qwest, Level 3 
Communications, Inc., Metromedia Fiber Network, Inc., IXC Communications, Inc. 
and Equant NV (the, BOld Peer Group"). We have decided to replace the Old Peer 
Group index with the NASDAQ Telecom Index because we believe the latter index 
to 'be readily accessible to our Shareholders and more representative of the 
industries in which we now compete. In accordance with SEC rules, the graph 
below also illustrates the cunruU.ative total shareholder return of the Old Peer 
Group over the relevant period. 

Stock Performance 
[LINE <mAPH] 

StoP sao NASDAQ 
GBLX Stock Index Telecom Index Old Peer ,Group 

----------- ---_ .. -------- .. ------------­
08/14/1998 100 100 100 100 
09/30/1998 81.86 95.7 91.16 83.51 
12/31/1998 176.96 115.67 125.6 124.49 
03/31/1999 362.75 J.21.04 155.04 178.48 
06/30/1999 334.31 J.29.17 164.27 175.77 
09/30/1999 207.84 . 120.7 156.67 151.07 
12/31/1999 392.16 D8.25 254.61 230.11 

At 12/31/99, a $100 initial investment is worth: 
GBLl: $392.16 
S&P 500 Stock Index $136.25 
NASDAQ Telecom Index $254.61 
Old Peer Group $230.11 

54 

Copyright 2000 EDGAR Online. Inc. (ver I.OW.003) Page 57 



,-- '-" 

GLOBAL CROSSING LTD -/O-K -AlI/lIlal Report Date Filed: 3/17/2000 
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT 

The following table sets fortr.~, as of March 3, 2000. certain information 
regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock by (i) each person or 
entity who is known by us to own beneficially 5% or more of our voting common 
stock, (ii) each of our directors and executive officers and (iii) all of our 
directors and executive officers as a group. To our knowledge, each such 
shareholder has sale voting and investment power with respect to the shares 
shown, unless otherwise noted. For purposes of this table, an individual is 
deemed to have sale beneficial' ownership of securities owned jointly-with such 
individual's spouse. Amounts appearing in the table below include (i) all 
shares of common stock outstanding as of March 3, 2000, (ii) all shares of 
common stock issuable upon the exercise of options within 60 days of March 3, 
2000 and (iii) all shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of 
warrants within 60 days of March 3, 2000. The warrants designated below as 
"New PCG Warrants" and "GCL Warrants" each represent the right to immediately 
purchase shares of GCL common stock at an exercise price of $9.50 per share. 

Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock 

Shares Shares 

N'umbElr of 
Shares (1) 

Subdect to 
New PCG 
Warrants 

Subject 
to GCL 

Warrants 

Shares 
Subject to 
Options (2) 

Percentage 
of Class 

Pacific Capital Group, 
Inc.(3) .••.•••••••.•••. 
360 Horth Crescent 
Drive 

Beverly I;Jills, 
California 90210 

Canadian Imperial Bank 
of Commerce(4)......... 
161 Bay Street, 8th 
Floor--BCE Place 

P.P. Box 500 
M5J258, Toronto, canada 

Gary Winnick(5) ••••••••• 
Lodwrick M. Cook ••••••• ~ 
Leo J. Bindery, Jr •••••• 
Thomas J. Casey(6) .••••• 
Abbott L. Brown(7) •••••• 
Joseph Clayton .••••••••. 
Dan J. Cohrs ........... . 
John Comparin•••••••..•• 
James C. Gorton•.••••.•• 
David L. Lee (8) ••••..••• 
Barry Porter ••••.••••.•• 
John M. Scanlon••••••••• 
John A. Scarpati ••••••.• 
Robert Sheh•••••••.••••• 
William B. Carter ••••••• 
Wallace S. Dawson•..•..• 
Edward Mulligan•••••..•• 
Robert Annunziata •.•.•.• 
Jay R.. Bloom(9) •••.••.•• 
William E. Conway, 
Jr. (10) ..•••••••••••••• 

-. Canning Fok Kin,.Jling ••.. 
Eric Bippeau•.•••••••••• 
Dean C. Xehler(9) ••.•••• 
Geoffrey J.W. X~t •.•.•• 
Douglas McCorkindale •••• 
James McDonald.••.....•• 
Bruce Raben.••.•.•...••• 
Michael R. Steed••••.•.• 
All Directors and 

Executive Officers as a 
Group •..••••••••••.••.. 

85,861,172 6,050,004 2,515,788 o 

75,297,827 o o 240,000 

87,301,383 6,050,004 2.515,788 1,800,000 
3,443,929 950,002 o 362,240 

o o o 170,000 
630,412 o o 1,006,666 

10,386,029 1,450,002 367,666 900,000 
542,396 o o 1,640,000 

l.O,OOO o o 708,668 
5,000 o o o 

15,000 o o 709,606 
18,559,028 1,825,002 663,456 900,000 
17,063,809 1,825,002 610,266 900,000 

363,748 o o 2,234,560 
900 o o 333,334 

o o o 583,685 
239,520 o o 1,706,096 
108,958 o O. 530,400 

6,Q12 o o 50,000 
o o o 5,438,424 

13,993,966 o o 128,533 

2,247,640 o o 75,000 
. 0 o o 8,898,889 

35,a'5 o o 42,300 
14, 848,648 o - - O. 128,533 

o o o 75,000 
:18,855 o o 87,400 

5,351 o 0- 40,932 
o o o 120,000 
o o o 120,000 

158,157,917 12,100,012 4,157,176 29,690,266 

11.98!t 

9.69' 

12.36' .. 
.. 
.. 

1.6U .. 
.. 
.. 
.. 

2.80' 
2.60' .. 
.. 
.. 
.. 
.. 
.. 
.. 

l.8n 

.. 

1.1H.. 

1.92'.. 


." 

." .. 
.. 
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* Percentage of shares beneficially owned does not exceed one percent. 

(1) 	 As of March 3, 2000, 779,714,470 shares of common stock were issued and 

outstanding. 


(2) 	 Represents stock options issued under stock option plans of Global 

crossing, except that Mr. Fok's amount includes S,ssa,ass shares of 

common stock iSSuable upon conversion of the 400,000 shares of 

convertible preferred stock issued to Hutchison whampoa in connection 

with the formation of the Hutchison Global crossing joint venture. As 

Managing Director of HUtchison Whampoa, Mr. Fok may be deemed to share 

investment and voting control over these shares. 
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(3) 	 Includes 70,107,766 shares of common stock and common stock warrants 


owned or managed by GKW Unified Holdings, a company formed for the 

benefit of Gary Winnick and members of his family and managed bY Pacific 

capital Group, which thereby shares investment and voting power over 

such shares. Also includes 25,133 shares of common stock owned by Casey 

Pacific Holdings LLC for the benefic of Thomas J. Casey and managed by 

Pacific Capital Group, which thereby shares investment and voting power 

over such shares. 


(4) 	 These share amounts, which are effective as of March 9, 2000, include 

11,453,529 shares held by certain affiliates of Canadian Imperial Bank 

of Commerce in such a manner that CIBC shares investment power over such 

shares. The indicated options have been assigned to CIBC by CIBC 

employees who previously served 'on the GCL board of directors. 


(5) 	 Includes (a) all shares of common stock beneficially owned by Pacific 
Capital Group, a company controlled by Mr. Winnick, and (b) 1,440,211 
shares held by The Winnick Family Foundation, a non-profit organi%ation 
over whose portfolio securities Mr. Winnick shares investment and votiIlg 
power. 

(6) 	 Includes 605,279 shares of common stock owned by Casey Global Holdings 

LLC and 25,133 shares of common stock owned by Casey Pacific Holdings 

LtC, which companies are managed by GCL and Pacific capital Group, 

respectively, in such a manner that Mr. casey shares investment and 

voting power over such shares. 


(7) 	 Includes (a) 75,350 shares of common stock held by the Ridgestone 

Foundation, a non-profit organization of which Mr, Brown is trustee and 

(b) l50,OOO shares of 'common stock held by' the Abbott and Linda Brown 
Family Foundation, a non-profit organization of which Mr. Brown is 
trustee. ' 

(8) 	 InCludes (a) all 9,900,822 shares of common stock and 513,156 shares of 
common stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants owned by San Pasqual 
Corp., a corporation of which Mr. Lee and his family are the sole 
shareholders and over whose portfolio securities Mr. Lee shares 
investment and voting power and (b) all 3,988,242 shares of common'stock 
and 150,300 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of 
warrants owned by the David and Ellen Lee Pamily Trust, of which Mr. Lee 
is a trustee and in such capacity shares investment and voting power 
over such shares. 

(9) 	 Includes (a) 11,453,529 shares held by certain affiliates of Canadian 
Imperial Bank of Commerce in such a manner that Messrs. Bloom and Kehler 
have shared investment and voting power over such shares and (b) 218,434 
shares held by Caravelle Investment Fund, LLC, for whose inve~tment 
advisor Messrs. Bloom and Kehler serve as managing directors. 

(10) 	 Includes 2,239,640 shares of common stock beneficially owned by the 

Carlyle Group, of which Mr. Conway is managing director and in such 

capacity shares voting and investment control over such shares. 


I'rEM 	13. CERTADl RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED "rRANSACTIONS 

During 1999, we entered into the transactions described below with c,rtain 

of our directors, executive officers and affiliates. 


Transactions with Pacific Capital Group and its Affiliates 

Prior to 1999, Global Crossing entered into certain transactions with 

affiliates of Pacific capital Group (-PCG"), including the acquisition of 

development rights to certain of the Company's fiber optic cable systems. PCG 

is controlled by Gary Winnick, Chairman of the Board of the Company, and some 

other officers and directors of Global Crossing either currently are or at one 

time were affiliated with PCG, including Messrs. Cook, Casey, Lee, Porter and 

Brown. During 1999, Global Crossing subleased from PCG two suites in an office 

building in Beverly Hills, California for payments aggregating approximately. 

$287,000 over the year. In October 1999, Global Crossing consolidated its 

Beverly Hills offices into approximately 87,000 square feet of office space at 


" 	 i~s present'head~arters building atl60 North Crescent Drive. Global Crossing 
leases~this space from North Crescent Realty V, LLC, which is managed by and 
affiliated with PCG, for an aggregate monthly cost· of ap~roximately $400,000. 
North Crescent R~alty V, LLC paid approximately $7.5 .million to improve the 
360 North Crescent prope~ty to meet Global Crossing's specifications and was 
reimbursed approximately $3.2 million of.this amount by GlQbal Crossing.
Global Crossing engaged an independent real estate consultant to review the 
terms of Global Crossingis occupancy of the 360 North Crescent building. which 
terms were found by the consultant to be consistent with market terms and the 
product of an arm's length negotiation. Global Crossing 
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subleases apprOXimately 12,000 square feet of the building to PCG for an 
aggregate monthly cost of approximately $53,000. 

PCG has fractional ownership interests in respect of four aircraft used by 
Global Crossing during 1999. Global Crossing reimburses PCG for PCG's cost of 
maintaining these ownership interests such that PCG realizes no profit from 
the relationship. During 1999, PCG billed Global Crossing approximately $2 
million in aggregate under this arrangement. 

In March 2000, Global Crossing intends to enter into an approximately ten 
year lease of an aircraft that is currently owned by WINCO Aviation. a company 
controlled by Gary Winnick (thrc:Jugh PCG) and Lodwrick Cook. It is anticipated
that a commercial equipment financing company will purchase the aircraft from 
WINCO Aviation and then lease the aircraft to Global Crossing on standard 
commercial terms. The purchase price of the aircraft will be approximately 
$12.5 million, which is the amount WINCO Aviation paid for the aircraft, 
before transactions costs, when WINCO Aviation first acquired the aircraft in 
August 1999. As supported by two independent appraisals obtained by Global 
Crossing, the fair market value of the aircraft is in excess of the p~oposed 
purchase price. 

Relationship to Crescent Wireless Ltd. 

In January 2000, Crescent Wireless Ltd. (-Crescent Wireless") was formed for 
the purpose of part~cipating in the spectrum auctions being held in the United 
Kingdom to provide "third generation" wireless telecommunications services. 
Crescent :wireless is c,ontrolled by Gary Winnick, David Lee and Barry Porter, 
each a director and executive officer of the:Company. In connection with the 
performance by Crescent wireless of its business operations, the Company has 
made available to Crescent Wireless on a consultancy basis certain of the 
company's personnel. In consideration for these services, the shareholders of 
Crescent Wireless have granted to the Company an option to purchase any or all 
of the equity ownership of Crescent Wireless owned by those shareholders. 

Relationship with Nextwave ~elecom Inc. 

In December 1999. we entered into an agreement with NextWave Telecom Inc. 
pUrsuant to which we agreed to make a minority investment in Nextwave through 
the purchase of its convertible preferred stock, subject to certain conditions 
relating to the status of NextWave 's PCS licenses. NextWave' s goal is to 
deploy a state-of-the-art wireless telecommunications network specifically 
designed to provide next-generation wireless services. We also entered into a 
Strategic Services Agreement pursuant to which we are to be the preferred 
provider of backhaul, long distance backbone, web-hosting, and other 
communications services to NextWave. PCG and eIBC both also committed to 
purchase shares of NextWave's convertible preferred stock, subject to 
essentially the same conditions relating to the status of NextWave's PCS 
licenses. As of March 3, 2000, the conditions relating to NextWave's PCS 
licenses have not been satisfied, and none of Global Crossing, PCG or CIBC has 
consummated an equity investment in NextWave. 

'Transactions with canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce and its affiliates 

During 1999, Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce and its affiliates ("eIBC") 
entered into certain financing transactions with Global Crossing. In 
particular, ClBC: (1) acted as an arranger for the $600 m.illion ten-day demand 
note issued by Global Marine Systems in July, (2) acted as an arranger for the 
$3 billion senior secured credit facility entered into by Global Crossing 
Holdings Ltd. in July, (3) was an initial purchaser of the $2 billion 
aggregate principal amount of unsecured senior notes issued by Global Crossing
Holdings in November, and (4) was an initial purchaser of Global Crossing " 
Ltd.'s $650 million aggregate liquidation preference 7t cumulative convertible 
preferred stock issued in December _, C1lJ;'ing 1999, Global Crossing paid ClSC 

" 	 approximately $5.• 6 million in fees in: connection with these transactions. CIBC 
has a substantial beneficial ownership interest in Global Crossing, and 
Messrs. Bloom, Kehler and Raben, directors of Global Crossing, are employees 
of an affiliate pf CIBC. 
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Relationship to Ziff-Davis Inc. and Affiliates 

Eric Hippeau, a director of Global Crossing, is the chairman and chief 

exe~utive officer of Ziff-Davis Inc., a majority of the common stock of which 

is beneficially owned by Softbank Corp. Softbank is a party to the Asia Global 

Crossing joint venture established to provide advanced network-based 

telecommunications services to businesses and consumers throughout Asia. 

Global Crossing, which is responsible for the management and operation of the 

network, contributed to the venture its 57.75% share of the Pacific Crossing 

cable system and its development rights in East Asia Crossing. Softbank and 

Microsoft each contributed $175 million in cash to Asia Global Crossing and 

also committed to make a total of at least $200 million in Global Crossing 

Network capacity purchases over a three-year period, expected to be utilized 

primarily on the Pacific Crossine system and East Asia ~ossing. Softbank and 

Microsoft also agreed to use Asia Global Crossing's network in the region.

Global Crossing currently owns .93% of Asia Global Crossing, with Softbank and 

Microsoft each owning 3.5%. When the fair market value of Asia Global Crossing 

is determined to exceed $5 billion, the ownership interest of Softbank and 

Microsoft will increase to a maximum of 19% each at a valuation of $7.5 

billion and above~ Mr. Hippeau is Softbank's representative-on the Asia Global 

Crossing board of directors. In addition, Ziff-Davis is one of the largest 

web-hosting customers of our GlobalCenter subsidiary. 


Relationship to Hutchison Whampoa Limited 

Canning Fok Kin-ning, managing director of Hutchison Whampoa Limited 
("Hutchison"), was recently appointed a director of Global Crossing. In 

November 199.9, Hutchison and Global CroBsingcentered into an agreement to form 

a SO/SO joint ven~ure to pursue fixed-line telecommunications and Internet 

opportunities in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, China. The joint 

venture, the formation of which was completed in January 2000, combines 

Hutchison's existing territory-wide, building-to-building fixed-line fiber 

optic telecommunications network and certain Internet-related assets in Hong 

Kong with Global crossing's international fiber optic broadband cable capacity 

and web hosting, Internet applications and data services. For its 50% share, 

Global crossing provided to Hutchison $400 million in Global Crossing 

convertible preferred stock. Additionally, Global Crossing committed to 

contribute to the joint venture international telecommunications capacity 

rights on its global fiber optic network and data center related capabilities 

which together are valued at $350 million, as well as $50 million in cash. 


Agreements with Global Crossing Stockholders 

In August 1998, PCG, GKW Unified Holdings (an affiliate of Gary Winnick and 

PCG), affiliates of CIBC, Global Crossing and some of our other shareholders, 

including some of our officers and directors and their affiliates, entered 

into a Stockholders Agreement and a Registration Rights Agreement. Under the 

Stockholders Agreement, Global Crossing has been granted a right of first 

refusal on specified private transfers by these shareholders during the first 

two years after the consummation of our initial public offering on August 

14,1998. In addition, subject to the exceptions -in the Stockholders Agreement, 

some of these shareholders have rights, which are referred to as tag-along 

rights, permitting these shareholders to, participate, on the same terms and 

conditions, in some transfers of shares by any other of these shareholders as 

follows: (l) PCG, GKW Unified Holdings and CIBC and their affiliates and 

permitted transferees have the right to participate in any transaction 

initiated by any of them to transfer 5' or more of our outstanding securities; 

and (2) PCG, GKW Unified Holdings, CIBC and their affiliates and permitted 

transferees have the right to participate in any transaction initiated by any 

of them to transfer any of our securities if that transaction would result in 

a change of control of Global Crossing_ Under the Registration Rights . 

Agreement, our shareholders who are parties to that agreement and a number of 

their transferees have demand and,piggyback registration rights and will 


" 	 receive indemnif.ication and, in some circumstances, reimbursement for expenses 
from U$ in connection with an applicable registration. 

Principal shar~holders of Global crossing repreBen~ing at that time over a 

majority of the voting power of our common stock entered into a Voting 

Agreement with Frontier Corporation in March l.99.9 in conneetion with the 

Frontier merger. These Global Crossing shareholders reaffirmed their voting 

obligations under the Voting 


sa 

Copyrighl2000 EDGAR Online. {nco (ver 1.0112.003) 	 Page 62 



'-'" '"-' 

GLOBAL CROSSING LTD -IO-K -A1IIluaJ Report Dale Filed: 3117/2000 
Agreement in connection with subsequent amendments made to the merger 
agreement during 1999. Pursuant to the Second Reaffirmation of Voting 
Agreement and Share Transfer Restriction Agreement dated september 2, 1999, 
the Global Crossing shareholders that are parties to the Voting Agreement also 
agreed, from September 2, 1999 until March 28, 2000, not to transfer record or 
beneficial ownership of any shares of Global Crossing common stock held by 
such shareholders, other than transfers to charities, transfers made with the 
consent of the Company and other limited exceptions, and to work in good faith 
toward implementing a program with the purpose that, if the Global Crossing 
shareholders that are parties to the Voting Agreement wish to sell or transfer 
their shares after March 28, 2000, these sales or transfers would be completed
in a manner that would provide for an orderly trading market for the shares of 
Global Crossing common stock. 

Also on September 2, 1999, fourteen of our executive 'officers and three 
executive officers of Frontier entered into a Share Transfer Restriction 
Agreement with Global·Crossing. under this agreement, the Global Crossing 
executive officers agreed not to sell or transfer shares of our common stock, 
and the Frontier executive officers agreed not to sell or transfer shares of 
Frontier common stock and the shares of Global Crossing common stock they 
would receive in exchange for their Frontier common stock in the merger, until 
March 28, 2000, subject in each case to substantially the same exceptions as 
are applicable to the Second Reaffirmation of Voting Agreement and Share 
Transfer Restriction Agreement described in the immediately preceding 
paragraph. 

Loan to Executive Officer 

In May 1998, Dan J. Cohrs, an executive officer of the Company, received an 
interest-free relocation loan in the aggregate principal amount of $250,000. 
This loan is repayable in full on May 18, 2001. 
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PART IV 

ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENTs SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 10-K 
(a) List of documents filed as part of this report: 

1. Financial Statements-Included in Part II of this Form 10-K: 

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December .31, 1999 and 1998 

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 

31, 1999 and 1998 and period from March 19, 1997 (])ate of 

Inception) to December 31, 1997. 


Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the years ended 
December 31, 1999 and 1998 and period from March 19, 1997 (Date of 
Inception) to December 31, 1997. . 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 
31, 1999 and 1998 and period from March 19, 1997 (Date of 
Inception) to December 31, 1997. 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended 
December 31, 1999 and 199a and period from March 19, 1997 (Date of 
Inception) to December 31, 1997. 

Notes to 	Consolidated Financial Statements 

2. Financial Statement Schedules--Included in Part II of this Form 10-K: 

Schedule 	II--Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

3. Exhibit Index: 
Exhibit 

Number Exhibit 

2.1 	 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of 'March 16, 1999 (the 
"Frontier Merger Agreement"), among the Registrant, Frontier" 
Corporation and GCF Acquisition Corp. (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 2 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on 
March 19, 1999 (the "March 19, 1999 8-K"l). 

2.2 	 Consent and Amendment No. 1 to the Frontier Merger Agreement, dated as 
of May 16, 1999, among the Registrant, GCF Acquisition Corp. and 
Frontier Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 to the 
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 18, 1999 (the 
"May 18, 1999 a-K"l). 

2.3 	 Amendment No. 2 to the Frontier Merger Agreement, dated as of 

September 2, 1999, among the Registrant, GCF Acquisition Corp. and 


. Frontier Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 to the 

Registrant's 	Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 3, 1999 
(the "September 3, 1999 a-K"». 

2.4 	 Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 26, 1999, between Cable 
& Wireless plc and the Registrant (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant's CUrrent Report on Form 8-K filed on 
July 16, 1999 (the "July 16, 19998-K"». 

2.5 	 Amendment to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 25, 
1999, between Cable & Wireless plc and the Registrant (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the July 16, 1999 8-K). 

2.6 	 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 16, 1999, between the 
Registrant and U S West, +nc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 
to the. Registrant's Curr"ent"Report on Form 8-K filed on May 21, 1999 
(the "May 21, 1999 8-Kn». 

2.7 	 Letter ,Agreement, dated as of May 16, 1999, .between the Registrant and 
U S West, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99 to the May 21, 
1999 8-K). 

2.8 	 Termination Agreement, dated as of July 18, 1999, between the 

Registrant and U S West, Inc. (incorporated by reference -t·O" Exhibi t 

10.1 to the Registrant's CUrrent Report on Form 8-K filed on July 20, 

.1999 (the "July 20, 1999 8-K"». 
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Exhibit 
Number Exhibit 

2.9 	 Sale Agreement, made on October 10, 1999, between Controls and 
Communications Limited, The Racal Corporation, Racal Electronics Plc 
and the Registrant ,(incorporated by "reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the 
Registrant's Curr~nt Report on Form 8-K filed on October 21. 1999 (the
"October 21, 1999 8-Kft) I . 

2.10 	 Agreement and Plan of Merger. dated as of February 22. 2000, among the 
Registrant, Georgia Merger Sub Corporation, IPC communications, Inc., 
IPC Information Systems, Inc., Idaho Merger Sub Corporation and IXnet, 
Ioc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant's 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 2, 2000 (the DMarch 2, 2000 
8-KIt)). 

3.1 	 Memorandum of Association of the Registrant (incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S­
l/A filed on July 2, 1998 (the "July 2, 1998 S-l/AtI»). 

3.2 	 Certificate of Incorporation of Change of Name of the Registrant dated 
April 30, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the " 
Registrant>s Registration Statement on Form s-l/A filed on July 23, 
1998 (the "July 23, 1998 S-l/A"). 

3 • 3 	 Memorandum of Increase of Share Capital of the Registrant dated July 
9, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the July 23, 1998 
S-l/A) • . 

3.4 	 Memorandum of Increase of Share Capital of the Registrant dated 
September 27, 1999 (incorporated by r~ference' to Exhibit 3.1 to the 
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 15, 1999 
(the "November 15. 1999 10-Q") I. . 

3.5 	 Bye-laws of the Registrant as in effect on October 14, 1999 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the November 1S, 1999 10­

Q) • 
3.6 	 Certificate of Designations of 6 31St Cumulative COnvertible Preferred 

Stock of the Registrant dated November 5, 1999 (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the November IS, 199910-Q). 

3.7 	 Memorandum of Association of Global crossing Holdings Ltd. 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Giobalcrossing Holdings 
Ltd.'s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-61457)). 

3.S 	 Bye-laws of Global crossing Holdings Ltd. (incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 3.2 to Global crossing Holdings Ltd.'s Registration 
Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-61457»). 

3.9 	 Certificate of Designations of 7t CUmulative Convertible Preferred 
Stock of the Registrant, dated December 15, 1999 (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Global Crossing Holdings Ltd.'s 
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-61457)). 

3.10 	 Certificate of Designations of 6 3/8t cumulative Convertible Preferred 
Stock. Series B of the Registrant~ dated January 12, 2000 (filed 
herewith) . 

4.1 	 Certificate of Designations of 10 1/2t Senior Exchangeable Preferred 
Stock Due 2008 of Global Crossing Holdings Ltd. dated December 1, 1998 
(incorporated by reference to Schedule A to Exhibit 3.2 to the Global 
Crossing Holdings Ltd. Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on 
December 22, 1998). . 

4.2 	 Indenture, dated as of May 18, 1998, between Global Crossing Holdings 
Ltd. and united States Trust Company of New York, as Trustee 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit ,4.2 to the Global Crossing 
Holdings Ltd. Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on :eecember 22, 
1998). 

4.3 	 Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 25, 1999, between Global 
Crossing Holdings Ltd. and united States Trust Company of New York, to 
the Indenture dated as of May 18, 1995 (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 4.4 to the Registrant· s Registration Statement on Form. 8-4 .. 
filed on July 12, 1999). 

4.4 	 credit Agreement, dated iJlI,of July 2, 1999, among the Registrant, 
Global, CrOssing Holdings Ltd.; the Lenders party thereto and The Chase 
Manhattan Bank as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant's RegistratiocrStatement on Form S-4/A 
filed o~ August 5, 1999). 
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Exhibit 

Number Exhibit 

4.5 	 Indenture, dated as ·of November 19, 1999, among the Registrant., 
Global Crossing Holdings Ltd. and United States Trust Company of New 
York (i ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Global Crossing 
Holdings Ltd. Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on January 11, 
2000 (File No. 333-944491). . 

Except as hereinabove provided, there is no instrument with respect to long­
term debt of the Registrant and its consolidated subsidiaries under which the 
total authorized amount exceeds 10 percent of the total consolidated assets of 
the Registrant. The Registrant agrees to furnish to the SEC upon its request a 
copy of any instrument relating to long-term debt_ 

10.1 	 Project Development and Construction Contract, dated as of March 1B, 

1997, among AT&T Submarine Systems, Inc. and Atlantic Crossing Ltd. 

(formerly Global Telesystems Ltd.) (incorporated by reference to 

Exhibit 10.2 to the July 23, 199B S-l/A). 


10.2 	 Project Development and Construction Contract, dated as of April 21, 

199B, among Tyco Submarine Systems, Ltd. and Pacific Crossing Ltd. 

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the July 23, 1998 S­

l/AI.

10.3 	 Project Development and Construction Contract, dated.as of JUne 2. 

1998, among Alcatel Submarine Networks and Mid-Atlantic Crossing Ltd. 

(incorporated by reference to.Exhibit 10.4 to the July 23, 199B S­

l/A) • 

10.4 	 Project Development and Construction Contract, dated as of July 21, 

1998, among Tyco SUbmarine Systems, -Ltd. and Pan· American Crossing 

Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's 

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 16, 19981. 


10.5 	 Project Development and Construction Contract, dated as of July 30, 

1999, among Alcatel Submarine Networks and South American. Crossing 

Ltd. (incorporated, by reference to Exhihit 10.5 to the Global Crossing 

Holdings Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on January 11, 2000 

(File No. 333-94449» (portions have been omitted pursuant to a 
request for confidential treatment). 

10.6 	 Lease made as of October 1, 1999 between North Crescent Realty V, LLC 

and Global Crossing Development Company (incorporated by reference to 

Exhibit 10.1 to the November 15, 1999 10-Q).


10.7 	 Form of Stockholders Agreement dated as of August 12, 199B among the 

. Registrant and the investors named therein (incorporated by reference 

to Exhibit 9.1 to the July 23, 1998 S-l/A). 


10,8 	 Form of Registration Rights Agreement dated as of August 12, 199B 

among the Registrant and the investors named therein [incorporated by 

referance to Exhibit 4.4 to the July 23, 1998 S-l/A) . 


10.9 	 Voting Agreement, dated as of March 16, 1999, among certain 

shareholders of the Registrant parties thereto, Frontier Corporation 

and, for certain purposes only, the Registrant (incorporated by 

reference to EXhibit 10.2 to the March 19, 1999 8-K). 


10.10 	 Second Reaffirmation of Voting Agreement and Share Transfer . 
Restriction Agreement, dated as of September 2, 1999 (incorporated by 
referance to Annex S-B to the.joint proxy statement/prospectus· 
supplement included in the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form 
S-4 filed on September a, 1999 (the nSeptember B. 1999 S-4"). 

10.11 	 Share Transfer Restriction Agreement. dated as of Septembe~ 2. 1999, 

among certain shareholders of Global Crossing Ltd., certain 

shareholders of Frontier Corporation and Glebal Crossing Ltd. 

(incorporated by referenCE! to AIlnex S-C to the joint prexy 

statement/prospectus supplement included in the September B, 1999 S­
4) • 	 . . 

10.12 	 Tender Offer and Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 16, 199·9. between 
the Registrant and U S WE$T •. Inc, (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit. (c) (2) to U S WEST,Inc. f'S Schedule 14D-l filed on May 21, 
1999). 
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Number Exhibit 

10.13 	 Standstill Agreement dated as of May 16, 1999 between U S WEST, Inc. 
and the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit (c) (4) to U S 
WEST, Inc.'s Schedule 140-1 filed on May 21, 1999). 

10.14 	 Voting Agreement dated as of May 16, 1999 between U S WEST, Inc. and 

the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit (c) (3) to U S 

WEST, Inc.'s Schedule 140~1 filed on May 21, 1999). 


10.15 	 Tender and Voting Agreement dated as of May 16, 1999 among·U S WEST, 
Inc., the Registrant and the shareholders party thereto (incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit (c) (5) to U S WEST. Inc.'s Schedule 140-1 
filed on May 21, 1999). 

10.16 	 Agreement dated as of May 16, 1999 among the Registrant and the 

shareholders party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 

(c) (6) to US WEST, Inc.'s Schedule 140-1 filed on May 21, 1999). 

10.17 	 Transfer Agreement dated as of May 16, 1999 among the Registrant and 
the shareholders party thereto {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
(c) (B) to U S WEST, Inc,'s Schedule'140-1 filed on May 21, 1999). 

10.18 	 Amendment No. 1 dated as of July 1B, 1999 to Tender Offer and Purchase 
Agreement dated as of May 16 1999 between the Registrant and U S WEST, 
Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the July 20, 1999 
a-K). 

10.19 	 Agreement, dated as of July 1B, 1999, between Owest Communications 
International Inc. and the Registrant (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.3 to the July 20, 1999 S-K). 

10.20 	 Agreement, dated as of July 1S, 1999. between Global Crossing Holdings 
Ltd. and Qwest Communications International Inc. (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the July 20, 1999 B-K). 

10.21 	 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of November 5, 1999 among the 
Registrant and the initial purchasers of the Registrant.'s 6-3/B"
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock named therein (incorporated by 
reference to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed 
on January 18, 2000 relating to such securities). . 

10.22 	 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of November 5, 1999 among the 
Registrant and the initial purchasers of the Registrant's 7\ 
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock named therein (incorporated by 
reference to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form 9-3 filed 
on January 1B, 2000 relating to such securities). 

10.23 	 1998 Global crOSSing Ltd. Stock Incentive Plan as amended and restated 
effective December 7, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 
to the Global Crossing HOldings Ltd. Registration Statement on Form S­
4 filed on January 11, 2000 (File No. 333-94449). 

10.24 	 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement as in effect on September 
30, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the November 
15, 1999 10-0). 

10.25 	 Frontier Corporation Supplemental Retirement savings Plan as amended 
and restated effective January 1, 1996 (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.13 to Frontier Corporation's Annual Report on Form.10-K 
filed March 28, 1997).: 

10.26 	 Amendment No.1, effective March 16, 1999, to Frontier corporation 
Supplemental Retirement Savings Plan (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.2 to Frontier Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 
filed August 3, 1999). 

10.27 	 Amendment No.2, dated September 21, 1999, to Frontier Corporation 
Supplemental Retirement Savings Plan (incorporated by refe»ence to 
Exhibit 10.5 to the November 15, 1999 10-0).

10.2B 	 Employment Agreement dated as of February 19, 1999 between the 
Registrant and Robert Ann~ziata (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.S to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 filed on May

10, 1999). 
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Number Exhibit 


10.29 	 Executive Contract dated March 25, 1996 between Robert L. Barrett and 

~rontier Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to 

Frontier Corporation's QUarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 14, 

1996). 


10.30 	 Amendment dated May 1, 1999 to Executive Contract between Robert L. 
Barrett and Frontier Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.7 to 	the November 15, 1999 10-0). 

10.31 	 EXeCUtive Contract dated January 1, 1998 between Joseph P. Clayton and 
Frontier corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to 
Frontier Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 26, 
1998) • 

10.32 	 Ame~dment dated. May 1, 1999 to Executive Contract between Joseph P. 
Clayton and Frontier Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.9 to 	the November lS, 1999 10-0). 

10.33, 	 Employment Agreement dated as of December 5, 1999 between the 

Registrant and Leo J. Bindery, Jr. (filed herewith). 


10.34 	 Form of Change in Control Agreement betweeq the Registrant and 

Executive Officers of the Registrant approved by the Board of 

Directors in January 2000 (filed herewith) • 


10.35 	 SUbscription and Sale and, Purchase Agreement, dated November 15~ 1999, 
among Hutchison Wbampoa Limited, Hutchison Telecommunications Limited, 
the Registrant and HCL Holdings Limited (incorporated bY reference to 
Exhibit 10.33 to the Global Crossing Holdings Ltd. Registration ' 
Statement on Form S-4 filed on January ll, 2000 (Pile No. 333-94449». 

10.36 	 Employment Agreement dated as of D~ember 3. 1999 between the 

Registrant and John A. Scarpati (filed herewith) • 


12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (filed herewith) . 
21.1 SUbsidiaries of the Registrant (filed herewith) . 
23.1 Consent of Arthur Andersen (filed herewitb) . 
27.1 Financial Data Schedule (filed herewith). 

(b) Reports on Form a-K. 

During the quarter ended December 31, 1999, the following reports on Form a­
x were filed by the Registrant: 

1. 	Current Report on Form 8-X dated October 11, 1999 (date of earliest 

event reported), filed on October'12, 1999, for the puzpose of 

reporting, under Item 5, the execution of an agreement to acquire

Racal Telecom. ' 


2. 	Current Report on Form a-K dated October 11, 1999 (date of earliest 

event reported), filed on October 21, 1999, for the purpose of 

filing, under Item 2, the agreement governing the acquisition of 

Racal Telecom. 


3. 	Current Report on Form'a-K dated October 29, 1999 (date of earliest 

event reported), filed' on December a, 1999, for the purpose of 

reporting, under Item 5, recent issuances by Global crossing Ltd. of 

unregistered securities. 


4. 	Current Report on Form a-K dated November 24, 1999 (date of earliest 

event reported), filed on December 3, 1999. for the purpose of 

reporting, under Item 2, the acquisition of Racal Telecom. 


(c) See 	Item 14(a) (3) above. 

(d) See 	Item 14(a) (2) above. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 


To Global Crossing Ltd.: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Global 
crossing Ltd. (a Bermuda company) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1999 and 
1998, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders' 
equity, cash flows and comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 
1999 and 1998 and for the period March 19, 1997 .(Date of Inception) to 
December 31, 1997. These financial statements and schedule are the . 
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the united·States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates' . made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for· our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to ~ove present fairly, 
in all material respects, the financial position of Global Crossing Ltd. and 
subsidiaries as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the results of their 
operations and their cash flows for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 
and for the period March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 1997, in 
conformity with accounting.principles generally accepted in the United States. 

As explained in the Notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
effective January 1, 1999, the Company changed its method of accounting for 
start-up costs. 

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole. The schedule listed in the Index to 
Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedule is presented for purposes of 
complying with the securities and Exchange Commission's rules and regulations 
and is not part of the basic financial statements. This schedule has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic 
financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly states in all material 
respects the financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to 
the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

I a/ Arthur Andersen 

Arthur Andersen 

Hamilton, Bermuda 
February ·23, 2000 

F~2 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(In thousands, except share and per share information) 


December 31, 1999 December 31, 1998 

ASSETS: 
Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents ..........•.....• 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents ..... . 
Accounts receivable, net ................•. 
Other assets and prepaid costs .....•...... 

Total current: assets ......•...••...•...... 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents .....• 
Accounts receivable ........•.....•..•.•..• 
Capacity available for sale .......••..•... 
Property and equipment, net .•.•.•..••....• 
Goodwill and intangibles, net .•....•...... 
Investment in and advances to/from 
affiliates, n~t ......•••.••..•••...•..•.• 

Other assets .•••••.••.•••...•.•..•.•.....• 

Total assets ••..•••...••••.••..•.•.••.•••• 

LIABILITIES: 
current liabilities: 
Accrued construction costs .••.•..•.•.•...• 
Accounts payable .•..••.....•...•.......... 
Accrued cost of access .••.•.•.•.•.•..•••.• 
Accrued liabilities .....•..••.....•..••••• 
Accrued int~rest and preferred dividends .. 
Deferred revenue •....•..•..••...••...•.••. 
Income taxes payable ...••..••...•..•.••..• 
Curr~nt portion of long term debt ........ . 
Other current liabilities ..••........••... 

Total current liabilities ..•.......•.•••.• 
Long-term' debt .••......•....•..........•... 
Deferred revenue•.•..•.••..••...•...•••••. 
Deferred credits and other .•...••..•....•. 

Total liabilities ...•••.•••.•..• ; ...•..... 

MINORITY INTEREST......•...•....••..•...... 

MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE AND COMULATIVE 
CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK: 
10 1/2% Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred 
StocK, 5,000,000 shares issued and 
outstanding as of December 31, 1999 and 
1998, $100 liquidation preference per 
share •......•...••..•...•.........•••••.. 

6 3/8% Cumulative Convertible Preferred 
StocK, 10,000,000 and 0 shares issued and 
outstanding as of December 31, 1999 and 
1998, respectively, $100 liquidation 
preference per share .'.......•.....•...•.• 

7' CUmulative Convertible Preferred StocK, 
2,600,000 and 0 shares issued and 
outstanding as of December 31, 1999 and 
.1998, $259 liquidation prefe~enc~ per .. 
share •...•••• ~.•••••••••.•••.••. ~.·... ~ ..•• ·• 

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY: 
Common stocK, 3,000,000,000 shares 
authorized, par value $.01, 799,137,142 
and 432,776,246 shares issued as of 
December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. 

Treasury stocK, 22,033,758 shares .•....... 
Additional paid-in capital and other 

shareholders' equity ..•..•••.•........... 
Accumulated deficit ....•.••.••..•......•.. 

$ 1,633,499 
93,294 

966,973 
252,767 

2,946,533 
138.ll8 

52;052 

6,026,053 
9,557,422 

323,960 
661,442 

$19,705,580 
-~.I:I.=-=-=--=-= 

$ 275,361 
509,866 
154,285 
280,629 

66,745' 
127,367 
140,034 

5,496 
292,810 

1,852,593 
5,018,544 

383,287 
796,606 

--------_ ..... 
8,051,030 

351,338 

485,947 

969,000 

629,.750 

7,992 
(209,415) 

9,578,927 
(158,989) 

9,218,515 

$ 806,593 
77,190 
71,195 
21,637 

976,615 
367,600 

43,315 
574,849 
433,707 

177,334 
65,757 

$2,639,177 
=-=--=-=-=-=-=--­

$ 129,081 
2,018 

29,972 
14,428 
44,197 
15,604 

6,393 
14,572 

256,265 
1,066,093 

25,325 
34,174 

1,381,857 

483,000 

4,328 
(209, US) 

1,067,470 
(88,063) 

774,320 
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Total liabilities and shareholders' 
equity.•.•.•.•.••.••.•••........••••..•.• $l9,705,580 

--====--==-­
$2,639,l77 
••=••••••• 

See accompanying notes. 
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GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
(In thousands, except share and per share information) 

Period from 
March 19, 1997 

Year Ended Year Ended (Date of Inception) 
December 31, 1999 December 31, 1998 to Decemcer 31, 1997 

REVENUE ••••••••••••••••• 

EXPENSES: 
Cost of sales •..••••••• 
operations, 
administration and 
maintenance ••••••••••• 

Sales and marketing .••• 
Network development •••• 
General and 
administrative •••••••• 

Stock related.expense •• 
Depreciation and 
amortization•••••••••• 

Goodwill and 
intangibles . 
amortization•••••••••• 

Terminat ion of advisory 
services agreement •••• 

OPERATING LOSS •••••••••• 
EQUITY IN DrCOME (LOSS) 

OF AFFILIATES ..•. ; •.••• 
·MINORITY INTEREST ••••••• 
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE): 
Interest income ..••.•.. 
Interest expense .••.••• 
Other income, net .•.•.• 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE 
PROVISIOH FOR INCOME 
']!AXES, EXTRAORDINARY 
ITEM AND CUl.'4ULATrvE 
EFFECT OF CHANGE IN 
ACCOtJ'N'rING PRINCIPLE ••• 
Provision for income 
taxes ••.••••••••••••••• 

LOSS BiFORE 
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM AND 
CtlM'CLATrvE EFFECT OF 
CHANGE IN ACCOtJ'N'rING 
PRINCIPLE •••••••••••••• 

. Extraordinary loss on 
retirement of debt •••. 

LOS~ BEFORE CUMULATIVE 
EFFECT OF ~E IN 
1i.CCOu.r:rrING PRINCIPLE ••• 
Cumulative effect of 

change in accounting 
principle, net. of 
income tax benefit of 
$1,400 ••••••••••••••.• 

NET LOSS .............. .. 
Preferred stock 
dividends ••.••••••.••• 

. Redemption of preferred 
stock•.••••••••••..••• 

LOSS APPLICABLE TO 

$ 1,664,824 

850,483 

133,202 
l49,ll9 

26,153 

210,107 
51,306 

l24,294 

l27,621 

1,672,285 

(7,46l) 

15,708 
(1,338) 

67,407 
(l39,077) 
l80,765 

116,004 

(126,539) 

(10,535) 

(45,681) 

(56,216) 

(14,710) 

(70,926) 

(66,642) 

$ 4l9,866 

178,492 

18,056 
26,194 
10,962 

26,303 
39,374 

541 

139,669 

439,591 

(19,725) 

(2,508) 

29,986 
(42,880) 

~35,127) 

(33,067) 

(68,194) 

(19,709) 

(87,903) 

(87,903) 

(12,681) 

(34,140) 

$ 

1,366 
78 

1,618 

39 

3,101 

(3,101) 

2,941 

(160) 

(160) 

(160) 

(160) 

(12,690) 

--------_ ... ­
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COMMON SHAREHOLDERS. . . . $ (137,568) $ (134,724) $ (12,850) 

=a==c:a=::====­ .-=:=-::;;=-===-=­ =:II::I••=- ... ::111=-= 
NET LOSS PER COMMON 

SHARE: 
Loss applicable to 

common shareholders 
before extraordinary 
item and cumulative 
effect of change in 
accounting principle, 
basic and diluted.•••• $ (0.15) $ (0.32) $ (0.04) 

Extraordinary item, 
basic and diluted.•••• (0.09) (0.06) 

---------~-CUmulative effect of 
change in accounting 
principle, 
basic and diluted•.•.• (0.03j 

Net loss applicable to 
common shareholders, 
basic and diluted.•••• $ (0.27) 

a:a••••••:aaa 

$ (0.38)
•••••=-=;.11_._ 

$ (0.04) 
;a:a=aa. •••••=-=­

Shares used in 
computing basic and 
diluted loss per 
share ....•••......••.• 502,400,851 358,735.,340 325,773,934 

a===-===-•••• =-:.••••:1::::1 ••• -=::&==-==-=-=-.­

See accompanying notes. 
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GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS I BQUlT'{ 

(In thousands, except share and per share information) 


Zssuance of ccmmcn etock 
for eaah in Marcl1 1997 

(Date of Inceptionl. 
Det of $i:26... iaeuance 
casts................. 

Irefe:n:ed atock 
<Iivid.endll •••••• - •••••• 

Nat los. for the 
period. _............ .. 

Balance. ·December ll. 

Ull7 ................... 

I Bauanca Of COIIIIIOn 

stock for c:aah•••••••• 
cash raimburaement to 
certain sbaraholdera •• 

""earned compensation•• 
lImDrtizaticn of 

CCIIIIpaIlBaticn ex,..'"'.... 
POl Iraz1:aI:Its........... 
Issuanca of common 
.tock in exchange for 
ter:mi_tioo of 
advisory services 
.greement........ ...... 

li'rel!erred stock 
dividends ............ . 

1'r"""_ OIl reclAimrption 
of preferred .tock•••• 

CoaIaII:>tI .tock 
transactions with 
certain abareholdera.. 

ZSSI1aDCa of COIIIIIoOn 

.tock in coanection 
with initial public 
offeriDI!T. Det of 
$3 O. 916 isauanc:a 
caBtS .......... _...... 

IsllWUlce Of e-=cn 
stock from exerci.e of 
stock optiollJl......... 

Net loss.............. . 

BalaDea. DeClllllbe:i: n. 
L998 ••••••••••••••••••• 

bauanc:e of CCIIIIIIOI1 

.tock fram exercise of 

.tock optiOllJl..... ..... 
ZnCOlll8 tax b_fit frQllt 
_reie of stock 
option.............. .. 

Une.rned cOll!p8ll8aticm c. 
lImDrtbation of 

c&mpen.ation expense .• 
I.suance of CQmmaQ 

stock in ~e for 
non.compe~e rights and 
11<:111""................ . 

cancellation of share. 
issued in connection 
wi til. ~,u:lI\inated _rger 
with US We.t •••••••••• 

Other Shareholders' 
COIaCD Stock Treasury Stock Equity 

Sbarea AIDDw1t Shares Amount 

Jldditiooal 
1'a14-io 

capital (a) Other 

Total 
ACcumulated Shareholders' 

Deficit Equity 

l25.773,93'" $l.258 $ n.713 

(12,690) 

$ • 

(160) 

$ 86.97l 

Ill.nO) 

(150) 

325,773,93'" 

1,575,000 

2 .... "'06,340 

3,:158 

16 

24... 

7L.023 

:I,77l 

(7.0...7) 

93,758 

275,05'" 

(93,758) 

37.111 

(160) 74,lll 

2,788 

(7.047) 

37,111 

:l75.l98 

1 .... 210.526 142 134.158 

(12,681) 

(3.... 140) 

135.000 

(12,681) 

(3.... 140) 

21,733.758 217 22.033.758 (209,415) 209.198 

"'4,4:10.000 «4 390.630 39l, 074 

656.688 7 692 

(87. '03) '"(87.903) 

43l.776.:l46 4.l:l' 22.033.758 (209,4L5) 1.124.117 (56,647) (88,063) 174.320 

10.058.073 10l 111.261 l11,l64 

9.lS8 ­

55.• 066 (55,066) 

-51,306 

9.368 

n.306 

2,239,533 :ll 19,978 20,000 

(l,l31,076) (2l) (103,362) (103,3U) -::.. 
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Pnfe=ad stoek 
divic1ands., ......... , • ((6,642) (66,64:3) 

Shares issued in 

connection with 
lrontier acquisition., 355,2(3,135 3,553 8.503.914 8.507,5:31 

Shares issued for 

retire,..,.t of c1eht" •• 1,031,132 10 5,290 5.300 

F~eign currency 
tranalat.ion , 
ac1justment, .......... . (20,698) (20, n81 

UDreali..d gain on 
securities........... . 9ao 980 

liet 1088 ............. .. (10,926) (10,9261 

Balance, Ilecembe: 31, 
1999 ••••••••••••••••••• 199,137,142 $7,992 22,033,158 $(209,415) $9,(59.052 $(80,125) $(158,989) $9,218,515 

......... ......... . 


(a) 	 Additional Paid-in-Capital has been charged retroactively for the par 

value of the shares issued as a result of .the 2-for-l stock split effected 

in the· form of a stock dividend effective on March 9, 1999. 


See accompanying notes. 
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GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 


CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 


CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Net loss•••••.•••••.••• 
Adjustments to 

reconcile net loss to 
net cash provided by 
operating activities: 

Extraordinary loss on 
~etirement of senior 
notes .•.•••••••••••••• 

Cumulative effect of 
change in accounting 
principle .•••••••••••• 

Non-cash portion of US 
West termination 
agreement •••••••••••.• 

Stock related expenses. 
Termination of advisory 

services agreement •... 
Equity in (income) loss 

of affiliates ••......• 
Depreciation and 
amortization••••••.•.. 

Provision for doubtful 
accounts •••••••••••..• 

Deferred income taxes .• 
.Capacity available for 

sale excluding cash 
expenditures for 
investing activities .. 

Other .••••••••••.•..••• 
Changes in operating 
assets and 
liabilities .••••..••••. 

Net cash provided by 
operating activities. 

CASH FLOWS USED IN 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES; 
Cash paid for 
construction in 
progress and capacity 
available for sale ...• 

ACquisitions, net of 
cash acquired••••••..• 

Proceeds from sale of 
unconsolidated 
subsidiary•••••••.•••• 

Purchases of property
'and equipment•.•....••. 

Investments in and 
advances to 
affiliates ..• '.' •••..•• 

Net cash used in 
investing activities. 

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Proceeds from issuance 
of common stock, net.. 

Proceeds from issuance 
of preferred stock, 

(In thousands) 

Year Ended Year Ended 

December 31, 1999 De<::ember 31, 1.998 


$ (70,926) $ (87,903) 

45,681 1.9,70.9 

14,710 

(103,384) 
51,306 39,374 

135,000 

(15,708) 2,508 

251,915 541 

37,157 4,233 
35,274 9,654 

123,329 
7,726 

252,333 {37,718} 

506,084 208,727 

(1,577,044) (413,996) 

(2,456',811) 

379,086 

··(l.9j·~ an) 

(161,337) (16,701) 

(4,009,977) (430,697) 

111,364 392,298 

Period From 
March 19, 1997 

(Date of Inception) 
to December 31, 1997 

$ (160) 

39 

(21,200 ) 

26,442 

5,121 

(428,743) 

{428,7431 

73,736 
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net .. : ..... ~.......... 

Proceeds from issuance 
of senior notes ...•. ,. 

Proceeds from long-term 
debt .••• ,... ••••••.•.. 

Repayment of long-term 
debt....... . .•.• •.•. . . 

Retirement of 1997 
issued senior notes .•. 

Redemption of 1997 
issued preferred 
stock..••..••.•.•.••.. 

Finance costs incurred. 
Cash reimbursement to 
certain shareholders •• 

Minority interest 
investment in 
subsidiary..... ••••• . • 

Preferred dividends. • . • 
Decrease (increase) in 
restricted cash and 
cash equivalents ••• ;" 

Net. cash provided by 
financing activities. 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS ••••••• 

CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS, beginning 
of period••.•••••••••.• 

CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS, end of 
period.••••••••..•••..• 

1,598,750 

2,000,000 

3,544,OB3 

(3,351,732) 

(141,027) 

350,000 
(52, 429) 

271,790 

4,330,799 

826,.906 

806,593 

$1,633,4.99 
._=-===-.--­

F-6' 

483,000 

796,495 

290,556 

(176,890) 

(159,750) 

(134,372) 
(37,665) 

(7,047) 

(419,515) 

1,027,110 

805,140 

1,453 

$ 806,593 

92,470 

150,000 

162,325 

(28,lB1) 

(25,275) 

425,075 

1,453 

$ 1,453.=--.---­
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GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 


CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS--(Continued) 

(In thousands) 

Year Ended Year Ended 
December 31, 1999 December 31, 1998 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
ON NON-CASH FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES: 
Common stock issued to 
holders of preferred 
stock.•.•.•••••••.•••.. 

Common stock issued 
upon conversion of 
debt •••.•.•••••..•..•• 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
ON NON-CA$H INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES: 
Costs incurred for 
construction in 
progress and capacity 
available for sale .••. 

Increase in accrued 
construction costs .... 

Increase in accrued 
interest ....••••..••.. 

Amortization of 
deferred finance 
costs ••••..•......•.•. 

(Increase) decrease in 
obligations under 
capital leases .••...•• 

PCG warrants•...••...•. 

Cash paid for 
construction in 
progress and capacity 
available for sale.•••• 

Non-cash purchases of 
property and 
equipment •.•....•...•. 

Transfer of capacity 
available for sale to 
property and 
equipment .••.•.••••••• 

Common stock issued for 
non-compete rights •••• 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE 
OF CASH FLOW 
INFORMATION: 
Changes in operating 
assets and 
liabilities: 

Accounts receivable .••. 
Other current assets ... 
Other Long-Term Assets. 
Deferred revenue ..•.... 
Accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities ••. 
Income taxes payable ••• 
Obligations under 
inland services 
agreement. • . • • • • • . • • • . 

Deferred credits and 

Period. From 

March 19, 1997 


(Date of Inception) 

to December 31, 1997 


$ 13,325 
•••111 ___ = 

$
••___a== 

$491,319 

(52,414) 

(1,641) 

(2,223~ 

, 
(12,298) 

$428,743 
••==::==== 

$ 
_==c...=a.:s 

-$ 
:::I== __=-=-= 

$ 
=-===-==­

$ 
(1,032) 

5,325 

1,249 

20,900 

$ 
=-=_:::a••••___ 

$ 5,300 _.____••_::1= 

$ 1,704,258 

(119,405) 

(7,809) 

$ 1,577,044
-=.-.-=:::1._::1 

$ 38,300 
1I:a:a_CC••_ •• 

$ 574,949.__......_­
$ 20,000..__....... 


$ (296,467) 
(47,915) 
(98,029) 
331,475 

258,739 
73,650 

(21,994) 

$ 
::s.:a=:a_:s==-=­

$ 
a==__=:a=r:.:a 

$ 601,865 

(77,077) 

(8,412 ) 

(7,BB3) 

11,660 
(ll2,157) 

$ 413,996 
==-===:a=n=_ 

$===_:::1____ 

$______a __ 

$ 

$(lla,743) 
(46,662) 

64,197 

30,332 
15,604 

17,554 
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other................. 52,874 

$ 252,333 $ (37,718) $ 26,442_=_= ___ 0 ===--=-==­
Detail of aqquisitions: 

Assets acquired ••.•••.. $11,120,676 $ $ 

Liabilities assumed•••• (2,613,14.9) 


Common stock issued.•.• $ 8,507,527 $ $ 

Net cash paid for 
acquisitions ..•••••..• $ 2,456,811 $ $ 

Cash acquired in 
acquisitions •.•••.••.• 123,855 

-------,.. ... 
Cash paid for 
acquisition, including 
transaction fees •.•••. $ 2,580,666 $ $ ____.====­•••lu=c=n=U.D:I_. ........ 


Investments in 
Affiliates: 

Cost of investments in 
affiliates •.•••••.•..• $ (161,337) $(179,842) $ 

PCG warrants •..•••...•• 163,141 
.=I~._II;=:Ia_== ._....=­
$ (161,337) $ (16,701) $ 
==-===--==-. • ••==_:1:1:1 •••a=••• 

Cash paid for interest 
, and income taxes: 
Interest paid and 
capitalized••••.•••... $ 219,289 $ 39,424 $ 8,136 

=---=--=:11=.l1li 
Interest paid (net of 
capitalized interest) • $ 141,230 $ 33,854 $ 

_==-==:=1::;::=;_=. ._-*---­
Cash paid for taxes •... $ 14,589 $ 7,809 $ 

::& ••••1:1====. ===-:1••••= •••:11===_ 

See acco~anyin9 notes. 
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GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
(In thousands) 

Period from 
March 19. 1997 

Year Ended Year Ended (Date of Inception) 
December 31. 1999 December 31. 1998 to December 31. 1997 

Net loss •••....•..•.•.-•• 
Foreign currency
translation . 
adjustment ...•...•.•.. 

Unrealized gain on 
securities .........•.. 

$ (70. 926) 

(20 / 696) . 

980 

$(67.903) $ (160) 

Comprehensive loss ...•.•• $(90 , 644)--_..._-­ $(67,903) $ (160) 

See accompanying notes. 
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GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. BACKGROUND AND ORGANIZATION 

Global Crossing Ltd. (a Bermuda company, together with its consolidated 
subsidiaries, "GCL" or the "Company") is building and offering services over 
the world's first independent global fiber optic network, consisting' of 
101,000 announced route miles and serving five continents, 27 countries and 
more than 200 major cities. upon completion of our currently announced 
systems, our network and our telecommunications and Internet product offerings 
will be available in markets constituting over BO% of the world's 
international communications traffic. 

The Company's strategy is to be the premier provider of global broadband' 
Internet Protocol ("IP") and data services for both wholesale and retail 
customers. The Company is building a state-of-the-art fiber optic network ~hat 
management believes to be of unprecedented global scope and scale to serve as 
the backbone for this strategy. Management believes that the Company's network 
will enable it to be the low cost service provider in most of its addressable 
markets. 

Asia Gl.obal Crossing, a joint venture with Softbank Corp. and Microsoft 
Corporation intends to become the first truly pan-Asian carrier to offer 
worldwide bandwidth and data communications. The Asia Global Crossing joint 
venture was established on Noveml::ler 24, 1999. 

GlobalCenter, a wholly-owned subsidiary of'GCL, will expand its product set 
to become a single-source e-commerce service solution that will provide web­
centric businesses with the high availability, flexibility and scalability 
necessary to compete in the rapidly expanding digital economy. 

Global Crossing Ltd. serves as a holding company for its s·ubsidiaries' 
operations, including Global Marine Systems (acquired July 2, 1999), Frontier 
corporation (acquired September 2B, 1999), and Racal Telecom (acquired 
November 24, 1999). 

In February 1999, the Company's Board of Directors declared a 2-for-1 split 
of the Company's common stock in the form of a stock dividend which was 
effective on March 9, 1999. All share information presented in these 
consolidated financial statements gives retroactive effect to the 100-for-1 
stock split in January 199B, 1.S-for-1 stock dividend in August 199B and 2­
for-1 stock dividend on March 9, 1999. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The 
significant accounting poliCies are summarized as follows: 

a) Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated f·inancial statements include the accounts of GCL and its 

wholly-owned subsidiaries. All·significant intercompany. transactions have been 

eliminated. 


As described in Note 3, the Company completed the acquisitions of Global 
Marine Systems, Frontier and Racal Telecom during 1999. These acquisitions 
have had a major impact on the comparability of the Company's financial 
statements. To assist the reader of these financial statements and related 
notes, the Company has disclosed certain financial information in Note 3 
iI7cluding the pro forma impact,of these acquisitions. 

b) Use of Estimates 

The preparati~n of financial statements in conform~ty with generally 

accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and-liabilities and 

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 

statements,as well as the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the 

reporting period. Actual amounts and results could differ from thOSI!f 

estimates. 
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The Company's operations and ability to grow may be affected by numerous 
factors, including changes in customer requirements, new laws and governmental 
regulations and policies, technological advances, entry of new competitors and 
changes in the willingness of financial institutions and other lenders to 
finance acquisitions and operations. The Company cannot predict which, if any, 
of these or other factors might have a significant impact on the 
telecommunications industry in the future, nor can it predict what impact, if 
any, the occurrence of these or other events might have on the Company's 
operations. 

c} Development Stage Company 

The Company was in its development stage until May 1998 when the United 
States to united Kingdom segment of the AC-l system was placed into service, 
and the Company began generating Significant amounts of revenue. 

d) Revenue Recognition 

services 

Revenue recognized as services, including sales of capacity under operating 
type leases, are provided, net of an estimate for uncollectible accounts. 
Payments received from customers before the relevant criteria for revenue 
recognition are satisfied are included in deferred revenue in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets. 

Sales-Type Leases 

Revenue from Capacity Purchase Agreements (nCPAs") that meet the criteria of 
sales-type lease accounting are recognized in the period that the rights and 
obligations of ownership transfer to the purchaser, which occurs when (i) the 
purchaser obtains the right to use the capacity, which can only be suspended 
if the purchaser fails to pay the full purchase price or fulfill its 
contractual obligations, (ii) the purchaser is obligated to pay operations,
Administration and Maintenance (ffOA&Mn ) costs and (iii) the segment of a 
system related to the capacity purchased is available for service. Certain 
customers who have entered into CPAs for capacity have paid deposits toward 
the purchase price which have been included as deferred revenue in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheet's. 

Prior to July 1, 1~99, substantially all CPAs were treated as sales-type 
leases as described in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, 
"Accounting for Leases" ("SFAS 13"1. On JUly 1, 1999, the Company adopted 
Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 43, -Real Estate 
Sales, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 65" ("FIN 43"1, which requires 
prospective transactions to meet the criteria set forth in Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 55, "ACcounting for Sales of Real Estate" 
("SFAS 66") to qualify for sales-type lease accounting. Since sales of 
terrestrial capacity did not meet the new criteria, the terrestrial portion of 
CPAs executed subsequent to June 30, 1999 were recognized over the terms of 
the contracts, a~ services. 

Percentage-of-Comp1etion 

Revenues and estimated profits under long-term contracts for undersea 

telecommunication installation by Global Marine systems are recognized under 

the percentage-of-completion method of accounting. 


~l Cost of Sales 

Servi~es 

Costs of the network relating to capacity contracts accounted for as 
operating leases are treated as fixed assets and, accordingly, are depreciated. 
over the estimated useful life of the capacity. 
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Sales-Type Leases 


Prior to October l, 1999, the effective date of the Frontier merger, cost of 
sales for subsea circuits was calculated based on the ratio of capacity 
revenue recognized in the period to total expected capacity revenue over the 
life of the network system, multiplied by the total remaining costs of 
constructing the network system. This calculation of cost of sales matches 
costs ~ith the value of each sale relative' to total expected revenue. Until 
the entire system was completed, for purposes of calculating cost of sales, 
the total system costs incurred included an estimate of remaining .costs to be 
.incurred to complete the entire system plus the cost of system upgrades that 
management had the intent and ability to complete, provided the need for such 
upgrades was supported by a third party consultant '·s independent revenue 
forecast. 

Beginning October l, 1999, the Company initiated service contract accounting 
and therefore began depreciating. all of its systems; however, certain 
contracts still qualified for sales-type lease accounting. For these 
transactions, the COmpany's policy provided for recording cost of sales in the 
period in which the related revenue was recognized, in addition to the 
depreciation charge described below (see Property and Equipment and 
Construction in Progress). under service contract accounting, the amount 
charged to cost of sales relating to subsea capacity was calculated by 
determining the estimated net book value of the specific subsea capacity at 
the time of the sale. The estimated book value includes expected costs of 
capacity the Company has the intent and ability to add through upgrades of 
that system, provided the need for such upgrades is supported by a third-party 
consultant's independent revenue forecast. 

f) Commissions and Advisory Services Fees . 

The Company's policy is to record sales commissions and advisory fee 

expenses and related payables upon the recognition of revenue so as to 

appropriately match these costs with the related revenue. Under the Advisory 

Services Agreement (nASA"), which was terminated by December 3l, 1998, the 

Company paid PCG Telecom Services LLC ("PCG Telecom") and its affiliates 2% of 

revenue for advisory services performed. Under the Sales Agency Agreement, the 

Company paid Tyco Submarine Systems Ltd. ( "TSSL") a commission based on a 

percentage of revenue from the sale of capacity on certain of the Company's 

systems. 


g) Cash and Cash Equivalents, Re.stricted Cash and Cash Equivalents (Current 

and Long Term) 


The comPany considers cash in banks and short term highly liquid investments 

with an original maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase to 

be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash 

equivalents are stated at cost which approximates fair value. 


h) Property and Equipment and Construction in Progress 

Property aDd equipment, which includes capitalized leases, are stated at 

cost, net of depreciation and amortization. Major enhancements are 

capitalized, while expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed when 

incurred. COsts incurred prior to a segment's completion are reflected as, 

construction in progress in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and 

recorded as property and equipment at the date each segment of the applicable 

system becomes operational. 


Construction in progress includes direct expenditures for construction of 

network systems and is stated at cost. Capitalized costs include costs 

incurred under tlle constructionco:titraet; 'advisory, consulting and legal fees; 

interest; and amortized finance costs incurred during the construction phase. 

Once it is probable that a cable system will be constructed, costs directly 

identifiable wit~ the cable system under deYelopment ,are capitalized. Coste 

relating to the evaluation of new projects incurred prior to the date the 

development of the network system becomes probable are expensed as incurred. 


In connection with the construction of the Global Crossing network, the 

Company has entered into various agreements to sell or exchange darR'fiber, 

ducts, rights of ways, and certain capacity. These non-monetary exchanges are 

recorded at the cost of the asset transferred or, if applicable, the fair 

value of 'the asset received. 
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Interest incurred, which includes the amortization of deferred finance fees 
and issuance discount ("interest cost"), are capitalized to construction in 
progress. Total interest cost incurred and interest capitalized to 
construction in progress during the periods presented were: 

For the period 
March 3l, 1997 

Year Ended Year Ended (Date of Inception) 
December 3l, 1999 December 3l, 199Bto December 31, 1997 

(In thousands) 

Interest cost incurred.• $217,l36
-==_::1:::l1lI.­

$92,Bl3
••••:111=. 

$9,777-_.... 
Interest cost 
capitalized to 
construction in 
progress ••.••••••••.••. $ 7B,059 

.._--=-==­
$49,933-_•.... $9,777 

• •••=­

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the'estimated useful 
lives of the assets, with the exception of leasehold improvements and assets 
acquired through capital leases, which are depreciated over the lesser of the 
estimated useful lives or the term of the lease. Estimated useful lives are as 
follows: 

Buildings .••••..•••••••.•••.••.•••.•••••••.•.••..••••.•.•...... 10-40 years 
Leasehold improvements••••..........••••..•..••.•••.•••...•.•.. 2-25 years 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ...••....••••••.••.•.....••••• 2-30 years 
Transmission equipment ••••.•••.•.•..••.•.•..••••..••••••••••••. 3-25 years 

Beginning October 1, 1999, the Company commenced service contract 
accounting. Carrying amounts related to completed subsea systems were 
reclassified from capacity available for sale to depreciable assets, and are 
being depreciated over their remaining economic useful lives. 

When property or equipment is retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and 
accumulated depreciation are relieved from the accounts, and resulting gains 
or losses are reflected in the determination of current net income. 

The Company reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for 
impairment whenever events and circumstances indicate that the carrying value 
of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows 
expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. In cases where 
undiscounted expected future cash flows are less than the carrying value, an 
impairment loss would be recognized equal to an amount by which the carrying 
value exceeds the fair value of the assets. 

i)· Goodwill and Intangibles 

Costs in excess of net assets of acquired businesses are amortized on the 
straight-line method over 3 to 25 years. In cases where undiscountedexpected 
future cash flows are less than the carrying value, the impairment loss would 
be included in the.determination of current net income. Subsequent to 
acquisitions, the Company continually evaluates whether later events and , 
circumstances have occurred which indicate that the remaining estimated useful 
life of int;angible assets may warrant revision or that the remaining balance 
of- such assets ,may not be recoverable.-When factors indicate that intangible 
assets_should be evaluated for possible impairment, the Company uses an 
estimate of the undiscounted operating income over th~ remaining life of the 
intangible asse~s in measuring whether the intangible assets are recoverable. 

j1 Deferred Finance Costs 

Costs incurred to obtain finanCing through the issuance of senior notes and 
long-term debt have been reflected as an asset included in other as~ets in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Costs incurred to obtain financing 
through the issuance of preferred stock have been reflected as a reduction in 
the carrying value 
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of the issued preferred stock. The financing costs relating to the debt are 
amortized over the lesser of the term of the related debt agreements or the 
expected payment date of the debt obligation. In 1998, certain preferred stock 
was redeemed at which time the remaining balance of unamortized discount and 
offering costs was charged ag~inst additional paid-in capital. In 1999 and 
1998, certain long-term debt was extinguished, at which time the remaining 
balance of unamortized discount and offering costs was written off and 
included in extraordinary loss on retirement of debt. 

During the construction period, the amortized portion,of deferred financing 
costs relating to the senior notes and the long-term debt are included in 
construction in progress as a component of interest capitalized or recorded as 
interest expense in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards (SFAS) No. 34, "Capitalization of Interest Cost". The amortized 
portion of the deferred financing costs relating to the preferred' stock is 
included as a component of preferred stock dividends. 

k) Investments 

Investments in which the Company does not have significant influence or in 
which the Company holds an ownership interest of less than 20\ are recorded 
using the cost method of accounting. The equity method of accounting is 
applied for investments in affiliates, if the Company owns an aggregate of 20% 
to 50\ of the affiliate and if the Company exercises significant influence 
over the affiliate. The equity method is also applied for entities in which 
the Company's ownership is in excess of 50\ but over which the Company is 
unable to exercise effective control. If the Company holds more than 50% of 
the ownership and is able to exercise effective control, the owned entity'S 
financial statements and the appropriate deductions for minority interest are 
incl~ded in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

1) Financial Instruments 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments' to reduce its exposure to 
adverse fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. 
The Company has established policies and procedures for risk assessment and 
the approval, reporting and monitoring of derivative financial instrument 
activities. The Company does not enter into financial instruments for trading 
or speculative purposes. Accordingly, they are presented on the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheet at their carrying values, which approximates their 
fair values. Fair values are based on market quotes, current interest rates or 
management estimates, as appropriate. 

The Company has entered into forward currency contracts, hedging the 
exchange risk on committed foreign,currency transactions. Gains and losses on 
these contracts are recognized at the timeth. underlying transaction is 
completed. 

As discussed in Note 15, the Company has entered into an interest rate swap 
agreement to hedge its variable interest~rate exposure on debt. Hedge 
accounting was applied in respect of these instruments; accordinglYr the net 
cash amounts to be paid or received on the agreement are accrued and 
recognized as an adjustment to interest expense on the related debt. 

m) Income Taxes 

The Company recognizes current and deferred income tax assets and 
liabilities. based upon all events that have been recognized in the 
ccnsol idated fin,ancial statements as. measured by the enacted tax laws. 

n) Effect of Foreign CUrrencies 

For those subsidiaries using the U.S. Dollar as their functional currency, 
transaction loss is recorded in the accompanying consolida£ed statements of 
operations. The Company's foreign transaction loss was $26.9 million 
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for the year ended December 31, 1999. The effect of foreign currency 

transactions in all periods prior to the year ended December 31, 1999 were 

immaterial. 


For those subsidiaries not using the U.S. Dollar as their functional 

currency, assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates in effect at 

the balance sheet date and income and expense accounts are translated at 

average exchange rates during the period. Resulting translation adjustments 

are recorded directly to a separate component of shareholders' equity. For the. 

year ended December 31,· 1999, the Company incurred a foreign currency , 

translation loss of $20.7 million. For all periods prior to December 31, 1999, 

the translation adjustments were immaterial. 


0) Stock Option Plan 

The Company accounts for stock option grants in accordance with Accounting 

Principles Board Opinion No. 25, WAccounting ,for Stock Issued to Employees" 

("APB 25"), and, accordingly, recognizes compensation expense for stock option 

grants to the extent that the estimated fair value of the stock exceeds the 

exercise price of the option at the measurement date. The compensation expense 

is charged against operations ratably over the vesting period of the options. 


p) Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Company has some concentration of credit risk among its customer base. 

The Company performs ongoing credit evaluatiens of its larger customer's 

financial condition. As of and for the year ended December 31, 1999, five 

customers represented 14' and 29' of the Company's receivables and revenue, 

respectively. 


q) Change in Accounting Policy 

The Company adopted Statement of Position 98-5, "Reporting on the Costs of 

Start-Up Activities" (IIS0P 98-5") in the first quarter of 1999. Accordingly, a 

one-time charge of $15 million (net of tax benefit), representing start-up 

costs incurred and capitalized during previous periods, was charged against 

net income. 


r) 	Pending Accounting Standards 

In June 1999, the FASB issued SFAS No. 137, "Accounting for Derivative 

Instruments and Hedging Activ1ties--Deferral of the Effective Date of SFAS No. 

133", which deferred SFAS No. 133's effective date to fiscal quarters 

beginning after June 15, 2000. This statement standardizes the accounting for 

derivatives and hedging activities and requires that all derivatives be 

recognized in the statement of financial position as either assets or 

liabilities at fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that do 

not meet the hedge accounting criteria are to be reported in earnings. The 

impact of the adoption of ,this standard has not been quantified. 


s) 	 Reclassifications 

Certain prior ~ar amounts have been reclassified in the consolidated 

financial statements to conform to current year presentation. 


3. 	MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS 

The following mergers and acquisitions occurred during 1999 and have been 

accounted for in the accompanying consolidated financial statements under the 

purchase method of accounting for business combinations. The purchase price 


" 	 was allocated based on the estimated fair value of acquired assets and 
liabilities at the date of acquisition., 
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Global Marine Systems Acquisition 

On July 2, 1999, the Company acquired the Global Marine business of Cable & 
Wireless Plc for approximately $908 million, consisting of a combination of 
cash and assumed indebtedness. This resulted in an excess of purchase price 
over net assets acquired of $693 million, which was allocated to goodwill and 
other intangible assets and are being amortized on the straight-line method 
over 3-25 years. Global Marine Systems provides services, including 
maintenance under a number of long-term contracts, to cables built by carriers 
and is the world's largest undersea cable installation and maintenance 
company. The Company initially financed the acquisition· with committed bank 
financing in the amount of $600 million and the remainder with cash on hand. 

Frontier Corporation Merger 

on September 28, 1999, the Company completed its merger with Frontier 
Corporation, resulting in Frontier becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of the 
Company. 

Frontier shareholders received 2.05 shares of the Company's common stock for 
each outstanding share of common stock of Frontier Corporation, for a total of 
355 million shares of Global Crossing common stock, including outstanding and 
unexercised stock options. The purchase price of $10.3 billion reflects a 
Global Crossing stock price of $22 15/16 per share, the average closing price 
of Global Crossing common stock from September 1, i999 through September 3, 
1999, and includes long term debt and Frontier stock options assumed by Global 
Crossing. For accounting purposes, the merger with the Company is deemed to 
have occurred as of the close of,business on September 30, 1999. The excess of 
purchase price over net assets acquired of ·$7.7 billion was allocated to 
goodwill and other intangible assets; goodwill and intangible assets are being 
amortized on the straight-line method over 6-25 years 

Racal Telecom Acquisition 

On November 24, 1999, the Company acquired Racal Telecom for approximately 
$1.6 billion in cash. The Company entered into a (Pounds) 675 million 
(approximately $1,091 million as of December 31, 1999) credit facility to 
finance the acquisition. The excess of purchase price over net assets acquired 
of $1.6 billion was allocated to goodwill and is being amortized on the 
straight~line method over 6-25 years. Racal Telecom owns one of the most 
extensive fiber telecommunications networks in the united Kingdom. For 
accounting purposes, the acquisition is deemed to have occurred as of the 
close of business on November 30, 1999. 

Asia Global Crossing 

on November 24, 1999, the Asia Global Crossing joint venture was 
established. In exchange for a majority interest, the Company contributed to 
the joint venture its development rights in East Asi,,- Crossing (ilEAC") and its 
58t interest in Pacific Crossing ("PC-P). Softbank Corp. and Microsoft 
Corporation each contributed $175 million in cash to Asia Global Crossing. In 
addition, Softbank and Microsoft committed to make a total of at least $200 
million in capacity purchases on our network over a three-year period, 
expected to be utilized primarily on PC-1 and EAC. Softbank and Microsoft have 
also agreed to use Asia Global Crossing's network in the region, subject to 
specified conditions. Minority interest of $351 million was recorded in 1999 
.in connection with this joint venture. 

~utchison Global Crossing 

On N9vember 15, 1999, the Company'~~tered into an agreement with Hutchison 
Whampoa Limited ("Hutchison") to form a joint venture -ca~led Hutchison Global 
Crossing, which~egan operations on January 12, 2000, The joint venture is 
owned in e~al parts by the Company and Hutchison. In exchange for its 50 
percent interest, the Company will contribute certain assats and services to 
the joint venture and, in January 2000, issued to Hutchison $400 million 
aggregate liquidation preference of its 6 3/8t cumulative convertible 
preferred stock, series B, convertible into its common stock. . 
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The initial purchase price allocations for the 1999 business combinations 

are based on current estimates. The Company will make final purchase price 
allocations based upon final values for certain assets and liabilities. As a 
result, the final purchase price allocation may differ from the presented 
estimate. 

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information 
of Global Crossing, Global Marine Systems, Froncier, Racal Telecom and the 
Hutchison Global Crossing joint venture demonstrates the results of operations 
had the merger and acquisitions related transactions been completed at the 
beginning of the periods presented. 

December 31, 

1999 1998 

(unaudited) 
(In thousands, except " 

share and per share data) 

Revenue ••..•..•••.•••.•.••••.••••..•.•.•......... $ 4,139, B97 $ 3,643,521 

~~~==~~==~=a ~~a==.=~==== 

Net loss before extraordinary items and 
cumulative effect of change in accounting 
principles •...•.•••...•..•.•.••.•.••..•.•••... , $ (462,544) $ (474,882) 

==~~33.D_=3~ ••~.~.=.=.__ 
Net loss ...•••....••...•..........•...•......... $ (522,935) $ (496,346) 


====_••3.~== ••====•••_= 
Loss applicable to common shareholders before 

~ 

extraordinary items and cumulative effect of 
change in accounting principles .•.•.•••..•...•• $ (554,715) $ (513,063)---=........ ••==
=~===-== 

Loss applicable to common shareholders ..•......• $ (614,986) $ (568,487)====-==_.... .•••__•••••• 
Loss per common share: 

Loss applicable to common shareholders 
Basic and diluted••••••••..•..•.•.•.• ~ . . • . • • •• $ (0.80) $ (0.80) ___.a._._... . ......... __ 


Loss applicable to common shareholders before 
extraordinary items and cumulative effect of 
change in accounting principles . 
Ba~ic and diluted.••.•.•.••.•••••••••••••.•••• $ (0.72) $ (0.72) 

.-.==-=•••-. =.-.-.-:_.-. 
Shares used in computing loss per share 

Basic and diluted••••.•••••.•••••••••••....... 767,355,151 708,518,640 
--_••==•••-. •••••••••••• 

4. RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

current and long term restricted cash and cash equivalents include the 

following: 


December 31, 


1999 1998 

(In-thousands) 

Funds restricted for PC-1 construction.••.•••......•....•. $138,llB $231,790 
Funds restricted under the AC-1.Credit Facility .......•... 89,000 
Funds restricted for MAC construction .•.........••..•..... 65,000 
Funds restricted for dividends payments to parent company. 76,202 
Funding for future interest on senior notes ...........•... 38,000 
Other .• ".' •••• " ." .••.•.••..•••....•.••..••••....•...•••.•..••.. 17,092 21,000 

$231,412 $444,790 
-.~~-.~~ ....... . 


Under the Open Market Plan, dividend payments to the parent company are 
temporarily prohibited until ·Frontier Telephone of Rochester, Inc. ("FTRU) 
receives clearance from the New York State Public Service Commiss!d~that 
service requirements are being met. Cash restricted for dividend payments by 
FTR, as of December 31, 1999, was approximately $76.2 million. 
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5. 	ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Current and long term accounts receivable are comprised of: 
December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In thousands) 

Accounts receivable .................................... $1,114,135 $118,743 

Allowance for do~tful accounts........................ (95,110) (4,233) 


Accounts receivable, net ..•.....••......•...•.......... $1,019,025 $114,510 

.:=n=.=-.=-=~ 

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consist of the following: 

December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In thousands) 

Land.........................•........... ~ ..•.......... $ 14,886 $ 
Buildings .......•...........................•......•... 184,827 
Leasehold improvements .......... '..................... '.. 29,096 774 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment .................••... 771,585 5,306 
Transmission equipment ...•..................'. : ..•...... 2,544,903 

3,545,297 6,080 
Accumulated depreciation.•.......•...........•.....••.. (124,874) (580) 

---------- ----".--­
3,420,423 5,500 

Construction in progress .•...•......................••. 2,605,630 428,207 

Total property and equipment, net ..................... . $6,026,053 $433,707 


Depreciation and ,amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 1999 
was approximately $124 million., Depreciation expense for December 31, 1998 and 
for the period ended March 19, 1997 (date of inception) to December 31, 1997 
was insignificant. 

7. 	GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES 

The Company acquired three companies in 1999 as described in Note 3. All 
companies acquired have been accounted for as purchases with the excess of the 
purchase price over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired 
recorded as gqodwill. 

Goodwill and intangibles are as follows: 

December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In thousands) 

Goodwill and intangibles............................... $9,685,043 $ 

Accumulated amortization..•...••....•.......•..'....~ .-.. ' (127,621) 


Goodwill and intangibles, net.......................... $9,557,422 $ 
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8. INVESTMENT IN AND ADVANCES TO/FROM AFFILIATES 

Investment in Pacific Crossing Ltd. ("PCL") 

In April 1998, the Company entered into a joint venture to construct the'pC­
1 cable system which is owned and operated by PCL. The Company has an economic 
interest in PCL represented by a 50% direct voting interest and, through one 
of the joint venture partners, oWns a further 8% economic non-voting interest. 

Investment in Global Access Ltd. 

In December 1998, the Company entered into a joint venture, Global Access 
Ltd., to construct and operate GAL; a terrestrial cable system connecting 
Tokyo, Osaka and Nagoya with PC-l. The Company has a 49% interest in Global 
Access Ltd. 

The CompanY's'investments in PCL and GAL are accounted for as interest in 
affiliates under the equity method because the Company is not able to exercise 
effective control over their operations. 

The Company's investment in affiliates consists of the following: 

December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In thousarids) 

Investment in Pacific Crossing Ltd....•................... $266,068 $160,639 

Investment in Global Access Ltd........................... 22,693 16, '695 

Other investments and advances to/from affiliates......... 35,199 


Investment in and advances to/from affiliates ...•...•..... $323,960 $177,334 

9. TAXES 

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, 

"Accounting for Income Taxes" ("SFAS 109"). The provision for income taxes is 

comprised of the following: 


December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In ~housands) 

Current ..............................••.•......•.•........ $144,906 $23,413 
Deferred... ~ . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . (18,367) 9,654 

Total income tax expense .................•................ $126,539 $33,067 


Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary. differences 
between the ca~ing amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and amounts used for income tax purpoE!es .. 

Bermuda does not impose a statutory income tax and consequently the 

provision for income taxes recorded relates to income earned by certain 

subsidiaries of the Company which are located in jurisdictions whlc:li impose 

income taxes. 
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The following is a summary of the significant items giving rise to 

components of the Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities: 

___________ w December~ 31, 

1999 1998 

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities 
--------~-- -------- ----------­

(In thousands) (In thousands) 

Bad debt reserve .•••••..••.•••••• $ 11,199 $ $ $ 

Research and development costs •.• (41,018) 

Depreciat ion••••••••.••......•••• (360,893 ) (4,042) 

Basis adjustment to purchased 


companies •••••.••••••••.•••••••• (9,282) 

EmPloyee benefits obligation..... ,(32,918) 

Net operating loss (NOL) 


carryforwards ••..•.••••••...••.• 58,665 
Deferred and stock related 

compensation•••.••..•••..•.••••• 11,066 504 
Other .....••.••••••......•..••••. 35,156 (15,235) (6,116) 

------_ --------- -------- -------­
116,286 

.... 

(479,346) 504 (10,158) 
Valuation allowance ...•••••...... (54,780) 

-------- --------- -_ .. ----- -------­
$ 61,506 $(479,346) $ 504 $(10,158) 
••cu:u.~:IJ. a ........ :::_ 
 a;a_.===_ _=_a==== 

The Company established a valuation allowance of $54,760 as of December 31, 
1999. The valuation allowance is related to deferred tax assets due to the 
uncertainty of realizing the full benefit of the NOL carryforwards. In 
evaluating the amount of valuation allowance needed, the Company considers the 
acquired companies' prior operating results and future plans and expectations. 
The utilization period of the NOL carryforwards and the turnaround period of 
other temporary differences are also considered. The Company's NOLs begin to 
expire in 2004. ' 

10. LONG-TERM DEBT 

OUtstanding debt consists of the following: 

December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In thousands) 

9 1/2% Senior Notes due 2009 ........................ . $1,100,000- $ 
9 1/8%, Senior Notes due 2006 .....•.••..•.•.•......... 900,000 
9 5/n Senior Notes due 2008 ........................ . 800,000 600,000 
Senior Secured Revolving Credit ,Facility•..•...... ~ .. 648,597 
Racal Telecom Term Loan A ....•••.........••••.••.•..• 646,130 
Medium-Term Notes, 7.51'--9.3%, due 2000 to 2004 •••.. 219,000 
7 1/4% Senior Notes due 2004 ••••••••••.••••••••.•••.• 300,000 
6% Dealer Remarketable Securities (DRS) due 2013 ••..• 200,000 
AC-l Credit F.acility.. '.•••..' •• ~ ;' .....; .•.. '•••.•..•••••.• 266,799 
Other •••••....•••••••••.••...••••••••.••••••...•••••• 242,028 9,192 

- --~----~--- ---------­
Total debt .. '.' ...•.••.•••...•••••.••• ',' ..•......• ~ ••• 5,055,755 1,075,991 
Less: discount on long-term debt, net •••.•.•••..••.•• (31,715) (3,505) 

·Less: current portion of long-term debt .•....•..•..•• (5,496) (6,393) 

Long-term debt .•..•••..••••••••••..•.•..•.••••..•..•• $5,018,544 $l,066,093 
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Maturities of long-term debt are as follows (in thousands) : 

Year Ending December 31, 

2000. • • • • • . . • • •• • . • • • • • . . • • • . • • . • • • • • • . • . . • . • • . • • • • . • • . • . . . • .• $ 5,496 
2001 ••..•••.•.••.•....•..•.............••.•••.•...•.....•..•.. 121,411 
2002 ••••••••.•••..••.••..•••••••••••.•••....• , •.••••.••••••••• 43,61S 
2003 ••••••••.••••..••....•.•.........•...•..• ~ •.••••..•••.•..• 38,336 
2004 ••..•.••....•..••••.•••.•.•••.•..•....•.•••.••••.•••.••••• 1,167,256 
Thereafter•••..••...•••..••.••.•...••••.•..•'•••.•••••.....•••. 3,679,63S 

Total .••'••.•••••••••••••••..•.••... , .', .•••..••••••••.•....•..• $5,055,755._-_..... . 
Senior Notes 

On November 12, 1999, Global Crossing Holdings Ltd. (lIGCB"), a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of GCL, issued two series of senior unsecured notes ("New Senior 
Notes"). The 9 llBt senior notes are due November 15, 2006 with a face value 
of $900 million and the 9 1/2t senior notes are due November 15, 2009 with a 
face value of $1.1 billion. The New Senior Notes are guaranteed by GCL. 
Interest will be paid on the notes on May 15 and November 15 of each year, 
beginning on May 15, 2000. 

On May 1B, 199B, GCB also issued 9 51St senior notes due May 15, 200S, with 
a face value of $800 million ("9 5/8t Senior Notes"). The 9 51st Senior Notes 
are guaranteed by GCL. Interest will be paid on the notes on May 15 and 
November 15 of each year. 

The 12t senior notes issued by Global Telesystems Holdings Ltd. (lfGTH"), now 
known as Atlantic Crossing Holdings Ltd., with a face value of $150 million, 
due March 31, 2004 ("Old Senior Notes"), were repurchased in May 199B with the 
proceeds from the issuance of the 9 51st Senior Notes. The Company recognized 
an extraordinary loss of approximately $20 million on repurchase comprised of 
a premium of approximately $10 million and a write-off of approximately $10 
million, of unamortized deferred financing costs during 1995. 

Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility 

On July 2, 1999, the Company, through GCH, entered into a $3 billion senior 
secured corporate credit facility ("Corporate Credit Facility") with several 
lenders. The proceeds from the Corporate Credit Facility were used to repay
existing indebtedness and fund capital expenditures. The Corporate Credit 
Facility consisted of two term loans and a revolving credit facility, which 
matures on July 2, 2004. The term loans were paid in full during fiscal year 
1999. Unused credit under the revolving credit facility is approxi~tely $350 
million as of December 31, 1999. Interest is payable at LISOR plus 2.25 
percent (6',44 percent at December 31, 1999). 

During 1999, the Company recognized an extraordinary loss resulting from the 
payoff of existing debt in connection with the issuance of the Corporate 
Credit Facility, comprised of a write-off of $15 million of unamortized 
deferred financing costs. 

On November 12, 1999, the proceeds from the issuance of the New Senior Notes 
were used to pay down the fixed term portion of the Corporate Credit Facility, 
reSUlting ip a write-off of $31 million of unamortized deferred financing 
costs, " 

AC-1 Credit Facility 

During 1997, the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary; Atlantic crossing Ltd. 
(nACL"), entered into a $462 million aggregate senior secu.ed non-recourse 
loan facility (the hAC-1 Credit Facility") with a group of banks led by CISC 
and Deutsche Bank AG, for the construction and financing costs of AC-1. The 
AC-1 Credit Facility was paid in full in July 1999. 
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MAC Credit Facility 

During November 1998, the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, Mid-Atlantic 
Crossing Ltd. ("MACL"), entered into a $260 million aggregate senior secured 
non-recourse loan facility (the "MAC Credit Facility") . As of December 31, 
1998, the outstanding balance was $9 million. The MAC Credit Facility was paid 
in full in July 1999. 

6% 	 Dealer Remarketable Securities 

The 6% DRS were issued by Frontier Corporation and were outstanding at the 
date of acquisition. The 6% DRS are due on October 15, 2013. Interest will be 
paid on April 15 and October 15 each year. These notes may be put back to the 
Company in October 2003, depending on the interest rate environment at that 
time. 

7 1/4% Senior Notes 

The 7 1/4% Senior Notes were issued by Frontier Corporation and were 
outstanding at the date of acquisition. The 7 1/4% Senior Notes are due May 
14, 2004. Interest will be paid on May 15 and November 15 ea,ch year. 

In December 1997, the Company entered into an interest rate hedge agreement 
that effectively converts $200 million of the Company's 7.25% fixed-rate notes 
due May 2004 into a floating rate based on the US dollar London Interbank 
Offered Rate (IILIBOR") index rate plus 1.26%. The agreement ~xpires in May 
2004. Interest expense and the related cash flows under the agreement are 
accounted for on an accrual basis. The Company periodically enters into such 
agreements to balance its floating rate and fixed rate obligations to insulate 
against interest rate risk and minimize interest expense. 

Racal Telecom Term Loan A 

On November 24, 1999, the Company entered into a GBP 675 million 

(approximately $1,091 million as of December 31, 1999) credit facility to 

finance the acquisition of Racal Telecom. The facility consists of two term 

loans due November 24, 2007. Interest is payable at LIBOR plus 2.5 percent 

(8.44 percent at December 31, 1999). 

, Medium Term Notes 

The Medium Term Notes were issued by Frontier Corporation and were 

outstanding at the date of acquisition. The Company intends to refinance the 

notes due in fiscal 2000 with proceeds from the other available debt 

facilities. 


Certain of the debt facilities mentioned above contain various financial and 
non financial restrictive covenants and limitations, including, among other 
things, the satisfaction of tests of ·consolidated cash flow", as defined. 
Additionally, certain ILEC assets are pledged as security. 

11. 	OBLIGATIONS UNDER INLAND, SERVICES AGREEMENT, CAPITAL LEASES AND-OPERATING 

LEASES 


The Company bas capitalized the m1n1mum lease payment of property and 

equipment under leases that qualify as capital leases. 
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At December 31, 1999, future minimum payments under these capital leases are 
as follows (in thousands) and are included in Deferred credits and other in 
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet: 

Year Ending December 31, 
2000 ..........•..••.•.••.••..•..... ,'....•... , . . • . . • . . . • . . . . . . . . . •. $ 53,235 
2001 ..... "." .... , •..•. ,., ••••••.....••.• , •••.••.••••..• : •.....••. 43,279 
2002 .••...••.....•..•.•••.•.••......••...•••••••••••••••.••••.•.•• 38,390 
2003 ........•.•........•.••.........•••...........••..••.....•.•.. 36,486 
2004 •••••....•..••••.••••••••.•••.•.••••.••••.••.••••••••••••...•• 53,195 
Thereafter ..•••..•••••••••••••.••••••• , •••••••••••••••.•••••••.•.• 436,580 

Total minimum lease payments •••••.•....•••••••••••.•.•.••..•..••.• 661,165'­
Less: Amount representing. maintenance payments •••.••••••••.•...... (133,240) 
Less: Amount representing interest ..••..•.••.•••..•••...•..•...•.• (272,358) 

Present value of minimum lease payments .••.••••..••••..••..•••..... $ 255,567 

The Company has commitments under various non-cancelable operating leases. 
Estimated future minimum lease payments on operating leases are approximately 
as follows (in thousands) : 

Year Ending December 31, 
2000. '.' . . • . •• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • . • • • • . . . • • • • • . . • • • . • • •.• . • • . • • • . • • • . • • •• $ 131,569 
2001 •••••••••••••••••.••••..••••••.••••••••••••••.•.•••.•.•••..•.• 79,932 
2002 •.••.•.•.••.••••..••••••••••.••.••.•.•••••••.•..••........•... 77,646 
2003 .•...•.•.••••••••••••••.•••••..•.••..•.••.••....••..••.•...••. 70,676 
2004 .•••.••••••••••••••.•••••••••..••.••.•.••.•••...••..•.••...•.. 65,906 
Thereafter••.....••.•.••.••........•..•..•..•..••..........•....•. 347,924 

Total. . • • • • . • • . • • • • . • • • • . . • . . . . • . . . . . • • . • • . . • . . . . • . . . . . . . . • . . . . . .. $ 773,657 

Rental expense for the years December 31, 1999 and 1996 and period from 
March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 1997 is $74,249, $754 and 
none, respectively (in thousands). 

12. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND OTHER 

As of December 31, 1999, ACL was committed under contracts with Tyeo 
Submarine Systems Ltd. ("TSSL") for AC-1 upgrades totaling approximately $S9 
million and is committed under the OA&M contract with TSSL to quarterly 
payments, over the next eight years, totaling approximately $247 million which 
will be borne by the Company's customers or by the Company to the extent there 
is unsold capacity. 

Act.was committed to paying TSSL commissions ranging from 3' to 7' on 
revenue received until 2002, subject to certain reductions. The Company also 
had a commission sharing agreement with TSSL whereby GCL had primary 
responsibility for the marketing and sale of capacity of AC-1 and PC-1 and 
shared a percentage of commissions payable to TSSL as consideration for 
assuming primary responsibility for the sales effort and marketing of the 
Company's projects. The Sales Agency Agreement with TSSL will terminate in 
March 2002 with an option by the Company to extend it until March 2005. The 
Company provideq TSSL with a noticeo£termination with respect to these 
agree~nts effective February 22, 2000. 

As of December 31, 1999, the Company was committed under the contracts to 
construct its Mid-Atlantic Crossing, Pan American Crossing, South American 
Crossing, Pan European Crossing and East.Asia crossing syatems for future 
construction costs totaling approximately $2 billion. 
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In addition, as of December 31, 1999, the Company was committed to make 

future equity contributions to PCL in the amount of $240 million. 


The Company and a number of its subsidiaries in the normal course of 

business are party to a number of judicial, regulatory and administrative 

proceedings. The Company's management does not believe that any material 

liability will be imposed as a result of any of these matters. 


13. PREFERRED STOCK 

Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock 

In September 1999, GCL authorized 20,000,000 shares of preferred stock on 
terms and conditions to be established from time to time at the discretion of 
the Board of Directors. 

In December 1999, GCL issued 2,600,000 shares of 7' cumulative convertible 
preferred stock at a liquidation preference of $250.00 per share for net 
proceeds of $630 million. Each share of preferred stock is convertible into 
4.6948 shares of common stock based on a conversion price of $53.25. Dividends 
on the preferred stock are cumulative from the date of issue and will be 
payable on February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1.of each year, beginning 
on February 1, 2000, at the annual rate of 7t. Dividends accrued as of 
December 31, 1999 were $1.9 million. 

In November 1999,GCL issued 10,000,000 shares of 6 3/8t cumulative 
convertible preferred stock at a liquidation preference of $100.00 per share 
for net proceeds of approximately $969 million. Each share of preferred stock 
is convertible into 2.2222 shares of common stock, based on a conversion price 
of $45.00. Dividends on the preferred stock are cumulative from the date of 
issue and will be payable on February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1 of 
each year, beginning on February 1, 2000, at the annual rate of 6 3/8t.
Dividends accrued as of December 31, 1999 were $9.7 million. 

The convertible preferred stock ranks junior to each other class of capital 
stock other than common stock of GCL with respect to'dividend rights, rights 
of redemption or rights on liquidation and on a parity with any future 
preferred stock of GCL. The convertible preferred stock is junior in right of 
payment of all indebtedness of GCL and its subsidiaries. The preferred stock 
is non-voting unless the accumulation of unpaid dividends on the outstanding 
preferred stock is an amount equal to six quarterly dividend payments. The 
preferred stock can be redeemed, at the Company's option, starting in 2004 at 
specified premiums declining to par in 2009. Holders of preferred stock have 
the right to require the Company to repurchase shares of the preferred stock 
at par following the' occurrence of certain change of control transactions. 

10 	1/2t Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Stock 

In December 1998, GCH authorized the issuance of 7,500,000 shares of 
preferred stock (~GCH Preferred Stock") at a liquidation preference of $100.00 
per share plus accumulated and unpaid dividends. In December 1998, S,OOO,OOO 
shares of GCH Preferred Stock were issued for $500 million in cash. The 
Company reserved for future issuances up to 2,500,000 shares to pay dividends. 
Dividends accrued as of December 31, 1999 and 1998 were $4 million. 
Unamortized issuance costs were $14.1 million and $17 million as of December 
31, 1999 and 199B, respectively. • 

The holders of the GCH Preferred Stock are entitled to receive cumulative, 
.. 	 semi~annual comp~unding divideridsa~an annual rate of 10 1/2' of the $100 

liquidation preference per share. At the Compaqy's option, accrued dividends 
may be paid in cash or paid by issuing additional preferred stock (i.e. pay­
in-kind) until ~e 1, 2002, at which time they must.be paid in cash. As of 
December 31, 1999, all dividends had been paid in cash. 
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Dividends are payable semi-annually in arrears on each June 1 and December 1. 
The preferred stock ranks senior to all common stock of GCH with respect to 
dividend rights, rights of redemption or rights on liqUidation and on a parity 
with any future preferred stock of GCH. The preferred stock is junior in right 
of payment of all indebtedness of GCH and its subsidiaries. The preferred
stock is non-voting unless the accumulation of unpaid dividends (or if, 
beginning on June 1, 2002, such dividends are not paid in cash) on the 
outstanding preferred stock is an amount equal to three semi-annual dividend 
payments. 

The preferred stock has a mandatory redemption on December 1, 2008 at a 
price in cash e~l to the then effective liquidation preference thereof, plus 
all accumulated and unpaid dividends thereon to the date of redemption. The 
preferred stock can be redeemed, in whole or in part, at the Company's option 
at redemption prices starting at 105.25% of the liquidation preference in 
2003, declining to 103.5% in 2004, 101.75% in 2005 and 100% thereafter. 

The certificate of designation governing the preferred stock imposes certain 
limitations on the ability of the Company to, among other things, (i) incur 
additional indebtedness and (ii) pay certain dividends and make certain other 
restricted payments and investments, which limitations are in part based upon 
satisfaction of tests of "consolidAted cash flow," as defined. 

14% Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred S~ock 

In March 1997, GTH authorized and issued 500,000 shares of preferred stock 

(nGTH Preferred Stock") at a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share. 


In June 1998, proceeds from the issuance of the 9 5/8% Senior Notes were 
used to redeem this preferred stock. The redemption resulted in a $34 million 
charge against additional paid-in capital comprised of a $16 million 
redemption premium and $18 million of unamortized discount and issuance cost 
on the preferred stock on the date of the redemption. The redemption premium 
and write-off of unamortized discount and issuance costs on the preferred 
stock were treated as a deduction to arrive at the net loss applicable to 
common shareholders in the consolidated statement of operations. 

Preferred stock dividends included the following: 

December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In thousands) 

Preferred stock dividends •••••...•••.•..•.•••••••....••..• $63,742 $11,712 
Amortization of discount on preferred stock ••.•.••.....•.. 618 
Amortization of preferred stock issuance costs ••.•••.•..•• 2,900 351 

$66,642 $12,681:1=:1.... ._.==:;:;1. 
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14 ~ NET LOSS PER SHARE 

Losses per share are calculated in accordance with SFAS No. 128, "Earnings
Per Share." Share and per share data presented reflects all stock dividends 
and stock splits. ' 

The following is a reconciliation of the numerators 'and the denominators of 
the basic and diluted loss per share: 
For the period 

December 31, March 31, 1997 
(Date of Inception) 

1999 199B to December 31, 1997 

(In thousands, except share and per share data) 
Loss before 

extraordinary item and, 
cumulative effect of 
change in accounting 
principle ••........•.•• $ (10,535) $ {68,194} $ (160) 


Preferred stock 
dividends ••••••••••••.• (66,642) (12,6Bl) (12,690) 

Redemption of preferred 
stock ..•.••..••••....•• (34,140) 

Loss applicable to 
common shareholders 
before extraordinary 
item and ~lative 
effect of change in 
accounting principle ... $ (77,177) $ (ll5,015) $ (12,850) _____a~a=~==_~= =:::1=--==•••=---­

Weighted average share 
outstanding: 
Basic and diluted..... 502,400,851 35B,735,340 325,773,934

•••••=•••••__xa •••••_ ••~=••==. 
Loss applicable to 

common shareholders 
before extraordinary 

items and cumulative 
effect of change in 
accounting principle 

Basic and diluted...•. $ (0.15) $ (0.32) $ (0.04) 
._.__________.a ••••••••_______ -==-_._==._==== 

Dilutive options and warrants did not have an effect on the computation of 
diluted loss per share in 1999 and 1998 since they were anti-dilutive. The 
impact of dilutive options and warrants increases the weighted average shares 
outstanding to 552,466,665 shares as of December 31, 1999. 

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash 
equivalents, accounts receivable, accrued construction costs, accoURts payable 
and accrued liabilities, accrued interest, obligations under inland services 
agreements and capital leases and long term debt approximate their fair value. 
The fair value of the senior notes (the New Senior Notes and 9 5/8% Senior ' 
Notes), mandatorily redeemable preferred stock, cumulative convertible 
preferred stock and the interest rate swap are based on market quotes and the 
fair values are as follows: 

December 31, 1999 December 31, 1998 
- --- -- - ":0> ... ''';-'"~ -"-- -':------ --- - ~ ---------- --- --- - ----- --­

Carrying Amount Fair Value 9arrying Amount Fair Value 
. -.--------------- ---------- --------------- ---------­

(In thousands) (In thousands)
Senior notes ••. : ••..•...• $3,135,000 $3,090,294 $796,495 $834,000 
Mandatorily redeemable 
preferred stock .•...••.. 485,947 498,750 483,000 480,000 

Cumulative convertible 
preferred stock•...•••.• 1,598,750 1,975,300 

Interest rate swap ...... . $ $ 6,602 $ $ 26 
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16. STOCK OPTION PLAN 

GCL maintains a stock option plan under which options to acquire shares may 
be granted to directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Company. 
The CQmpany accounts for this plan under APB Opinion No. 25, under which 
compensation cost is recognized only to the extent that the market price of 
the stock exceeds the exercise price. Terms and conditions of the Company's 
options, including exercise price and the period in which options are 
exercisable, generally are at the discretion of the Compensation,Comrnittee of 
the Board of Directors; however, no options are exercisable more than ten 
years after date of grant. 

Prior to its merger with the Company, Frontier maintained stock option plans 
for its directors, executives and certain employees. The exercise price for 
options under all Frontier plans was the fair market value of the stock on the 
date of the grant. The stock.options expire ten years from the date of the 
grant and vest over a period from one to three years. The Frontier plans 
provided for discretionary grants of stock options which were subject to the 
passage of time and continued employment restrictions. 

In connection with the Frontier merger, the Company exchanged all of the 
outstanding Frontier stock options for 25.3 million GlObal Crossing stock 
options which vested immediately at the date of the merger. As of December 31, 
1999, 17.7 million stock options under the Frontier plans remained vested and 
outstanding '._ 

Additional information regarding options granted and outstanding for the 
years ended December 31, 1998 and 1999 are summarized below: 

Balance as of December 31, 1997 .....•.•••• 
Authorized .••••••••••.•.•.•.....•••••••• 
Granted••••....•..•••••••...•....•••••.. 
Exercised••.......•••••.••..••..•••..... 
Cancelled••.••••.••.•...••.•••.•••.....• 

Balance as of December 31, 1998 ..•.•...••• 
Authorized••..•...•.•••.•••.•..•..•••••• 
Granted ...•.•.•..••••••••.•.....•...•••• 
Exercised........•••.•••••..•...•••.•••• 
Cancelled ••..•.••••••••••... " •..•••.•••• 

Balance as of December 31, 1999 .....•..••• 

F-26: 

Options 

Available 

For Grant 


33,215,730 

(30,762,466) 


3,253,000 

5,706,264 
82,010,014 

(65,019,955) 

3,1,75,154 

25,871,477 
=.=••••~--. 

Number of 

Options


Outstanding 


30,762,466 
(656,688) 

(3,253,000) 

26,852,778 

65,019,955 
(10,058,073) 
(3,175,154) 

78,639,506 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 
Price 

$ 2.85 
1.06 
1.11 

3.11 

24.20 
11.07 
22.17 

$18.76 
==-_••• 
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The following tables summarize information concerning outstanding and 
exercisable options, 

December 31, 1999 

Options Outstanding 	 Options Exerciaable 

Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average weighted Average 
Range of lIIUmber Remaining Contractual Exercise Price lIIUmber Exercise Price 

Exercise Price. OUtstanding Life (in yearsl per Sha.re Exercisable per Shan 
......... ---_ ...... _---_ .. 
 ---------------- --.---~----~--------- -----~-.-------- ----------- .- .. --~----------

$ 	0.35 to $ 1.43 14,153,480 7.n $ 0.83 7,871,980 $ 0.83 
l.ao to !I.OO 7,157,036 8.18 3.14 3,635,345 3.29 
!I.30 to 13.80 12,539,297 7.71 11.61 10,207,026 11.60 

13.96 to 19.82 11,961,988 8.54 17.15 8,961,988 16.26 

20.60 to 23.44 19,975,778 9.55 25.82 1,175,128 24.48 

$33.00 to $61.38. 12.851.927 9.73 44.68 1,741.334 46.15 

--.------------~ ~-~------------- -----.--------~----~- --------------~- ------~~-~- ---------------­
Total 78.639.506 8.73 $18.76 33,592.901 $11.66 

........_....... ..................... ................ ..•........ ._-.•........... 


December 31, 1998 

Options OUtstanding 	 Option. Exercisable 

Weighted Average Weighted Average weighted Average Weighted Average 
Range of Number Remaining Contractual Exercise Price lIIUm!:ler Exercise Price 

Exercise Pricell OUtstanding Life (in years) per Share Exercisable per Share 
.... _..... __ .. _-_ .... _... 

--~----~--- .. ---- .......~---------------.- .~-.-.- .... ----- .. - ----.._-_ .... --._-----------­
$0.35 to $0.83 15,717,280 9.2 $ 0.83 4,803,833 $ 0.83 

2.00 to 3.33 6.844,598 9.5 3.13 1,625.000 3.33 
9.50 to 13.26 4,290,900 9.7 11.44 302,834 11.34 

----_ ....... _--_ ..... ­ ---------------- --------------_._---- --- ..-,--~.-~--- ... ----------- ---_ .. _---------­
'l'otal 26,852,778 9.3 $ 3.11 6,731,667 $ 1.31 ..-.........._.. ...•.••.•...•..••.... -_...__.._.-_... .......•... ........-...... . 


During the years ended December 31, 1999' and 1998. the Company recorded in 
additional paid-in capital $55 million and $94 million. respectively, of 
unearned compensation, relating to awards under the stock incentive plan plus 
the grant of certain economic rights and options to purchase common stock. 
During 1999 and 1998 the Company recognized expense of $51 million and $39 
million. respectively. of stock related compensation relating to the stock 
incentive plan and the vested economic rights to purchase common stock. The 
remaining $60 million of unearned compensation will be recognized as follows: 
$36 million in 2000, $20 million in 2001 and $4 million in 2002. 

The Company entered into an employment arrangement with a key executive, and 
granted him economic rights to purchase two million shares of common stock at 
$2.00 per s~are. One-third of these economic rights vested immediately and the 
balance vests over two years. The Company recorded the excess of the fair 
market.value of these options and rights over the purchase price· as unearned 
stock compensation in the amount of $15 million duringrth~year. ended December 
3l, 1998. The ~earned compensation is being recognized as expense over the 
vesting period of the economic right. 
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As permitted by SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" 
("SFAS 123"), the Company accounted for employee_ stock options under APB 25 
and is recognizing compensation expense over the vesting period to the extent 
that the fair value of the stock on the date the options were granted exceeded 
the exercise price. Had compensation cost for the ~ompany's stock-based 
compensation plans been determined consistent with the SFAS 123 fair value 
approach, the impact on the Company's loss applicable to common shareholders 
and loss per share would be as follows: 

Period from 
March 19, 1997 

Year Ended Year Ended (Date of Inception) 
December 31, 1999 December 31, 1998 to December 31, 1997 

(In thousands, except per share information) 

Net loss applicable to 
common shareholders: 
As reported ....•...... $(137,568) $ (134,724) $(12,850) 
Pro forma ............ . $(236,184) $(141,585) $ (12, 850) 


Basic and diluted net 
loss per share: 

As reported ......... :. $ (0.27) $ (0.38) $ (0.04) 

Pro forma ............ . $ (0.47) $ (0.39) $ (0.04) 


under SFAS 123, the fair value of each option is estimated on the date of 
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model assuming the following 
weighted average assumptions used for the year ended December 31, 1999; zero 
dividend yield, expected volatility of 40.00, weighted average risk free rate 
of return of 6.56% and expected life of 4 years. For the year ended December 
31, 1998; zero dividend yield, expected volatility of 0% to 42%, weighted 
average risk free rate of return of 5.45% and expected life of 4 years. 

17. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

401(k) Plan 

Beginning in 1998, the Company offered its qualified employees the 
opportunity to participate in a defined contribution retiremerit plan 
qualifying under the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue 
Code. Each eligible employee may contribute on a tax-def'erred basis a portion 
of their annual earnings not to exceed certain limits. The Company matches 
one-half of individual employee contributions up to a maximum level not to 
exceed 7.5% of the employee's compensation. The Company's contributions to the 
plan vest immediately. Expenses recorded.by the Company relating to its 401(k) 
plan were approximately $0.6 million and $0.2 million for the years ended 
December 31, 1999 and 199B, respectively. 

The Company also sponsors a number of defined contribution plans for 
Frontier employees. The most significant plan covers non-bargaining employees, 
who can elect to make contributions through payroll deduction. The Company 
provides a contributiori of .5 percent of gross compensation in common stock 
for every employee eligible to participate in the plan. The common stock used 
for matching contributions is purchased on the open market by the plan's 
trustee. The Company also provides one hundred percent matching contributions 
in its common stock up to thre~ percent of gross compensation, and may, at the 
discretion of the Management Benefit Committee, provide additional matching 
contributions based upon Frontier's financial results.-Th~ total cost 
recognized for all defined contribution plans was $2.6 million from the date 
of the merger through December 31, 1999. 

Pension Plan 

As a result of the merger with Frontier, the Company has nonconfr1butory 
plans which have been frozen, providing for service pensions and certain death 
benefits. for substantially all Frontier employees. The assets and 
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liabilities related to these plans were recorded at fair market value at the· 
date of the merger. In 1995 and 1990, these defined benefit plans were frozen. 
On an annual basis, contributions are remitted to the trustees to ensure 
proper funding of the plans. 

The majority of the Company's pension plans have plan assets that exceed 
accumulated benefit obligations. There are certain plans, however, with 
accumulated benefit obligations which exceed plan assets. The following table 
summarizes the funded status of the Company's pension plans and the related 
amounts that are included in ·Other assets R in the Consolidated Balance Sheet 
of the Company as of December 31, 19.99 (in thousands): 

CHANGE IN BENEFIT OBLIGATION 
Benefit obligation at September 30, 1999 ..••••••••...•••••...•.. $451,600 
Service cost ••.•.••••••..•.••.•••.••.••..•.•' •••••••.•••..•..•••• 14 
Interest cost ....•••••••...•••••••••.•••.••••...••••..•.•..••..• 8,397 
Actuarial gain ...••.••.••......••...••.•.••••..•.•.•••..••..••.. (11,025) 
Benefits paid .....••.••.• ; ....••••.... ~ ••••.......••.•.•.•...•.. (9,151) 

Benefit obligation at December 31, 1999 •.••..••••.••....••••.••• $439,835 

CHANGE IN PLAN ASSETS 
'Fair value of plan assets at September 30, 1999 .•.••••••.••....• $621,100 
Actual return on plan assets .....••......•.••..•.....•..•••.•... 86,516 
Employer contribution ••.••••••.••.•...•••••••••..•.•.••••••..... 550 
Benefits paid..••.••......••••••••••..•.••••••••.•••....••..•••. (9,151) 

Fair value of plan assets at December 31, 1999 .•. ~ ••••.......•.. $699,015

=:1___._. 

Funded status. • . • . . . . . • • • • • • . . . . . . • . . • • • . . • . • • • . . . . . . . . . • • • . . • .. $259, 1B 0 
unrecognized net gain•.•••••••••....•••...•..••.......•.••••.•.. (83,192) 

Prepaid benefit cost, net ....................................... $175,988 


The net periodic pension cost consists of the following for the three month 
period ended December 31, 1999 (in thousands) : 

Service cos t. • • . • • • . . . . . • • • • . . . . • . • . • • • . . . . • • • • • • . . . . . . . . . . • • . • . .. $ 14 
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation••.•..•••...•....•.•• B,397 
Return on plan assets .••• ,•.••....•••••••••••••..••.••..•••.••...•. (14,349) 

Net periodic pens ion benefit ••.•••••.••••••••••••••. ; . . • . . . • • • . . •• $ (5, 938) 
===:1=•••• 

The following rates and assumptions were used to calculate the projected

benefit obligation as of December 31, 1999: 


Weighted average discount rate ..•.•.•....•.••••..•......•.•••..•.. B.OO% 
Rate of salary increase .•••••••.•.••...•••..••••••.••••.••.•.•.• :. 5.00% 
Expected return on plan assets .•.•••...••..••••..•....•... " •...••• 9.50% 

The Company's policy is to make contributions for pension benefits based on 
actuarial computations which reflect the long-term nature of the pension plan. 
However, under SFAS No. 87, "Employers' Accounting for Pensions,- the 
development of the projected benefit 'obligation essentially is computed for 
financial reporting purposes and may differ from the actuarial determination 
for funding due to varying assumptions and methods' of computation. 
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Postretirement Benefit Other Than Pensions 

The Company provides postretirement health care and life insurance benefits, 
which have been frozen, to most of its employees. Plan assets consist 
principally of life insurance policies and money market instruments. In 1996, 
Frontier amended its healthcare benefits plan to cap the cost absorbed by the 
Company for healthcare and life insurance for its bargaining employees who, 
retire after December 31, 1996. The assets and liabilities related to these 
plans Were recorded at fair market value at the date of the merger. 

The following table summarizes the funded status of the plan (in thousands)
and the related amounts included in "Deferred credits and other" in the 
consolidated Balance Sheet of the Company as of December 3~, 1999 (in 
thousands) : 

CHANGE IN BENEFIT OBLIGATION 
Benefit obligation at September 30, 1999 ........... ~ ..•.•••.•.. $ 114,305 
Service cost ••...••..••••••.••••..•••.••••...••.•....•..••••.•. 135 
Interest cost .•••••.•••••••••••••.•...•..••••••••..••••.•••.••• 2,134 
Actuarial gain •.•.•.•••..•...••.•.••.•...•••••..•••••••.•...••• (2,970) 
Benefits paid..••••.•.•.•.•..••••••.•....•.• : ...•••••.•.•...••• (2,016) 

Benefit obligation at December 31, 1999 •••••...•••.•••••.•••••• $ 111,5BB=-=--_....­
CHANGE IN PLAN ASSETS 

Fair value of plan assets at September 30, 1999 •••......•••••.• $ 2,9B9 
Actual return on plan assets ...••••.•.........•.•••••....•....• 1BO 
Employer contribution....•.••.••.•. " ..•••..•••.•.••.••...•..... 1,902 
Benefits paid...•.•...• '.' ...••.•....••.••••..•.•...•.••..'•...•. (2,016) 

Fair value of plan assets at December 31, 1999 .....•.•.•••••••. $ 3,055 
:::&=-::Ianlll •••_ 

Funded status .•.•.•..... ~ ...•.••..••.........••••••....•. ; ••... $(10B,533) 

Ullrecogni zed net loss •••....•..•.•••........•.••••..•..•••....• (2,133) 


Accrued benefit cost, net......................... .............. $ (110,666) 
_•••=___c:= 

The components of the estimated postretirement benefit cost are as follows 
for the three month period ended December 31, 1999 (in thousands) : 

Service cost ....••...••••.•....•'...•••.••.........'. . . . • • • • • • • . . .. $ 135 
Interest cost on projected benefit, obligation•••...... : .•.••••••• 2,134 
Expected return on plan assets •••••.••..•••••.•.......•.••.•••.•. (67) 

Net periodic pension cost (benefit) ..•..•...••..•..•••••..••..•.• $ 2,202 

The following rates and assumptions were used to calculate the projected 
benefit obligation as of December 31, 1999: 

Weighted average discount rate •••••.•........•.•••.....••...••..• B.Oot 
Rate of salary increase ••....•.•••••••..••..•..• ~ ..••••.•.••••..• 5.00t 
Expected return on plan assets .••...••.•••••••.•...••••••.•••..•• 9.50t 
Assumed rate of increase in cost of covered health care benefits. 6.17% 

Increases in health care costs were assumed to decline consistently to a 
rate of 5.0% by 2006 and remain at that level thereaft~r: !f the health care 
cost trend ratea were increased by one percentage point, the accumulated 
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postretirement benefit health care obligation as of December 31, 1999 would 
increase by $8.2 million while the sum of the service and interest cost 
components of the net postretirement benefit health care costs for 1999 would 
increase by $191,000. If the health care cost trend rates were decreased by 
one percentage point, the accumulated postretirement benefit health care 
obligations as of December 31, 1999 would decrease by $7.3 million while the 
sum of the service interest cost components of the net postretirement benefit 
health care cost for 1999 would decrease by $168,000. 

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Transactions with Global Access Ltd. and Pacific Crossing Ltd. 

During 1999, Global Crossing entered into certain transactions with GAL and 
PCL to purchase $101.4 million, of terrestrial and subsea capacity. 

Transactions with Pacific Capital Group and its Affiliates 

Prior to 1999, Global Crossing entered into certain transactions with 
affiliates of Pacific Capital Group ("PCG"), including the acquisition of 
development rights to certain of the Company's fiber optic cable systems. PCG 
is controlled by cer~ain officers and directors of Global Crossing who either 
currently are or at one time were affiliated with PCG. During 1999, Global 
Crossing subleased from PCG two suites of offices in Beverly Hills for 
payments aggregating approximately $287,000 over the year. In October 1999, 
Global Crossing entered into a lease with North Crescent Realty V, LLC, which 
is managed by and affiliated with PCG, for an aggregate monthly cost of 
approximately $400,000. North Cresent Realty, LLC paid approximately $7.5 
milliqn to improve the property to meet Global Crossing's specifications and 
was reimbursed approximately $3.2 million of this amount by Global Crossing. 
Global Crossing engaged an independent real estate consultant to review. the 
terms of Global ,Crossing's occupancy of the building, which terms were found 
by the consultant to be consistent with market terms and conditions and the 
product of an arm's length negotiation. Global Crossing subleases . 
approximately 12,000 square feet of the building to PCG for an aggregate 
monthly cost of approximately $53,000. 

PCG has fractional ownership interests in aircrafts used by Global Crossing 
during 1999. Global Crossing reimburses PCG for PCG's cost of .maintaining 
these ownership interests such that PCG realizes no profit from the 
relationship. During 1999, PCG billed Global Crossing approximately $2 million 
in aggregate under this arrangement. 

In 1997, the Company paid $7 million in fees to PCG and certain of its key 
executives, who are shareholders of GCL, and another shareholder for services 
provided in respect of obtaining the AC-l Credit Facility, Old Senior Notes 
and the GTHPreferred Stock financing. Of the fees paid, $5 million was 
allocated to the AC-l Credit Facility and Old Senior Notes and recorded as 
deferred finance costs, $1 million was allocated to the GCH Preferred Stock 
and recorded as a .reduction in the carrying value of the preferred stock and 
$1 million was recorded as common stock issuance costs. 

Transactions with Canadian I~perial Bank of Commerce and its affiliates 

During 1999, Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce and its affiliates (,iCIBC") 
entered into certain financing transactions with Global Crossing. In 
particular, CIBC: (1) acted as an arranger for the $600 million ten-day demand 
note issued by Global Marine Systems in JUly, (2) acted as an arranger for the 
$3 billion senior secured credit facility entered into by GCH in July, (3) was 
an initial purchaser of the $2 billion aggregate principal amount of unsecured 
senior notes isaued by GCH in November, and (4) was an initial purchaser of 
GCL's $650 million aggregate liquidation preference 7% cumulative convertible 
preferred stock issued in December. During 1999, Glob~l Crossing paid CIBC 
approximately $~.6 million in fees in connection with these transactions. CIBC 
has a substantial beneficial ownership interest in Global CrOSSing, and 
certain directors of Global Crossing are employees of an a£filiate of CIBC. 
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In 1998, CIEC was one of the initial purchasers of the New Senior Notes and 
GCH Preferred Stock, a member of the PC-1 and MAC credit facility syndicates, 
and was also one of the underwriters of the Company's initial public offering 
("IPO"). CIEC was paid $19 million in fees and credit facility interest during 
the year ended December 31, 1998. In 1997, GCL paid CIBC approximately $25 
million in fees related to the financing obtained under the Old Senior Notes, 
the AC-1 Credit Facility, and the issuance of the GTH Preferred Stock. Of the 
fees incurred, approximately $6 million related to underwriting and commitment 
fees pertaining to the issuance of, the GTH Preferred, Stock and was recorded as 
a reduction in the carrying value of the GTH Preferred Stock, approximately $9 
million related to underwriting, commitment and advisory fees in connection 
with the issuance of the Old Senior Notes and approximately $10 million 
related to fees associated with obtaining the AC-1 Credit Facility which was 
recorded as deferred finance costs. 

Relationship to Ziff-Cavis Inc. and Affiliates 

A director of Global Crossing is the chairman and chief executive officer of 
Ziff-Cavis Inc., a majority of the common stock of which is beneficially owned 
by Softbank Corp. Softbank is a party to the Asia Global Crossing jOint 
venture established to provide advanced network-based telecommunications 
services to businesses and consumers throughout Asia. Global Crossing, which 
is responsible for the management and operation of the network, contributed to 
the venture its 57.75% share ,of the Pacific Crossing system and its 
development rights in East Asia Crossing. Softbank and Microsoft each 
contributed $175 million in cash to Asia Global Crossing and also committed to 
make a total of at least $2,00 million in Global Crossing Network capacity 
purchases over a three-year period, expected to be utilized primarily on the 
Pacific Crossing system and East Asia crossing. Softbank and Microsoft also 
agreed to use Asia Global Crossing's network in the region. Global Crossing 
currently owns 93' of Asia Global Crossing, with Softbank and Microsoft each 
owning 3.5'. When the fair market value of Asia Global Crossing is determined 
to exceed $5 billion, the ownership interest of Softbank and Microsoft will 
increase to a maximum of 19% each at a valuation of $7.5 billion and above. 
The Global Crossing director is Softbank's representative on the Asia Global 
Crossing board of directors. In addition, Ziff-Cavis is one of the largest 
web-hosting customers of our GlobalCenter sqbsidiary. ' 

Relationship to Hutchison Whampoa Limited 

The managing director of Hutchison was recently appointed a director of 
Global Crossing. In November 1999, Hutchison and Global Crossing entered into 
an agreement to form a 50/50 joint venture to pursue fixed-line 
telecommunications and Internet opportunities in the Hong Kong Special 
Administrative Region, China. The joint'venture, the formation of which was 
completed in January 2000, combines Hutchison's existing territory-wide, 
building-to-building fixed-line fiber optic telecommunications network and 
certain Internet-related assets in Hong Kong with Global Crossing's ' 
international fiber optic broadband cable capacity and web hosting, Internet 
applications and data services. For its 5o, sha~e, Global Crossing provided to 
Hutchison $400 million in Global Crossing 6 3/8% cumulative convertible 
preferred stock. Additionally, Global CrOSSing committed to contribute to the 
joint venture international telecommunications capacity rights on its global 
fiber optic network and data center related capabilities which together are 
valued at $350 million, as well as $50 million in cash.. 

Agreements with Global Crossing Stockholders 

In August 1998. PCG, GKN Unified Holdings (an affiliate of PCG), affiliates 
" 	 9f CIBC, Global. _Crossing and sOme other Global Crossing shareholders, 

including some officers and directors and their affiliates, entered into a 
Stockholders Agreement and a Registration Rights Agreement_ Under the 
Stockholders Ag~e~ment, Global Crossing has been granted a right of first 
refusal on specified private transfers by these shareholders during the first 
two years after the consummation of the IPO on August 14, ~998. In addition, 
subject to the exceptions in the Stockholders Agreement, some of these 
shareholders have rights, which are referred to as tag-along rights, 
permitting these shareholders to participate, on the same terms artd' ­
conditions, in some transfers of shares by 
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any other of these shareholders as follows: (1) PCG, mew unified Holdings and 
CIBC and their affiliates and permitted transferees have the right to 
participate in any transaction initiated by any of them to transfer 5t or more 
of our outstanding securities; and (2l PCG, GKW unified Holdings, CIBC and 
their affiliates and permitted transferees have the right to participate in 
any transaction initiated by any of them to transfer any Global Crossing 
securities if that transaction would result in a change of control of Global 
Crossing. Under the Registration Rights Agreement, Global crossing 
shareholders who are parties to that agreement and a number of their 
transferees have demand and piggyback registration rights and will receive 
indemnification and, in some circumstances, reimbursement for expenses from 
the Company in connection with an applicable registration. 

principal shareholders of Global Crossing, representing at that time over a 
majority of the voting power of the Company's common stock, entered into a 
Voting Agreement with Frontier Corporation in March 1999 in connection with 
the Frontier merger. These Global Crossing shareholders reaffirmed their 
voting obligations under the Voting Agreement in connection with subsequent 
amendments made to the merger agreement during 1999. Pursuant to' the Second 
Reaffirmation of Voting Agreement and Share Transfer Restriction Agreement 
dated September 2, 1999, the Global Crossing shareholders that are parties to 
the Voting Agreement also agreed, from September 2, 1999 until March 2a, 2000, 
not to transfer record or beneficial ownership of any shares of Global 
crossing common stock held by such shareholders, other than transfers to 
char~ties, transfers made with the consent of the Company and other limited 
exceptions, and to work in good faith toward: implementing a program with the 
purpose that, if the .G1oba1 Crossing shareholders that are parties to the 
voting Agreement wish to sell or transfer their shares after March 2a,2000, 
these sales or transfers would be completed in a manner that would provide for 
an orderly trading market for the shares of Global Crossing common stock. 

Also on September 2, 1999, fourteen of the Company's executive officers and 
three executive officers of Frontier entered into a Share Transfer Restriction 
Agreement with Global Crossing. Under this agreement, the Global Crossing 
executive officers agreed not to sell or transfer shares of the Company's 
common stOck, and the Frontier executive officers agreed not to sell or 
transfer shares of Frontier common stock and the shares of Global Crossing 
common stock they would receive in exchange for their Frontier common stock in 
the merger, until March 28, 2000, subject in each case to substantially the 
same exceptions as are applicable to the Second Reaffirmation of Voting 
Agreement and Share Transfer Restriction Agreement described in the 
immediately preceding paragraph. 

Advisory Services Agreement ("ASA") 

ACL entered into the ASA with·PCG Telecom, an affiliate of peG which is a 
s~eho1der of GCL. Under the ASA. PCG Telecom ~rovided ACL with advice in 
respect of the development and maintenance of AC-l, development and 
implementation of marketing and priCing strategies and the preparation of 
business plans and budgets. As compensation for its advisory services, PCG 
Telecom received a 2t fee on the gross revenue of the Company over a 25 year 
term, subject to certain restrictions, with the first such payment to occur at 
the AC-1 RFS date. Advances on fees payable under the ABA were being paid to 
PCG Telecom at a rate of l' on signed CPAs until the ASA was terminated. as 
described below. Fees paid under the ASA to PCG Telecom were shared amongst 
union Labor Life Insurance Company. ("ULLICO"), PCG. CIBC, and certain 
directors and officers of the Company, all of whom are shareholders of GCL. 
Effective June 1998, GCL acquired the rights under the ABA on behalf Qf the . 
Company for common stock and contributed such rights to the Company as the ASA 
was terminated. This transaction was recorded in the consolidated financial 
statements as ~ increase in additional. paid-in capital of $135 million and a 
charge. against operations in the amount of $138 million. The $138 million is 
comprised of a $135 million settlement of the fee~ tha~ would have been 
payable and the Fance11ation of $3 million owed to t~e Company under a related 
advance agreement. The $135 million amount was cal'cu1ated by applying the 2' 
advisory services fee to projected future revenue and disG9Unting the amount 
relating to AC-1 revenue by 12t and the amount relating to all other system's 
revenue by 15'. The result of this calculation was $156 million, which amount 
was subsequently reduced to $135 million. Both the discount rates-and the 
ultimate 
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valuation were determined as a result of a negotiation process including a non 
management di,rector of the Company and the various persons entitled to fees 
under the ABA. The Company obtained a fairness opinion from an independent 
financial advisor in connection with this transaction. In addition, the 
Company incurred approximately $2 million of advisory fees prior to 
termination of the contract, for a total expense of $140 million for the year 
ended December 31, 1998. 

PCG Warrants 

PCG Warrants, issued in 1998 by the COmpany's predecessor, Global Crossing
Ltd., LDL ("Old GCL") became exercisable upon the completion of the IPO~ The 
PCG Warrants gave each holder the option to convert each share under warrant 
into a fraction of a Class 'B of Old GCL share based upon the ratio of the 
current per share valuation at the time pf conversion less the per share 
exercise price of the warrant divided by the current per share,valuation at 
the time of conversion multiplied by the 36,906,372 shares available under the 
PCG Warrants, together with a new warrant ("New PCG Warrants") to purchase the 
remaining fraction of such Class B share at an exercise price equal to the 
then current per share valuation. Prior to the IPO, the holders of the'pCG 
Warrants exercised their warrants to acquire Class a of Old GCL shares by way 
of the cashless conversion and the New PCG Warrants were issued with an 
exercise price based on the per share valuation at the conversion date, the 
obligation on which were assumed by GCL. 

The Company accounted for the cashless conversion of the PCG Warrants, which 
occurred as of June 1998, using the current estimated per share valuation at 
the expected conversion date, multiplied by the number of Class a shares of 
Old GCL estimated to be converted in exchange for the PCG Warrants. The 
resulting value under this calculation is approximately $213 million, which 
was allocated to the new systems in exchange for the PCG Warrants. In 
connection with the formation of PCL, the Company agreed to make available to 
PCL the consideration received by the Company in connection with the grant of 
the PCG Warrants, in addition to the $231 million cash investment made by the 
Company. Therefore, the Company recorded an increase in its investment in PCL 
in the amount of approximately $127 million and an increase in construction in 
progress for PAC and MAC in the amounts of approximately $50 million and $36 
million, respectively, with a corresponding increase of $213 million in 
additional paid-in capital. The $213 million was allocated on a pro rata basis 
to the three projects according to the estimated cost of each system. The 
Company's accounting for the PCG Warrants is pursuant to Emerging Issues Task 
Force 96-18, "Accounting for Equity Instruments with variable Terms that are 
Issued for Consideration other than Employee Services under FASa Statement No. 
123" ("EITF96-18"). 'Under EITF 96-18, the fair value of equity instruments 
issued for consideration other than employee services should be measured using 
the stock price or other measurement assumptions as of the date at which a 
firm commitment for performance level has been reached. The Company has 
recorded the estimated'value of the PCG Warrants as of June 1998, since the 
IPO was probable at that date. The $213 million value attributed to the PCG 
Warrants as of June 1998 was adjusted to the actual value of $275 million on 
the date of the IPO based upon the $9.50 price per share of the IPO. 

The Company gave accounting recognition for the New PCG Warrants on the date 
these warrants were issued, which was the date of the IPO. The Company valued 
each of the New PCG Warrants at $3.48 based on an independent valuation based 
on the IPO price of $9.50 per share. The New PCG Warrants had a total value of 
approximately $43 million. The Company recorded the actual value of the New 
PCG Warrants in a manner similar to that described above whereby the total 
value was allocated to the investment in PC-l, MAC and PAC based on their 
r~lative total contract COSts. 

Other_transactions 

In 1998, GCL ~urchased all common shares owned by Telecommunications 
Development Corporation ("TDC") in the Company in exchange for 300,000 fewer 
newly issued shares of common stock based upon the 
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per share value at the repurchase date. The transaction benefited GCL since 
300,000 fewer shares were outstanding after the repurchase without any cost to 
GCL. This transaction was accounted for as the acquisition of treasury stock 
and was recorded as $209 million, the fair value of the consideration given. 
Certain officers and directors of the Company held direct or indirect equity 
ownership positions in TDC, resulting in these officers and directors having a 
majority of the outstanding common stock of TOC. Following this transaction, 
TOC distributed all of its shares of common stock and GCL warrants to the 
holders of its common stock and was then liquidated. 

19. SEGMENT REPORTING 

The Company is a worldwide provider of Internet and long distance 
telecommunications facilities and related services supplying its customers 
with global "point to point" connectivity and, through its Global Marine 
Systems subsidiary, providing cable installation and maintenance services. The 
Company's reportable segments include telecommunications services, 
installation and maintenance services, and incumbent local exchange carrier 
services. There are other corporate related charges not attributable to a 
specific segment. While the Company's chief decision maker monitors the 
revenue streams of the various products and geographic locations. operations 
are managed and financial performance evaluated based on the delivery of 
multiple, integrated services to customers over a single network. As a result, 
there are many shared expenses generated by the various revenue streams and 
m~nagement believes that any allocation of the expenses incurred to multiple 
revenue streams would be impractical and arbitrary. 
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The information below summarizes certain financial data of the Company by 
segment (in thousands) : 

Period from 
March 19, 1997 

Year Ended Year Ended (Date of Inception) 
December 31, 1999 December 31, 1996 to December 31, 1997 

Telecommunication 
Services 
Revenue ..•..•.•........ '1,318,248 419,86'6 
Operating expenses ..... 1,370,534 299,922 3,101 

Operat ing income 
(loss) ..•..•...•.•.... $ $ $ (3,101)-_._...... . (Sa,286') 119,9'l4 

_.=:a=-•••..-.~-~--=-
CaSh paid for capital
expenditures •..•••.••. $ 1,552,019 $ 413,996 $426,743

a:a:a._.____ _.=-__.=-_.=-=......=-=-. 
Total assets ••...•..... $16,813,242 $2,6'39,177 $572,197-_.....__.. =-=r=-===_=== 

Installation and 

Maintenance Services 

Revenue: 


Maintenance .•......... 6'7,961 

Installation•..••..... 92,674 


Total revenue •.••..•.•• 160,655 

Operating expenses.; ... 16'2,209 


Operating loss ....• ,•.•• $ (1,554) $ $
••=•••==-== •••••a •• 

CaSh paid for capital

expenditures ••.•.••.•• $ 170,585 $ $ 


-=-:=--_.=-===- ••••••::::a. 
Total assets ••••••..••• $ 1,519,166' $ $ 

.a._=._.=-== :10==:1=*===_ -.-=---­
Incumbent Local Exchange

Carrier services 

Revenue ..••..••••••.•.. $ 185,921 $ $ 

Operating expenses .... . 131,942 


Operating income ...... . $ 53,979 $ 
••=:1==-__ 

=====;z==~.

Cash paid for capital

expenditures •••• : •..•• $ 48,311 $ $
_.-_.=_.... .••....--- •••••=-... 

Total assets .•.•••••.•• $ 1,373,172 $ ._.__ = __ ==­........... 

Corporate and Other 


Revenue ...•.•••••••.... $ $ $ 

Operating expenses •••.. 7,600 139,6'6'9 


Operating loss .•.•.•.•• $ (7,6'00) $ (139,6'6'9) $ 
-==-••== ••=. ..=--=-===-- ••••_=-•• 

Cash paid for capital

expenditures ••.•.•.... $ $ $
_=11:••___•••• •••===•••- ........ 


Total assets .••••••.... $ $ $ 
•••••••u••=-=-=r_=._:= 

Consolidated 

Consolidated revenue •.• $ 1,66'4,824 $ 419,86'6 f

Consolidated operating 


expense .•...••••••.•.• 1,672,28.5 439,591 3,101 

Consolidated operating
(loss) .••..••.•.•.•••• $ 17,461) $ (19,725) $ (3,101) .......... 


Consolidated cash paid
for capital
expenditure's .•••.•••.• $ 1;770;'915 • 413,996 $428,743$_______::1_ 

Consolidated total 
assets ..••••..••.•.•.• $19,705,560 $2, 6'3.!!, 177 $572,197• •••••• __.= ••=_==:1:••= 
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1999 	 1998 

Long-Lived Long-Lived 
Revenue Assets Revenue (1) Assets(2) 

(in 	thousands) 

North America 
United States.................. $ 997,025 $3,029,828 U93,142 $ 76,055 
Other .......................... . 64,040 26,515 64,558 

1,061,065 3,056,343 257,700 76,055 
Europe 

The Netherlands .....•••.•.••.•. 89,600 92,251 46,770 82,433' 
Germany...•.••••••••.•••••••••• 145,289 204,564 36,047 30,021 
England...••••••.•••••.•.•..••• 106,815 722,462 34,777 49,081 
Other .....•••.••.........•.•.•. 244,351 302,645 44,572 

586,055 1,321,922 162,166 161,535 
International waters •..•..•.•••••• 1,339,614 770,966 
Other. : •••••••••••••...••.••••••• 17,704 308,174 

Consolidated..........•.•••.••... $1,664,824 $6,026,053 $419,866 $1,008,556 

._aa=====_ ••___••• =2...... .2222••••_.~ 

(1) 	 During 1998, there was one customer located in the United States that 
accounted for 16\ of consolidated revenue, another customer located in 
Canada that accounted for 16\ of consolidated revenue, and one customer 
located in the Netherlands that accounted for 11\ of consolidated revenue. 
There were no individual customers in 1999 that accounted for more than 
10\ of consolidated revenue. 

(2) 	 Long-lived assets include capacity available for sale and construction in 
progress as of December 31, 1999 and 1998. 

20. 	QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) 

The Company's unaudited quarterly results are as follows: 

1999 Quarter Ended 

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 
-------- -------- ------------ ~----------

(In 	thousands, except per share data) 

Revenue •••••....••••...•.••••.... 
Operating income (loss) ••.•••.••. 
Income (loss) before 

$176,319 
41,067 

$188,459 
39,764 

$234,582 
13,226 

$1,065,464 
(101,518 ) 

extraordinary item and 
cumulative effect of change in 
accounting principle .••....•..•• 

Net income (loss) ............... . 
Net income (loss) applicable to 

common shareholders ....•••••.... 
Income (loss) per common share 
before extraord;inary item and ' 

12,802 
(1,908) 

(14,952) 

9,978 
9,978 

(4,219) 

135,854 
120,989 

106,918 

(169,169) 
(1.99,985) 

'(225,315) 

cumul~tive effect of change in 
accounting principle, basic •..•• 

Net income (loss) per common 
(0.00) (0.0l) -

-
- 0.30 ( .25) 

share, hasic ... : ..••.•.•••••••..• 
Income (loss) per common share 
before extraordinary item and 
cumulative effect of change in 

(0.04) (0.01) 0.26 ( .29) 

accounting principle, diluted ... 
Net income (loss) per common 

(0.00) (0. 01) 0.27 (.25) 

share, diluted•....•••.•••••••.. $ (0.04) $ (0.01) $ 0.24 $ ( .29) 
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Significant 1999 interim events: 

On December IS, 1999, the Company issued 2,600,000 shares of 7% cumulative 
convertible preferred stock at a liquidation preference of $250.00 for net 
proceeds of $630 million. 

On November 24, 1999, the Company acquired Racal Telecom, a group of wholly 
owned subsidiaries of Racal Electronics pIc, for approximately $1.6 billion in 
cash. 

On November 12, 1999, GCH issued two series of senior unsecured notes. The 9 
1/8% senior notes are due November 15, 2006 with a face value of $900 million, 
for net proceeds Of $887 million and the 9 1/2t senior notes .are.due 
November 15, 2009 with a face value of $1,100 million, for net proceeds of 
$1,084 million. 

On November 5, 1999, the Company issued 10,000,000 shares of 6 3/8% 
cumulative convertible preferred stock at a liquidation preference of $100.00 
for net proceeds of approximately $969 million. 

On September 28, 1999, the Company consummated its merger with Frontier 
Corporation in a transaction valued at $10.3 ,billion. 

On July 2, 1999, the Company completed its acquisition of the Global Marine 
Systems division of Cable & Wireless Plc for approximately $908 million in 
cash and assumed liabilities. 

During the third quarter, the Company recognized $210 million, net of merger 
related expenses, of other income in connection with the termination of the US 
WEST merger agreeme~t. 

1998 Quarter Ended 
--------------------"~--~..-----------------­
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 
------- ... - ... _------ ------------ ----------­

(In thousands, except per share data) 

Revenue ...•••••.•••....•.••.••.•.. $ $ 100,244 $ll6,494 $203,128 
Operating income (loss) .•••••••••. 
Income (loss) before extraordinary 
loss •••.•••..•...••••••••.••..••• 

Net income (loss} ..•••••••••...•.. 
Net income (loss) applicable to 

common shareholders •...•..•••••.. 
Income (loss) per common share 
before'extraordinary item, basic. 

Net income (loss) per common 
share, basic •.•.•••••..•.......•• 

Income (loss) per common share 
before extraordinary item, 
diluted..••••••••••...•..•.•••••• 

Net income (loss) per common 
share, diluted•••......•••••.•••• 

(3,794 ) 

(3,722) 
(3,722) 

(8,129) 

(0.02) 

(0.02) 

(0.02) 

$ (0.02) 

(123,649) 

(135,725) 
(155,434) 

(193,473) 

(0.52) 

(0.58) 

(0.52) 

$ (0.58) 

31,994 

15,229 
15,229 

15,229 

0.04 

0.04 

0.04 ­

$ 0.04 

75,724 

56,024 
56,024 

51,649 

$ 

0.13 

0.13 

0.12 

0.12 

Significant 1998 interim events: 

In December 1998, 5,000,000 shares of GCH 10 1/2% Preferred Stock were 
i~sued for proceeds of $483 million.•. 

Duriug August 1998, the Company completed an IPO for which the Company 
received net proceeds of approximately $391 million. 

In May 1998, the first segment of AC-1, the united 'States to united Kingdom 
route, was completed and commenced operations. 

During the second quarter, the Company acquired the rights from those 
entitled to fees payable under the advisory services agreement in~ .. ­
consideration for the issuance of common stock having an aggregate value of 
$135 million and the cancellation of approximately $3 million owed to the 
Company tinder a related advance 
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agreement. As a result of thi~ transaction, the Company recorded a non­
recurring charge in the approximate amount of $138 million during the second 
quarter. In addition, the Company recognized as an expense approximately $2 
million of advisory fees incurred prior to termination of the contract. 

On May 18, 199B, the Company issued 9 5/8% senior notes due May 15, 2008, 
with a face value of $800 million. 

21. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Share Cancellation 

As part of the Company's break-up ,fee received from US West, Inc. (flUB 
West"), the Company received 2,231,076 shares of its common stock from US West 
which were cancelled by the Company. For the year ended December 31, 1999, 
other income, net was composed primarily of a $210 million termination fee 
paid by US West in connection with the termination of its merger agreement 
with the Company, net of related expenses. 

Old GCL Common Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital 

During March 1997, Old GCL, formerly GT Parent Holdings LDC, was 
incorporated as an exempted limited duration,company in the Cayman Islands. In 
March 1998, GCL, a Bermuda company, was formed as a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
Old GCL. At that time, Old GCL contributed its investment in Global 
Telesystems Holdings Ltd. (flGTH") to GCL. During April 199B, GCL formed a 
wholly-owned subsidiary, Global Crossing Holdings Ltd. (flGCH"), a Bermuda 
company, and contributed its investment in GTH to GCH upon its formation. 

In January 1998, Old GCL effected a 100-for-l stock split of each of its 
Class A, B, C and D cornmon stock and undesignated stock and amended the par 
value of each share of common stock from $.0001 per share to $.000001 per 
share. Prior to GCL's IPO in August 1998, GCL declared a stock dividend to Old 
GCL resulting in Old GCL holding 1.5 shares of common stock of GeL for each 
share of cornmon stock of Old GCL outstanding. Pursuant to the terms of the 
Articles of Association of Old GCL and prior to the Company's lPO, each holder 
of Class D shares of Old GCL converted such shares into a fraction of a Class 
E share of Old GCL based upon a valuation at the time of such conversion, 
together with a warrant to purchase the remaining fraction of such Class E 
share at an exercise price based upon such market valuation. In addition, each 
holder of Class E shares of Old GCL had such Class E shares converted into 
Class B shares of Old GCL.. Accordingly, each holder of Class D and Class E 
shares ultimately received Class B shares, with the warrants to purchase Class 
E shares received by former Class D shareholders then cancelled in exchange 
for warrants ("New GCL Warrants") to purchase shares of Common Stock of GCL at 
an exercise price equal to the IPO price of $9.50 per share. 

, Subsequent to the above transaction and prior to the Company's IPO, each, 
shareholder of Old GCL (other than CIBC) exchanged their interests in Old GeL 
for shares of common sto~ of GCL held by Old GCL at a rate of 1.5 shares of 
common stock of GeL for each share of common stock of Old GCL ("Old-GCL 
Exchanged). CIBe did not participate in the above mentioned transaction and 
continued to maintain its ownership of GCL through Old GCL, which became a 
wholly owned subsidiary of CIBC. 

Because Old GCL, GCL and GCB were entities under common control, the 
transfers by Old GCL to GCL and GCL to GCB and the Old GCL Exchange were 
accounted fpr similar to a pooling .of interests. The consolidated financial 
statements presented have been retrtla:ctively restated to reflect these 
transactions as if they had occurred as of March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) • 
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Information with respect to Old GCL common stock and additional paid-in 
capital prior to the Old GCLExchange is as follows: 

Common Stock: 

Authorized: 

1,000,000,000 Class A common stock of $.00000067 par value 

1,000,000,000 Class B common stock of $.00000067 par value 

1,000,000,000 Class C common stock of $.00000067 par value 

3,000,000,000 Class D common stock of $.00000067 par value 

1,000,000,000 Class E common stock of $.00000067 par value 

43,000,000,000 undesignated common stock of $.00000067 par value 

Class A shares, Class B shares and Class C shares all had voting rights. On 
March 25, 1997, Old GeL issued 22,500,000 Class A shares, 101,250,000 Class B 
shares, 101,250,000 Class C shares for $.33 per share, resulting in aggregate 
proceeds of $75 million. In addition to the 22,500,000 Class A shares issued 
to the preference shareholders for cash in connection with the issuance of the 
preference shares, a total of 39,705,900 Class A shares were distributed to 
the initial preference shareholder representing 15t of the aggregate number of 
Class A, B and C shares outstanding. In addition, warrants to acquire a 
maximum of 92,880 shares of common stock of Old GCL were issued into escrow 
for the benefit of the holders of preferred stock. Effective January 21, 1998, 
Old GCL authorized 1,000,000,000 new Class E non-voting shares. 

Certain of the Class B shareholders were issued a total of 66,176,400 Class 
D shares on March 25, 1997. Of the $34 million of proceeds received from the 
issuance of Class B shares, $3 million was allocated to the Class D shares 
representing the estimated fair value of the Class D shares based on an 
independent valuation. Class D shares were non-voting shares which carried 
special preference rights on the cash distributions made by Old GCL. Class D 
shareholders were to receive lot of cash distributions to common shareholders 
once the internal rate of return to Class C shareholders exceeded lOt, and 
then increasing to 20% of cash distributions to common shareholders once the 
internal rate of return to Class C shareholders exceeded 30t. Effective 
January 1998, Class 0 share rights were amended such that Class 0 shareholders 
received the option to convert each Class D share into one Class E share upon 
payment to Old GCL of $.74 per share or to a fraction of a Class E share based 
upon a valuation at the time of such conversion, together with a warrant to 
purchase the remaining fraction of such Class E share at an exercise price 
based upon such market valuation. By granting to holders of the Class D shares 
an option to convert such shares into Class E shares, the Company obtained 
effective assurance that it could effect a change to a corporate structure in 
the event of a major equity event, such as a merger or other business 
combinatiOn or in the event of an IPO by GCL, of its common stock, since the 
holders of the Class D shares would need to exercise their options in order to 
participate directly in benefits of a merger or acquisition of the Company or 
in order to obtain the benefits of any trading market for the common stock of 
the Company; no trading market was expected to develop for the Class 0 shares. 
The grant of the options to Class D shareholders represents an equity 
transaction since the Company granted these shareholders amended share rights 
in the form of options with new warrants. Since the Company had an accumulated 
deficit, the charge was made against ~dditional paid in capital, which had no 
impact on the consolidated financial statements. The Company accoUnted for the 
new wa~rants as an equity transaction on the date the warrants were issued, 
which was the IPO date of August 13, 1998. 

In 1998, the Company issued, at a price of $0.33 per share, 900,000 Class B 
shires and 675,000 Class E shares. Since the estimated farr value of shares 
exceeded the issue price, the Company increased stock related expense and 
shareholders' equity by $2 million in 1998. 
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GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 


NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-~(Continued) 


22. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

IXnet and IPC Acquisitions 

on February 22, 2000, the Company announced a definitive agreement to 
acquire IXnet, Inc., a leading provider of specialized IP-based network 
services to the glohal financial services community, and its parent company, 
IPC Communications, Inc., in exchange for shares of common stock of Global 
Crossing valued at approximately $3.8 billion. Under the terms of the 
definitive merger agreement, 1.184 Global Crossing shares will be exchanged 
for each IXnet share not owned by IPC and 5.4l7 Global erossing shares will be 
exchanged for each share of IPC. The acquisition is expected to be completed 
in the second quarter of 2000 and is subject to regulatory approval and 
customary closing conditions. 

GlobalCenter Japan 

on January 26, 2000, the Company's Asia Glohal Crossing joint venture 
announced an agreement to create GlobalCenter Japan, a joint venture with 
Japan's Internet Research Institute, Inc. ("IRIM). GlohalCenter Japan will 
design, develop and construct a media distribution center in Japan providing 
connectivity worldwide through the Global Crossing Network. The joint venture 
will. also develop and provide complex w~b hosting services, e-commerce support 
and applications hosting solutions. Asia Global Crossing will own 89 percent 
of GlobalCenter Japan, with IRI owning the. remaining 11 percent. 

Hutchison Global Crossing Joint Venture 

On January 12, 2000, the Company established a joint venture, called 
Hutchison Global Crossing, with Hutchison to pursue fixed-line 
telecommunications and Internet opportunities in Hong Kong. For 

< 

its 50% share, 
Hutchison contributed to the joint venture its building-to-building fixed-line 
telecommunications network in Hong Kong and a number of Internet-related 
asseta. In addition, Hutchison has agreed that any fixed-line 
telecommunications activities it pursues in China will be carried out by the 
joint venture. For its sot share, the Company provided to Hutchison $400 
million in Global Crossing convertible preferred stock (convertible into 
shares of Global Crossing common stock at a rate of $45 per share) and 
committed to contribute to the joint venture international telecommunications 
capacity rights on our network and global media distribution center 
capabilities which together are valued at $350 million, as well as $50 million 
in cash. The Company intends to integrate its interest in Hutchison Global 
Crossing into Asia Global Crossing. 
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GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 


SCHEDULE II 


VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 

(in thousands) 

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E 

Additions 

Balance at Charged to Charged Balance at 
Dec 3l, coats and to other Dec 3l, 

Description 1998 expenses accounts Deductions ' 1999 

Reserve for uncollectible' 
accounts, .......•........ 

Deferred tax valuation 
$4,233 $37,157 $88,055 $(34,335) $95,110 

allowance ............... . $ $ $54,780 $ $54,780 
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or-1S(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed 
on its behalf on March 16, 2000 by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

Global crossing Ltd. 

lsi' Dan J. Cohrs 
By: 

Dan J. Cohrs 
Chief Financial Officer 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this 
report has been signed below on March 16, 2000 by the following persons on 
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated. 

signatures Title 

lsi Gary Winnick Chairman of the Board and Director 

Gary Winnick 

lsi Lodwrick M. Cook Co-Chairman of the Board and Director 

Lodwrick M. Cook 

Is/ Leo J. Hindery, Jr. Chief Executive Officer and Director 1 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, 

Leo J. Bindery, Jr. GlobalCenter Inc. 

lsi Thomas J. Casey vice Chairman of the Board and Director 

Thomas J. Casey 

Is/ David L. Lee President, Chief Operating Officer and 
Director 

DavId L. Lee 

/sl Joseph P. Clayton Director 1 President, Global crossing North 
America 

Joseph P. Clayton 

lsi Jack M. Scanlon Director; Vice Chairman of the Board, Asia 
Global Crossing

Jack (\of. Scanlon 

lsi Abbott L. Brown Senior Vice President and Director 

Abbott L. Brown 

Is/ Barry Porter Senior Vice President and Director 

Barry Porter 
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Title 

lsI Dan J. Cohrs Senior Vice President and Chief Financial 
Officer (principal accounting officer) 

Dan J. Cohrs 

lsI Robert Annunziata Director 

Robert Annunziata 

lsI Jay R. Bloom Director 

Jay R. Bloom 

Is/ William E. Conway Director 

William E. Conway 

Is/ Eric Hippeau Director 

Eric Hippeau 

Is/ Dean C. Kehler Director 

Dean C. Kehler 

lsI Geoffrey J.W. Kent Director 

Geoffrey J.W. Kent 

Director 

cannfng Fok Kin-ning 

lsi Douglas H. McCorkindale Director 

Dou9la~ H. McCorkindale 

lsI James F. McDonald 

James F. McDonald 

I sl Bruce Raben 

Bruce Raben 

lsi Michael R. Steed 

Michael R. Steed 

Director 

Director 

Director 
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EX-3.l0 

2 


CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS 


EXHIBIT 3.10 

EXECUTION COPY 
Schedule to the Bye-Laws

of Global crossing Ltd. 

CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS 

OF 

SERIES B 6 3/e% CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK' 

The terms of the authorized Series B 6 3/e\ Convertible Preferred 

Stock (the ·Preferred Stock") of Global Crossing Ltd., a company incorporated 

under the laws of Bermuda (the ·Company·). shall be as set forth below in this 

Schedule to the Bye-Laws of the Company (this ·Schedule"). 


(a) Designation. (i) There are hereby authorized 400,000 shares 

of ,Preferred Stock as designated by the Board of Directors of the Company. Each 

share of Preferred Stock will have a liquidation preference of $1,000 (the 

"Liquidation Preference") • 


(E) All shares of Preferred Stock redeemed, purchased, 

exchanged, converted or otherwise acquired by the Company shall be retired and 

canceled and, upon the taking of any action required by applicable law, shall be 

restored to the status of authorized but unissued shares of preferred stock of 

the Company, without designation as to series, and may thereafter be reissued. 


(b) CUrrency. All shares of Preferred Stock shall be denominated 

in United States currency, and all payments and distributions thereon or with 

resp~ct thereto shall be made in United States currency. All references herein 

to ."$" or "dol.lars" refer to United St.ates currency. 


(c) Ranking. The Preferred stock shall, with respect to dividend 

rights and rights upon liquidation, winding up or dissolution, rank junior to 
(i) each other class or series of capital ,stock of the Company, other than (A) 

the Common Stock of the Company and any other class or series of capital stock 

of the Company which by its terms ranks junior to the Preferred Stocl\:, as to 

which the Preferred Stock shall rank prior and (B) the Company's 6 3/e. 

Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock and any other class or series of capital 

stock of the Company which by its terms ranks on a parity with the Preferred 

Stock,. in each case as to which the Preferred Stock shall rank on a parity or 

{iiI other equity interests in the Company, in each case, including; without 

limitation, warrants, rights, calls or options exercisable for or convertible 


. into such capital stock or equity interests, except as provided in the last 
sentence of this paragraph (c): All' equity securities of the Company to which 
the Preferred Stock ranks prior (whether with re'spect to dividends or upon 
liquidation, winding up, dissolution or otherwise), including the Common Stock 
of the Company, are collectively referred to herein as the "Junior Stock". All 
equity securities of the Company to which the Preferred Stock ranks on a parity 
(whether with respect to dividends 'or'upon' liquidation, 

winding up, disaolution or otherwise) are collectively referred to herein as the 

"Parity Stock". All equity securities of the Company to which the Preferred 

St~ck ranks junior (whether with respect· to dividends or upon liquidation, 

winding up, dissolution or otherwise) are collectively referred to herein as the 

"Senior Stock". The respective definitions of Junior Stock, Parity Stock and 

Senior Stock shall also include any warrants, rights, calls or opf1Ohs 

exercisable for or convertible into any Junior Stock, Parity Stock or Senior 

Stock, as the case may be. 


(d) Dividends. (i) The holders of shares of Preferred Stock 
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shall be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors 
of the Company out of funds legally available therefor, dividends on the shares 
of Preferred Stock, cumulative from the first date of issuance of any such 
shares (the "Initial Issuance DateD), at a rate per annum of 6 3/et of the 
Liquidation Preference per share, payable in cash. Dividends on the shares of 
Preferred Stock shall be payable quarterly in equal amounts (subject to 
paragraph (d) (v) hereunder with respect to shorter periods, including the first 
such period with respect to newly issued shares of Preferred Stock) in arrears 
on the first day of each February, May, August and November of each year, or if 
any such date is not a Business Day, on the next succeeding Business Day (each 
such date, a "Dividend Payment Date", and each such quarterly periog., a 
"Dividend Period"), in preference to and in priority over dividends on any 
Junior stock. Such dividends shall be paid to the holders of record of the 
shares of Preferred Stock as they appear on the applicable Record Date. As used 
herein, the term "Record Date" means, with respect to the dividends payable on 
the first of February, May, August and November, the fifteenth day of'the 
immediately preceding January, April, JUly and October, respectively, or such 
other record date , not more than 60 days and not less than 10 days preceding the 
applicable Dividend Payment Date, as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors of 
the Company. Dividends on the shares of Preferred Stock shall be fully 
cumulative and shall accrue (whether or not declared and whether or not there 
are funds of the Company legally available for the payment of dividends) from 
the Issuance Date (or the last Dividend Payment Date for which dividends were 
paid, as the case may be) based on a 360-day year comprised of twelve 30-day 
months. Accrued and unpaid dividends for any past Dividend Period and dividends 
in connection with any optional redemption may be declared and paid at any time, 
without reference to any Dividend Payment Date, to holders of record on such 
date, not more than 4S days prior to the payment thereof, as may be fixed by the 
Board of Directors of the Company. 

(ii) No dividend shall be declared or paid or set apart for 
payment or other distribution declared or made, whether in cash, obligations or 
shares of capital stock of the Company or other property, directly or ' 
indirectly, upon any shares of Junior Stock or Parity Stock, nor shall any 
shares of JUnior Stock or Parity Stock be redeemed, repurchased or otherwise 
acquired for consideration by the Company through a sinking fund or otherwise, 
unless all accrued and unpaid dividends through the most recent Dividend Payment 
Date (whether or not such dividends have been declared and whether or not there 
are funds of the Company legally available for the payment of dividends) on the 
shares of Preferred Stock and any Parity Stock have been or contemporaneously 
are declared and paid in full; provided, however, that, notwithStanding any 

provisions in this subparagraph (ii) to the contrary, the Company shall be 
entitled to (a) declare and pay dividends on shares of Junior Stock payable 
solely in shares of Junior Stock and on shares of Parity Stock payable 

3 

solely in shares of Parity Stock or Junior Stock (other than pursuant to 
paragraph (d) (vi) of the Certificate of Designations for the Company's 6 3/8t 
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock), or in each case by an increase in the 
liquidation preference of the Junior Stock or parity Stock and (bl redeem, 
repurchase or otherwise acquire Junior Stock or Parity,Stock in exchange for, 
consideration consisting of Parity Stock or Junior Stock, in the case of Parity 
Stock, or of Junior Stock, in the case of Junior Stock. When dividends are not 
paid in full, as aforesaid, upon the shares of Preferred Stock, all dividends 
declared on the Preferred Stock and any other Parity Stock shall be declared and 
paid either (A) pro rata so that the amount of dividends so declared on the 
shares of Preferred Stock and each such other class or series of Parity Stock 
shall in all cases bear to each other the same ratio as accrued dividends on the 
shares of Preferred Stock and such class or series of Parity Stock bear to each 
other or (s) on, another'basis that 1:s,at least as favorable to the holders of 
the Preferred StOck entitled to receive such dividends. 

Ciii) Any dividend payment made on thE! Preferred Stock shall 
first be credited against the dividends accrued with respect to the earliest 
Di~idend Period for which dividends have ,not been paid. 

(iv) All dividends paid with respect to shares of Preferred 
Stock pursuant to this paragraph (d) shall be paid pro rata to the 'holders 
entitled thereto. 

(v) Dividends (or cash amounts equal to accrued and unpaid 
dividends) payable on the Preferred Stock for any period shorter than three 
months shall be computed on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed (in a 
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30-day month) since the applicable Dividend Payment Date or from the Issuance 
Date with respect to newly issued shares, as applicable, and based on a 360-day 
year of twelve 30-day months. No interest shall accrue or be payable in respect 
of unpaid dividends. 

(e) Liquidation Preference. (i) upon any voluntary or 

involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company or a reduction 
or decrease in the Company's capital stock resulting in a distribution of assets 
to the holders of any class or series of the Company's capital stock, each 
holder of shares of Preferred Stock shall be entitled to payment out of the 
assets of the Company available for distribution of an amount equal to the then 
effective Liquidation Preference per share of Preferred Stock held by such 
holder, plus all accumulated and unpaid dividends therein to the date of such 
liquidation, dissolution, winding up or reduction or deerease in capital stock, 
before any distribution is made on any Junior Stock, including, without 
limitation, Common Stock of the Company. After payment in full of the then 
effective Liquidation Preference and all accumulated and unpai~ dividends to 
which holders of shares of Preferred Stock are entitled, such holders shall not" 
be entitled to any further participation in any distribution of assets of the 
Company. If, upon any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or 
winding up of the Company or a reduction or decrease in the Company's capital 
stock, the amounts payable with respect to shares of Preferred Stock and all 
other Parity Stock are not paid in full, the holders of shares of Preferred 
Stock and the holders of the Parity Stock shall share equally and ratably in any 
distribution of assets 

4 

of the Company in proportion to the full liquidation preference and all 
accumulated and unpaid dividends to which each such holder is entitled. 

(ii) Neither the voluntary sale, conveyance,. exchange or 
transfer (for cash, shares of stock, securities or other consideration) of all 
or substantially all of the property or assets of the Company nor the 
consolidation, merger or amalgamation of the Company with or into any 
corporation or the consolidation, merger or amalgamation 6f any corporation with 
or into the Company shall be deemed to be a voluntary or involuntary 
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company or a reduction or decrease 
in the capital stock of the Company. 

(iii) No funds are required to be set aside to protect the 
Liquidation Preference of the shares of Preferred Stock, although such 
Liquidation Preference will be substantially in excess of the par value of the 
shares of the Preferred Stock. 

(f) Redemption. Shares of Preferred Stock shall be redeemable 

by the Company as provided below. 

(i) Optional Redemption After the Initial Redemption Date. The 

shares of Preferred Stock shall not be redeemable prior to January 12, 2005 (the 
"Initial Redemption Date"). After the Initial Redemption Date, the ,shares of 
Preferred Stock shall be Subject to redemption at any time at the o~tion of the 
Company, in whole or in part, at a price (the "Redemption Price"), payable in 
cash, equal to the percentage set forth below of the Liquidation Preference per 
share for redemption during the 12~month periods beginning on the Initial 
Redemption Date or the annual anniversaries thereof indicated below, plus in 
each case an amount equal to accrued and unpaid dividends thereon (whether or 
not declared and whether or not there are funds of the Company legally available 
f~r the payment of dividends) to the date fixed for redemption. 

Period Redemption Price 
-..;..-_ ........ _-_.......... -.t:"'-­

2005 .••.••••.•...••...•..•.•.•••... 103.1875' 

2006 .•.......•...•......••..••.•... 102.5500' 

2007 .•.•.••..•.•.••••.•....•••..... 101.9125t 

2008 .•..•. , •.....•.•............... 101.2750' 

2009 ••...••••••••.•.••.••••...••... 100.6375' 
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JOSEPH P. CLAYTON 

President ofNorth America 


Global Crossing Ltd. 


Joseph P. Clayton is President of North America for Global Crossing Ltd., a Bennuda-based 
company listed on both the S&P 500 and the NASDAQ 100. In this role, Clayton has direct 
responsibility over the company's North American Operations. In addition, Clayton helps craft 
the strategic vision for the corporation by identifying meaningful business partnerships, alliances 
and potential acquisitions. Clayton reports directly to the CEO of Global Crossing. 

On September 28, 1999, Global Crossing Ltd. merged with Frontier Corporation to create the 
world's preeminent global IP-services company. The combined companies are positioned to 
provide customers with integrated global Internet, data, long distance, local telephone and 
conferencing services. 

Prior to assuming his new role at Global Crossing, Clayton was the President and Chief Executive 
Officer of Frontier Communications, a leading provider of integrated communications services 
nationwide. After assuming leadership in June 1997, Frontier's stock price appreciated over 200 
percent. He simultaneously grew the company's market cap from $3 billion to $10 billion. 
Clayton drove the strategic vision of Frontier while working as a hands-on leader of Frontier's 
executive management team. 

Before joining Frontier, Clayton served as executive vice president ofmarketing 
and sales for the Americas and Asia for Thomson Consumer Electronics, the largest electronics 
company in the United States. A seasoned leader in the consumer electronics industry, he has 
more than 24 years of marketing and sales experience. During his tenure, Clayton was 
responsible for product development, marketing, advertising, sales and distribution of Thomson's 
RCA, ProScan and GE brands of consumer electronics products. 

His experience in the consumer electronics industry included numerous management positions for 
RCA, GE and Thomson, most notably senior vice president of the television division, vice 
president of video product management, and general manager of national accounts. 

Clayton earned an M.B.A. in marketing and management from Indiana University in 
Bloomington, Ind., and is a magna cum laude graduate with a B.A. in business administration and 
economics from Bellarmine College in Louisville, Kentucky. He currently serves on Global 
Crossing's board of directors, as well as the boards of Global Crossing's GlobalCenter and Asia 
Global Crossing divisions. He is a director of the good guys - a publicly traded West Coast 
consumer electronics retail operation, and is a member of the Chase Manhattan Bank's 
Northeastern board. Clayton serves on the Dean's Advisory Board for Indiana University School 
of Business, as a trustee of Bellarmine College, and as a trustee of Rochester Institute of 
Technology. Clayton formerly acted as chairman of the Consumer Electronics Group for the 
Electronics Industries Association. 
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ROBERT L. BARRETT 

Executive Vice President and Chief Technical Officer 
Global Crossing North America 

Guiding the product development, engineering, information systems and the overall technical 

vision of the firm, Robert Barrett is the executive vice president and Chief Technical Officer for 

Global Crossing North America. In this position, Barrett guides the company's product 

development, information systems and network infrastructure. In addition, he directs the 

development of a companywide full service platform, combining network, customer service and 

billing on one integrated system. 


Barrett joined the company in 1996 as president of Frontier Network Systems and Services, with 

responsibility for all network operations, information technology and engineering. 


A 35-year technology veteran, Barrett was previously executive vice president and Chief 

Technology Officer at Columbus, Ohio-based Banc One Corporation, one of the 10 largest bank 

holding companies in the U.S. His career at Banc One also included serving as president of Banc 

One Services Corporation, the technology subsidiary comprised of information systems, bank 

operations and conversions, client services, administrative services, financial card services and 

advanced technology. 


Before joining Banc One, Barrett was senior vice president of Allnet Communication Services. 

In this position, he was in charge of operations, billing, customer service, sales support, 

engineering and technology and was instrumental in the development ofthe AHnet billing 

platform, recognized as one of the most flexible in the telecommunications industry and currently 

utilized by Frontier. Prior to joining AHnet, Barrett was Chairman and CEO for the information 

technologies and telecommunications subsidiaries of Clark Equipment Company. 


Barrett earned a bachelor's degree in finance, physics and psychology from Michigan State 

University in East Lansing, Mich. 
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HAROLD M. WINFIELD 

ChiefFinancial Officer 
Global Crossing North America 

Hank Winfield was appointed chief financial officer for Global Crossing North America in 
September 1999 when Global Crossing Ltd. completed its merger with Frontier Corporation. In 
this position, he is responsible for revenue management, internal reporting, credit and collections, 
accounting operations and fmancial planning and analysis. 

Winfield joined Frontier in January 1999 as vice president and corporate controller, where he 
managed the accounting operations, all internal and external reporting, credit and collections, and 
fmancial accountability for the company1s activities. 

Before coming to Frontier, Winfield was with First Data Corporation, where he served as senior 
vice president and Chief Financial Officer of TeleCheck Services, Inc. In addition to his duties as 
a member of the company's Executive Committee, he was responsible for all financial aspects of 
accounting, planning and analysis, and acquisitions. He also held positions of vice president of 
finance and director of planning and analysis. 

Previously, Winfield was a member of Coopers & Lybrand for more than eight years, holding 
numerous management positions in audit and mergers and acquisitions. 

Winfield earned a BBA in business and accounting from Southern Methodist University and is a 
certified public accountant. 
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PROFIT CORPORATION 
APPLICATION BY FOREIGN PROFIT CORPORATION TO FILE AMENDMENT TO 

APPLICATION FOR AUTHORIZATION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS Jlt~L<8UDA 
(Pursuant to s. 607.1504, F.S.) £:~:- Co­

-. " c:::);:;:., z 11 
v..~.;, I 
V',.­

SECTION I rn--	 (J) r 
0·':.~(1-3 MUST BE COMPLETED) 	 ..,,-., -0 f11 
riv' 3:: o 
0,--'
:;::;::;~ .s::­so-! .. 
»rn C'J1 

I.FRONTIER LONG DISTANCE OF AMERICA, INC . 

. Name of corporation as it appears on the records of the Department of State. 

2. Dell:tWare 	 3.August 9, 1993 
Incorporated under laws of 	 Date authorized to do business in Florida 

SECTION II 

(4-7 COMPLETE ONLY THE APPLICABLE CHANGES) 


4. If the amendment changes the name of the corporation, when was the change effected under the laws of 

its jurisdiction of incorporation?__June~~6....:.._2O))_~_______ 

5,FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS OF AHERICA. INC. 

Name of corporation after the amendment. adding suffix "corporation" "company" or "incorporated:or appropriate abbreviation. if 
not contained in new name of the corporation. , 

6. If the amendment changes the period of duration, indicate new period of duration. 

N/A 
lireWU'uratlon 

7. If the amendment changes the jurisdiction of incorporation, indicate new jurisdiction. 

N/A 
New Jurisdiction 

~~ 	 &!J-fpo
Date ~~ 

Barbara J. LaVerdi Assistant Secretary 

Typed or printed name Tille 
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• Office of the Secretary of State 

It EDWARD J. FREEL, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 


DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND .CORRECT 


COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF "VISIONS LONG DISTANCE 

",",,.'.-w:.::n,,,*,~*,,\~~... ,..,.;,. ;.!:~.",",~.:);..,,,, 

AMERICA INC. It, CHANGING/ITS .NAME F~OM""":VJ:SIONS LONG DISTANCE 
.: " \ ...:';, ' 

AMERICA INC. n TO: '"FRO'NT'fER LONG D!STANQ£,~;OF,:"A-H~RICA. INC. n, 
.;:,.,i!' " ';.0;<,:, _," ••• '" ,,.-'. - ~:' ' •••. ~~ •• """"'~- ": '.'.. ~';}:j, .;i~t;. '}'~;,.~\+.,,:'~~~ 

FILED IN TH7'~'~ilQ~{,IC~ .• ON THE TWENTIETH DA'l",~~:'~~;CToa,R, A.D. 1994, 
. ..\:~ . ' _." '"" 

" ,':' 

"~""""-"'""""'.'":-"';'-:" 

AT 9 O'CLOCK A.,M,!., ;:,.:'<. :~ 

. ~., 

:. ~':' 

r:~~'~t~~~· :~~~i::.~·~ 

• 

.;' . -""--~...-,~., 

;: 'f 

>: 

ttkff~ 
Edward J. Freel. Secretary ofState 

AUTHENTICAnON: 72828742307210 8100• 
DATE:944205388 10-21-94 



SECRETARY OF STATE . - DIVTcTON OF CORPORATIONS 
FIl )9:00 AM 10/20/1994CER:Tll'~ICATE OF AMENDM~ ~96B4 - 2307210 

• OF 

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 

VISIONS LONG DISTANCE AMERICA INC. 

VISIONS LONG DISTANCE AMERICA INC•• a corporation organized and existing under and 
by vinue of the General Corporation Law of lhe Stale of Delaware. DOES HEREBY CERTIFY: 

FIRST: That at a meeting of the Board of Directors resolutions were duly adopled sening 
forlh a proposed amendment of the 'Cenificate of Incorporation of said corporation. declaring said 
amendment to be advisable and caning for a meeting of the stockholders of said consideration thereof. The 
n:soJution scuing fonh the proposed· is as follows: . 

RESOLVED. ThaI the Cenif1C3le oflncorporation of chis corporation be amended by changing the 
Anicle(s) thereof numbered so that. as amended said Anic1e(s) shall be and read as follows: 

; FIRST: The Name of the corporation is: FRONTIER LONG DISTANCE OF 
AMERICA, Ise. 

SECOND: That thereafter. pursuant to resolution of its Board of Directors. a special meeting 
of the stock holders of said corporation was duly called and held. upon notice in accordance: with Seclion 
222 of the General Corporation law of the Stare of Delaware at which meeting the necessary number of 
shares as requir~u by statute were voted in favor of amendment. 

• 	 THIRD: That said amendment was duly adopted jft accordance with the provisions of Seclion 
242 of the General Corporation law of the State of Delaware. 

FOURTH: Thai the capita) of said corporation shall not be reduced under or by reason of said 
amendment. 

~ WITNESS WHEREOF. said has caused its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed and this 

-, 	 J /
By: t,fu'i.,i) Ct,,\Cl. " ,(Ct_!. _ll{(7. 

Barbara J. La r . Assi~tant Secretary 

R196.5-079443 

certificate to be signed by Jeremiah T. Carr. its .President & CEO. and Barbara J.. laVerdi its Assistant 
Secretary. this /.3""'" day of (,'(,71~;< .• 1994. 

I '''11 "'__--:­By ' F Hr .." ... ; 

• 
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(l)ffice of ~etretar~ of Jitate 


I, MICHAEL RATCHFORD, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE. 00 HEREBY CERT I FY THE ATTACHED I S A TRUE AND CORRECT 

COpy OF THE CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF "VJSIONS LONG 

DISTANCE AMERICA INC." FILED IN THIS OFFICE ON THE NINETEENTH DAY 

OF AUGUST. A.D. 1992. AT 9 O'CLOCK A.M. 

• 
A CERTIFIED COpy OF THIS CERTIFICATE HAS BEEN FORWARDED TO 

KENT COUNTY RECORDER OF DEEDS ON THE NINETEENTH DAY OF AUGUST, 

A.D. 1992 FOR RECORDING • 

' * * * * * * * * * * 

922325117 


~~ 
SECRETARY OF STATE 

AUTHENTICATION: *3563493 
~. 

DATE: 08/19/1992•~; 
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• STATE OF DELAWARE 

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 
. OF 

VISIONS LONG DISTANCE AMERICA INC. 

I, (We) the undersigned, in order to form a corporation for 
the purposes hereinafter stated, under and pursuant to the 
provisions of the General Corporation Law of the State of 

Delaware, do hereby certify as follows: 

FIRST: The name of the corporation is: 

VISIONS LONG DISTANCE AMERICA INC •. 

SECOND: The registered office of the corporation in the 
state of Delaware is to be located at 32 Loockerman Square, suite 
,. f .1'1"101 h ' L-100, 1n the C1ty of Dover, County 0 Ken~. T e name of 1ts 

registered agent is The Prentice-Hall Corporation System, Inc. 

THIRD: The nature of the business, and the objects and 

purposes proposed to be transacted, promoted and carried on, are 
to do any and all things therein mentioned, as fully and to the 

same extent as natural persons might or could do, and in any part 
of the· world, viz: 

To do any lawful act or thing for which corporations may be 
organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of 

Delaware. 

Without limiting the scope and generality of the foregoing, the 
corporation may engage in the following activities: 

Long distance telecommunication service • 

.... 
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• FOURTH: The total number of shares which the corporation is 
authorized to issue is 200 shares ~01 par value itemized as 
follows: 

SERIES NUMBER PAR VALUE/SHARE OR ARE 
CLASS (IF ANY) OF SHARES THEY WITHOUT PAR VALUE 

Common 	 200 .01 Par Value 

FIFTH: The name and address of each incorporator(s) is/are 
as follows: 	 Julie Espinoza 


500 Central Avenue 

Albany, NY 12206 


• 

SIXTH: The directors shall have power to make and to alter 
or amend the By-Laws; to fix the amount to be reserved as working· 
capital,and to authorize and cause to be executed, mortgages and 
liens without limit as to the amount, upon the property and 
franchises of this Corporation • 

with the consent in 	writing, and pursuant to a vote of the 
holders of a majority of the capital stock issued and 
outstanding, the Directors shall have authority to dispose, in 
any manner, of the whole property of this Corporation. 

The By-Laws shall determine whether and to what extent the 
accounts and'books of this Corporation, or any of them, shall be 
open to the inspection of the stockholders; and no stockholder 
shall have any right of inspecting any-account, or book, or 
document of this:: Corporation~ except as conferred by Law or the 

By-Laws, or by resolution of the stockholders. 
The stockholders and directors shall have power to hold· 

-
their meetings and keep the books, documents and papers of the 
corporation outside the State of Delaware, at such places as may 
be from time to time designated by the By-Laws or by resolution 
of the stockholders or directors, except as otherwise required by 
the laws of Delaware • 

• 
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It is the intention that the objects, purposes and powers 

specified in the third paragraph hereof shall, except where 
otherwise specified in said paragraph, be in nowise limited or 
restricted by reference to or inference from the terms of any 
other clause or paragraph in this certificate of In~orporation, 
but that the objects, purposes and powers specified in the third 
paragraph and in each of the clauses or paragraphs of this 
charter shall be regarded as independent objects, purposes and 
powers. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,.I (we) have'hereunto set my (our) 
hand(s) and seal this 17th day of August, 1992~ 

• 

--,.,: 
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(l)ffice of ~ecretar\l of ~tate 


I, MICHAEL RATCHFORD, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY VISIONS LONG DISTANCE AMERICA INC. 'IS 

DULY INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELA\'IARE AND IS 

IN GOOD STANDING AND HAS A LEGAL CORPORATE EXISTENCE SO FAR AS 

THE RECORDS OF THIS OFFICE SHOW, AS OF THE DATE SHOWN BELOW. 

* * * * * * * * * * 

.' 

• ~~ 

• 

Michael Ratchford, Secretary of State 

AUTHENTICATION: *3592796 .... 
~• .I DATE:
612261100 09/17/1992 





